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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH
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Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RAF 22

2021 2020
20215 20205
Operating results (HK$'000) REEE (THET)
Revenue N 4,259,882 3,231,701
Gross profit ER 716,953 623815
Profit before tax PRI AR A 37,869 69,002
Profit for the year FriE T 31,435 61,054
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company AT HEE NEEERN TR 15,305 58,523
Financial position (HK$'000) BAESIRR (F#7T)
Total assets BEE 2,828,870 2514210
Net current assets MENBEFE 377,733 273,137
Unsecured bank borrowings IRIRIRITER 588,273 547224
Net assets EEFE 1,006,618 956,459
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company KABIEEANEGHEERE 992,819 95451 |
Per share data (HK cents) SR (BWL)
Dividend per share FEREER
— Interim —H = -
~ Final —KH 0.4 -
~Total — 185t 0.4 -
Earnings per share SREH
— Basic —&ExK 0.87 334
~ Diluted —#F 0.87 3.34
Net assets value per share SERBEEZE 57.5 54.7
Share price as at 31 December RRAIENKRE 23.5 153

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS o
AT 22

2021 2020
20214 20204

Key statistics TEHE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE %) 16.8% 19.3%
Net profit margin (%) B (%) 0.7% 1.9%
Inventory turnover (days) FEBEXH (XH) 66.4 754
Debtors’ turnover (days) BEBEANBEXH (K8 66.7 718
Creditors' turnover (days) BEREANEBEXH (X&) 613 66.1
Payout ratio (%) TKEE (%) 22.3%* N/A
Dividend yield (%) 1% 5 U 2 22 (%) 1.7% N/A
Return on total assets (%) BEELRE(%) I.1% 2.4%
Return on net assets (%) FEERRE %) 3.1% 6.4%
Gearing ratio (%) BEBBILE®%) 58.4% 57.2%
Current ratio (%) TENELZE(%) 124.7% 119.9%

* Payout ratio is equal to dividend divided by profit for the year

REEERRBERUENEF

BEEBEERAA

0V FERE



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERNE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Sinomax Group
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”), | have great
pleasure of presenting to you our annual report for the financial year ended 31 December
2021 (the "Reporting Period”).

Covid-19 continued to impact the community and business globally. Some of our factories in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the United States (the "US") and Vietnam did not
operate smoothly. Substantial amount of logistic arrangements were delayed with increasing
production costs. The trade war between the US and the PRC and the anti-dumping issues
remained as barriers to our operations worldwide. Despite the unfavorable environment,
revenue of our Group for the Reporting Period recorded a growth of 31.8% as compared to

that in the previous financial year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY 2020").

Demands from our customers, particularly in the US, for Mattress-in-a-Box, one of the Group's
major products sold through online channels, have been encouraging. The Group has allocated
more resources and will gradually increase our production capacity to cater for demands from
both traditional sales and online sales. As disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated | February 2021 and 21| April 2021, we entered into two separate lease agreements
in relation to the lease of two premises in the US to expand the Group's operations and to

meet our customers’ growing demand.

As for the PRC market, the Group has increased our brand recognition and expanded the
sales network by strengthening the e-commerce sales channels for online shoppers and

participating in strengthening foam industry standard.

In the coming vyear, we will continue to take measures to mitigate the impacts of the
uncertainties. Meanwhile, we will make good use of our strengths and explore opportunities in
the growing "Mattress-in-a Box" market, and diversify our customer base in order to maintain
our position as one of the leading experts in visco-elastic health and wellness products in the

US and the retail markets in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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The Group has not declared dividend in 2019 and 2020. The Board has proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.4 cent per ordinary share amounting to approximately
HK$7,000,000 for the Reporting Period (FY2020: Nil). The proposed final dividend is subject
to approval by the Company's shareholders (the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 22 June 2022. If the resolution for the proposed
final dividend is passed at the AGM, the proposed final dividend will be paid on 22 July 2022
to Shareholders whose names appear in the Company's register of members on 8 July 2022.
We hope declaring dividend out of the profit for the year can maximize the wealth of our

Shareholders in the long run.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff members for
their dedication to the Group, and the Shareholders, valued customers, suppliers, bankers and

other business partners for their continuous support.

Lam Chi Fan

Chairman

25 March 2022

I
Lam Chi Fan #E R :;
Chairman EE £
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EEREM

AEBMR20I9FEK200FEHRERRKRE ©
EXECRENREARERAREESR
EBRR0.48 1l Pk 8849%7,000,00078 7T
(20200 BEE . ) - BEABREEFT
ApElRE (TRE)) /1202256822
HEFNEERRBEFAE RRBEX
B EMERAEE-MRREEFEAT
FTREEHMEZRBRENRER B
REARG B 7202257822 H IR EE T 722022
F7ASHLHARBIRELMBIER &K
MAEL REAFEMN MNP EIKRKE AT
KRN RBAME -

AANRLEHRERAAEERBERNMA
BEIR—EXFHAANEIRTIRR -G8
MER HES BORHEMEBSFEBH
FTRLE

EFETE
MEN

202238250



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAS

Revenue by operating segment

During the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$1,028.2
million or approximately 31.8% to approximately HK4,259.9 million (for the year ended 3|
December 2020 (“FY2020"): approximately HK$3,231.7 million).

BEEN IR DHMA

RIRER AEBNBAEINAI028288
BITRA3I8%EN4299EBET (BE
2020 12831 HIEFE (M2020 BLEE ) -
#3231 788 BT °

For the year ended 3| December

HEZENAALEE

2021 2020 Changes

20214 20204 =)

HK$'000 HK$'000 %

FET FET %

China market HETS 2,222,881 1,649,701 34.7%
North American market EEmH 1,573,442 1,372,313 14.7%
Europe and other overseas markets BUMN R Efth &8s T 5 463,559 209,687 121.1%
Total 4act 4,259,882 3231701 31.8%

Sales in the China market increased by approximately 34.7% for the Reporting Period, as
compared to FY2020. The increase was due to the fact that the China market has gradually
recovered from the impacts of the COVID-19 epidemic in the Reporting Period.

In the North American market, we diversified our customer base by developing business
relationship with more new customers, as a result of which sales in this region increased by

approximately 14.7% for the Reporting Period, as compared to FY2020.

In Europe and other overseas markets, we recorded an increase of sales in this region of
approximately 121.1% for the Reporting Period, as compared to FY2020. The increase was

due to the increase in our sales to customers in Vietnam.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit (the “GP") increased by approximately HK$93.I million or
approximately 14.9% to approximately HK$717.0 million during the Reporting Period, as
compared to approximately HK$623.8 million for FY2020. However, the GP margin decreased
by 2.5% from approximately 19.3% to approximately |6.8% as compared to FY2020.

The decrease in GP margin was due to the increase in the purchase price of raw materials of
polyurethane foam and the significant increase in transportation costs during the Reporting

Period, as compared to FY2020.

Costs and expenses

Selling and distribution costs for the Reporting Period increased by approximately HK$100.7
million or 31.5% to approximately HK$420.2 million, as compared to approximately HK$319.5
million for FY2020. The increase in selling and distribution costs was in line with the increase
in revenue for the Reporting Period. The increase was mainly due to the increase in marketing
expenses of approximately HK$61.3 million, staff costs and commission fees of approximately

HK$21.0 million and transportation costs of approximately HK$ 7.1 million.

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately HK$3.2 million
or 1.6% to approximately HK$199.2 million, as compared to approximately HK$202.4 million

for FY2020.The decrease was mainly due to decrease in bonus and depreciation expenses.

BEEREDH

E7

RI|EHA REBNERN (TEH) BN
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70 20208 BE E R85 4062388 8%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAS

Profit for the Reporting Period

Profit for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately HK$31.4 million as compared to
approximately HK$61.1 million for FY2020.

This was primarily attributable to:

increase in the purchase price of raw materials of polyurethane foam during the

Reporting Period, as compared to FY2020;
2. significant increase in transportation costs; and

3. decrease in government subsidies related to COVID-19 received in FY2020.

Income tax expenses

Included in income tax expenses, there were payments of PRC withholding tax on

distributable profits from the Group's PRC subsidiaries of approximately HK$0.7 million (2020:

HK$ 1 1.4 million).

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$377.7
million, as compared to approximately HK$273.1 million as at 3| December 2020. Net cash
from operating activities amounted to approximately HK$156.8 million for the Reporting
Period as compared to approximately HK$ 1 14.7 million for FY2020. Bank balance and cash as
at 31 December 2021 increased by approximately HK$91.6 million or approximately 66.9%
to approximately HK$228.5 million as compared to approximately HK$136.9 million as at 31
December 2020.

Borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had banking facilities amounting to approximately
HK$1,028.5 million of which approximately HK$624.0 million was utilised (FY2020: banking
facilities amounting to approximately HK$1,120.5 million of which approximately HK$592.1

million was utilised) (which included unsecured bank borrowings and bills payables).

Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately
HK$48.6 million (FY2020: HK$29.4 million) which was mainly for the purchase of the Group's

plant and machinery.
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' MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEREADH

Financial ratios BATEEER
As at As at
i i
3| December 3| December
2021 2020

2021E128318 20205128318

Current ratio () TRENEEEO 124.7% 119.9%

Quick ratio @ REEXRO 78.7% 773%

Gearing ratio @ BEBMELO 58.4% 57.2%

Debt to equity ratio ¢ BB R RS 35.7% 42.9%

(' Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities. O RBLEEERHBEERURBEEE

@ Quick ratio is equal to current assets less inventories and divided by current liabilities. @ R RBEERTERURB &GS
Ho

® Gearing ratio is derived by dividing interest-bearing debt incurred in the ordinary course of ® EESBULEXBEOEERBEREEN
business by total equity. BEBRUEDBENSL -

® Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt is defined to ® BRI R RER 2R DR
include all borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents. B ERRERATHBEMBGHINRR
ERBREEEY-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group carries on business mainly in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), the United States (the “US") and Vietnam.The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk principally in Renminbi and Vietnamese Dong which can be largely offset by its revenue
and expenditure in the PRC and Vietnam. The Group does not expect any appreciation
or depreciation of Hong Kong Dollar against Renminbi and Vietnamese Dong which could
materially affect the Group's results of operations, and therefore no hedging instrument has
been employed. The Group will closely monitor the trends of Renminbi and Vietnamese Dong

and take appropriate measures to deal with the foreign exchange exposure if necessary.

TREASURY POLICY AND MARKET RISKS

The Group has a treasury policy that aims at better controlling its treasury operations and
lowering borrowing cost. Such treasury policy requires the Group to maintain an adequate
level of cash and cash equivalents and sufficient available banking facilities to finance the
Group's daily operations and to address short term funding needs. The Group reviews and

evaluates its treasury policy from time to time to ensure its adequacy and effectiveness.

PROSPECTS

The year 2021 has been another challenging year. Following the COVID-19 outbreak, the US —
China trade war and the imposition of anti-dumping duty on products imported from various
countries, production costs including materials, logistics and labour costs continued to rise. We
will continue to monitor the production costs closely and discuss with our customers for the
possibility of transferring the increased costs to them from time to time. Demands from our
customers, particularly in the US, for Mattress-in-a-Box, one of the Group's major products
sold through online channels, have been encouraging. Though we encountered some delay in
expanding our production capacity in the US, we expect the production output will gradually
increase in the second half of 2022. As disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated | February 2021 and 21 April 2021, we entered into two separate lease agreements
in relation to the lease of two premises in the US to expand the Group's operations and to

meet our customers’ growing demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAS

We expect that the rise in material costs will stabilize in the first quarter of 2022. We will
closely monitor the customers” demand as well as the production costs and will increase our
investment in relevant equipment and resources as appropriate to cope with the increasing
demands in the US. We will continue to explore opportunities in the growing Mattress-in-a—
Box market and to diversify our customer base in order to maintain our position as one of the
leading experts in visco-elastic health and wellness products in the US and the retail markets in

Hong Kong and the PRC.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Prospects” above, the Group does not have other

plans for material investments or capital assets.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's listed securities during the Reporting Period.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On |l March 2022, Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane Technology Limited* (B35 (#171) &
BRI B PR /A B)) entered into a supplemental agreement with the purchaser of 51%
equity interest in Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co. Ltd. to revise the payment arrangement of the

fourth instalment of the consideration for the disposal as follows:

(i) RMB22,000,000 of the fourth instalment shall be paid by |5 March 2022;

(i) RMBI0,000,000 of the fourth instalment shall be paid by 15 March 2023; and

(i) the remaining balance of RMB25,000,000 of the fourth instalment shall be paid by 5
March 2024,

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

together with the payable interest which shall accrue from and including the Second Payment
Due Date (as defined in the original sale and purchase agreement for the disposal) until
and including the respective dates of actual payments as set out in (i), (i) and (iii) above

respectively at the rate of 3% per annum.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the employee headcount of the Group was 3,258 (FY2020:
2,799) and the total staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration and share option
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$542.2 million for the Reporting Period (FY2020:
approximately HK$437.1 million). The increase in staff costs was primarily due to increase in

headcount.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages commensurate with industry practice
and provides various fringe benefits to employees including housing and travel allowances
depending on their grade and ranking within the Group. The Group also maintains medical
insurance for the benefit of its employees. The Group conducts induction training for all of its
new employees and on-going training from time to time during their employment. The nature
of training offered depends on their specific field of operation. The Group also operates an
employee incentive scheme pursuant to which rewards take the form of promotions, salary

raises and monetary bonuses, and a share option scheme.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEHREERE

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company who
held office during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAM Chi Fan, aged 63

Mr: Lam is a co-founder of the Group, the Chairman of the Group and an executive Director:
Mr. Lam is also the chairman of the Company's nomination committee and a member of
the Company's remuneration committee. Mr. Lam was appointed to the Board in June 2012.
Mr. Lam is responsible for formulation of the overall business strategies of the Group. He is
also responsible for the business planning and management of the Group. Mr: Lam s also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 20 years' experience in the
polyurethane foam business. Prior to founding the Group in January 2000, he was a director
of Luen Tai Component Limited, a company engaging in the sales of foam products, from
March 1991 to July 1996. He is a member of the |3th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Jiashan, Zhejiang Province Committee, the vice president of the Shau Kei Wan
District of the Scout Association of Hong Kong, an affiliated supervisor of the Huangpu
Customs of PRC and the president of the Dongguan City Tang Xia Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment. Mr. Lam is the uncle of Mr Cheung Tung, the President and an
executive Director; the father of Mr Lam Sze Chiu, a senior management member of the

Group; and a cousin of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director.

CHEUNG Tung, aged 46

Mr. Cheung is the President of the Company and an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined
the Group in 2003 as the Chairman’s assistant, responsible for handling the information
technology infrastructure of the Group. He was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He is
currently responsible for the overall management and daily operations of the Group. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung assisted
in setting up C&T Solutions Limited, a company engaging in providing information technology
services, in March 2000. Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor's degree in computer engineering
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and a master's degree in business
administration jointly issued by Northwestern University and the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. Mr. Cheung was granted the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong
2014" by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr: Cheung is a nephew of Mr. Lam Chi Fan,
the Chairman and an executive Director; a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director;

and a cousin of Mr. Lam Sze Chiu, a senior management member of the Group.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report

REEHAREEFRSARERNERT
EEheREEBNEEFBNOT

HITESR

WEM 635%

MELAEXERHSRIMA AAEEE
EREVTES MEETALERBIRSA
ZEGIRRALNBDHFMEZEERE M
TERWNEFARBEMAEZERTE oMot
TEEFIAEE2EEBRE -BTE
EAEEEBRHREKREE - MELETAE
ERETHEBRAANEE MELEERR
B AR X A EER B20F &5 ° 120005
IR AERR BEIOIFIBEI96F
TBHRABAERBRARNES  ZAAK
EHRERBE - RATRARBARGE
BEMIEEERE+-EZ88HE%
E - RAEENEYEERRAIERNFE
ARENEEHSHNEERBEEEN
REETMEEIBRECEREER M
TEBBRRIE RERNTES) O
MaBiLE FEESREEREME) X
B URMEZZL BITES) NKRF o

SRIR 4658

REEAARRBDBHERPTES REL
R203FMARERBATENE B8EE
BAEENEMAMBEER KR201256A
EZAMAZEEE HREREEL2EEE
FEEREBREF-BTALERET
MEBABNEE -MAXERA RAER
200053 8 #Bh A #HC&T Solutions Limited ?
ZAEANEREEERMRT - REEE
EEBRBEABHERIEE TSI
BNEBAEABREERERZHEEEN
ITHEEETRA - RAEEESTEIER
BIEETW4FEEATFLERE o Rk
EMENTE (EERRATES) NE
FiMERZ T (BTES NRES ; R
ABLEE CEESRAEERBME) MER -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHEN Feng, aged 58

Mr. Chen is an executive Director He was appointed to the Board in June 2012. He
is responsible for the overall management of the export sales business and product
development of the Group. He is also the key executive in mapping the sales and marketing
strategies in the US through Sinomax USA Inc. (“Sinomax USA"). He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr: Chen joined the Group in January 2000 as an export sales
manager and became the vice president of the Group in 2007. He assisted in setting up
Sinomax USA, a company engaging in export sales in the US, and has been the president and
director of Sinomax USA since its establishment in 2005. Mr. Chen holds a Master of Science
degree in industrial engineering from Louisiana State University and a Bachelor of Engineering
degree in safety engineering from Beijing College of Economics, now known as Capital
University of Economics and Business. Mr. Chen is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam Fei Man,

an executive Director.

LAM Kam Cheung, aged 54

Mr Lam is an executive Director, chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company.
Mr: Lam joined the Group in May 2004 as the financial controller and was appointed to the
Board in June 2012. He was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company in August
2013 and is responsible for the financial management of the Group. Mr: Lam has over 30 years
experience in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he was an executive director
and company secretary of Yeebo (International Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0259), a listed
public company in Hong Kong, from October 1995 to May 2004. Mr. Lam holds a bachelor's
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEHREERE

LAM Fei Man, aged 47

Ms. Lam is an executive Director. She is responsible for the Group's purchasing operations. She
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Lam joined the Group in January
2000 and served as the assistant administration manager of Sinomax (Holding) Group Limited,
a predecessor company of Sinomax Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises”), until January
2003. She was appointed to the Board in June 2012. Ms. Lam has over |8 years experience
in purchasing and logistics. She holds a bachelor's degree in commerce jointly issued by the
University of Canberra and the Hong Kong Baptist University. Ms. Lam is a cousin of Mr. Lam
Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director; the daughter of a cousin of
Mr: Chen Feng, an executive Director; and an aunt of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an

executive Director,

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG Chi Keung, aged 55

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee
and corporate governance committee and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong was appointed to the Board in 4 March 2014. Mr.Wong is currently an
executive director and the chief financial officer of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3322), a listed public company in Hong Kong. He was previously the chief financial
officer of Besunyen Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 0926) from September 201 | to
September 2013 and China Dongxiang (Group) Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from May 2007
to April 2010, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Between June 2002 and
June 2006, Mr. Wong was a senior finance manager of China Netcom Group Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited (a company previously listed in Hong Kong (former stock code: 0906)
which subsequently merged with China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 0762),
a listed public company in Hong Kong). Between July 1989 and December 1999, Mr. Wong
was employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers, an international public accounting firm, in Hong
Kong as an audit manager. Mr Wong holds a bachelor's degree in business administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in business administration
from the Australian Graduate School of Management, jointly issued by the University of New
South Wales and the University of Sydney. Mr.Wong is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon, aged 63

Professor Lam is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
corporate governance committee of the Company. Professor Lam is the Professor of
Management and Strategy at the Faculty of Business and Economics, The University of Hong
Kong. He is also director of the Centre of Asian Entrepreneurship and Business Values and lan
Davies Endowed Professor in Ethics. Before joining the University of Hong Kong, Professor
Lam had worked as a management consultant and as a regional manager for a bank. He has
gained extensive experience in the area of corporate governance, strategy development
and corporate finance. Professor Lam is the independent non-executive director of Kwan
On Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 01559),
Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 03366), Qingci Games Inc. (listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 06633) and Jacobson Pharma Corporation Limited (listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02633).

ZHANG HWO Jie, aged 59

Mr. Zhang is an independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit committee
and the corporate governance committee of the Company. Mr Zhang was appointed to
the Board in March 2014. Mr. Zhang is currently the chairman of EVA Precision Industrial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 838), a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang has more
than 25 years of experience in marketing, strategic planning and corporate management in
manufacturing industry. Mr. Zhang was granted with the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong" by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2008, and was bestowed as an honorary
fellow by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in 2014. He is currently
the president honoris causa of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, the honorary chairman
of The Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association and the honorary president of Hong
Kong Mould and Product Technology Association.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEHREERE

WU Tak Lung, aged 56

Mr.Wu is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee, the
corporate governance committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Wu
was appointed to the Board in March 2014. MrWu had worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
an international accounting firm, for five years and was then employed in several companies
in Hong Kong as head of corporate finance and/or executive director. Mr. Wu had over 10
years' experience in the corporate finance field. Mr. Wu currently serves as an independent
non-executive director of Henan Jinma Energy Company Limited (stock code: 6885), Minth
Group Limited (stock code: 425), Sinopharm Group Co. Ltd (stock code: 1099), Kam Hing
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2307) and Zhongguancun Science-Tech Leasing
Co Ltd (stock code: 1601), all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu
holds a bachelor's degree in business administration in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist
University and a master's degree in business administration jointly issued by the University of
Manchester and the University of Wales. Mr. Wu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and he is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered

Secretaries and the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Moreover; in the last three years, he was an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Media Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1000) and China Machinery Engineering Corporation. He was also an independent
director of Olympic Circuit Technology Co, Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 603920). On 10 February 2022, the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange issued a statement in which, among others, certain members and former members
of the board of Beijing Media Corporation Limited (stock code: 1000) have been criticized,
details of which in respect of MrWu (as a former independent non-executive director of such

company) are set out in the Company's announcement dated 4 February 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LAM Sze Chiu, aged 39

Mr. Lam is the general manager of Sinohome Household Products (Shenzhen) Ltd. (“Sinomax
Shenzhen"). He is responsible for the supervision of the daily operations of Sinomax Shenzhen.
Mr. Lam joined the Group in 2007 and has been working as the marketing director of the
Group from 2012 to 2016. He was responsible for developing and communicating marketing
strategies and coordinating marketing functions of the Group. Mr: Lam also participated in the
research and development of the Group's products, and was the winner of German Red Dot
Design Award. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Arts degree with honours from York University in
Toronto, Canada. Mr. Lam was appointed as the Chairman of The Youth Club of Hong Kong
Furniture Association and The Hong Kong Overseas Chinese General Youth Association and
a member of the Fujian Youth Federation in 2017, a member of the Youth Committee of the
China Furniture & Decoration Chamber of Commerce in 2018, a member of the Committee
of the All-China Federation of Returned Overseas in 2019, the Chairman of Guangdong
Furnishing Industry Federation and the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations in 2020, and the Vice-Chairman of the China Furniture & Decoration Chamber of
Commerce since 2021. Mr. Lam is the son of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman and an executive

Director; and the cousin of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEhEHREERE

QIAN Hong Xiang, aged 58

Mr Qian is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and he is responsible for the
supervision of the daily operation and management of Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co.
Limited (“Sinomax Kuka"). Since 2005, he has been the general manager of Sinomax Kuka. Mr.
Qian joined the Group in 2000 and served as the general manager and chief of foam research.
He also serves as the first rotating chairman of the China Polyurethane Foam Alliance, the
vice officer of the National Standardization Management Committee of Plastic Products
(SACITCA48/SC2), the vice officer of the foam committee of the China Polyurethane Industry
Association, and the vice president of the international journal “Polyurethane Industry”, the
vice president of the foam committee of the China Plastics Processing Industry Association,
and he has been employed as a foam plastic expert by the China Polyurethane Industry

Association and the China Plastics Processing Industry Association for 15 years.

Mr. Qian graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology in 1988 and is a senior economist.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qian worked as a factory manager and foam researcher in East
Asia (Huazi Group) Co, Ltd. (a2 GEEEME) BRAE) from 1993 to 2000. Mr. Qian has
more than 30 years of experience in foam production and research, and has participated in
the formulation of more than || standards, including 4 national standards. He has won the
third prize of scientific and technological progress awarded by China National Light Industry
Federation, the Chinese Standard Innovation Contribution Award jointly issued by the General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the People's Republic
of China and the Standardization Administration of China, and the advanced worker in the
plastic industry of China awarded by the China Plastics Processing Industry Association.
Mr Qian was also awarded with a number of honors such as an outstanding contributor
to the standardization work of the National Plastic Products Standardization Management
Committee, a provincial-level high-end talent in Jiaxing, a “Chaoxiang Special Support”

category | talent in Haining, and a model worker and an outstanding entrepreneur in Haining.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

YUE Wai Fun, aged 47

Ms. Yue was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax Health & Household Products
Limited (“Sinomax Health™) in June 2012. Ms. Yue is responsible for the supervision of the
daily operation and management of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue joined the Group in 2004 and
served as marketing manager and brand & marketing manager prior to being appointed as the
general manager of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from

the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

CHEN Xiao Hua, aged 60

Mr: Chen joined the Group in 2013 and was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax
(Zhejiang) Polyurethane Technology Limited (previously known as Sinomax (Zhejiang)
Polyurethane Household Products Limited* (B238528 (1) RRERERARBRAR)
("“Sinomax Zhejiang") in October 2013. Mr. Chen is responsible for supervision of the daily
operation and management of Sinomax Zhejiang. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was
engaged in foam manufacturing from 2002 to 2013 and was a general manager of Sinomax
Polyurethane (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr
Cheung Tung and Mr. Chen Feng, the executive Directors, and Ms. Cheung Shui Ying, the
mother of Mr. Cheung Tung,. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in foam production
and research. Mr. Chen completed a business administration course for company executives in

Zhejiang University in November 2006.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFHREE

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 146 of this report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.4 cent per ordinary shares
of nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company (“Share”), amounting
to approximately HK$7 million to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 July 2022. The final dividend is subject to the approval of
the Directors’ recommendation by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 22 June 2022 (“AGM"). The final dividend will be paid on 22 July
2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment
properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 15, 16 and 17 to

the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable and other donations amounted to

approximately HK$102,755.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Reporting Period are set

out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Directors consider that the Company's reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
comprise the share premium and the accumulated profits which amounted to approximately
HK$5334 million as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
HK$537.1 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
Shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme, the details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option” in the section headed "Directors’ Report” in this report and note 30
to the consolidated financial statements. Save as aforesaid, the Company has not entered into

any equity-linked agreement during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman of the Board)
CHEUNG Tung

CHEN Feng

LAM Kam Cheung

LAM Fei Man

Independent non-executive Directors

WONG Chi Keung
LAM Sing Kwong, Simon
ZHANG HWO Jie
WU Tak Lung
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, three Directors, namely, Mr. Lam
Chi Fan, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and MrWu Tak Lung will retire at the forthcoming AGM, and being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Company considers such

Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any member of the
Group which is not terminable within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this report, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company or its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
any Director or the Director’s connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Reporting

Period.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the controlling Shareholders,
namely, Sinomax Enterprises, Mr: Lam Chi Fan, Mr: Cheung Tung, Mr: Chen Feng and Ms. Cheung
Shui Ying, in respect of their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-competition as
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2014 (the “Prospectus”) for the
Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The articles of association of the Company provided that every Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him/her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted.

The Company has arranged for approved Directors' liability insurance policies to protect the
Directors against potential costs and liability arising from claims brought against the Directors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
of the Group is formulated and reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company,
having regards to the comparable market practice, market conditions, individual performance
and the Group's operating results. Details of the remunerations of the Directors are set out in
note | | to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning in Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or (c)
were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuer (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ERHRTEE

AP

AR EMBERRKRR BIREBEE MK
I~ SRR ~ R o A R SRk B %
T) RBREHETE AT BIB014F67
30HZERER (BRER) FEFHF
AR EMEEREHNFERIS

EEFRERERESFRERR

ARBRAERRE SRLEFMURE
E5HHEAHDE FRRENMNSE) 1T
NERMSERER 3 RSRZ 22—
BRAEHFRUARDEEETESRHE
fRag °

AABERHEEFNEFEERE U
REEFENAERHHBESFRENRE
FFEENEBEEERKER.

MR R

ARABDHFNEEENERIELRTSIE
B mHERBAARRRFAERNESE
BR HNERBREIRADEEAEEZES
EREREEENHFMBIRREB -EF
OB RE N RSB RAM T -

ERNRMAIER R

P01 12A31 B A AR EERRETH
ABRARBZETMER LB (EERE
BERIEST I =R S RBER (85 KR
B1&61)) EXVER) 2 B1H BRI N ERE
BHEBQREEFNBERAEXVEE
7RSI T B G AN B KB 3 Fr B9 1
ma ke (BERRES RPERABRK
NERATEEREENERRLR) ;)R
BRSNS RASEUEBB LR AR
MHAAABFEZERMUERIXE ;
S(c)iRIE EMRAIMERRHFTE EMEITA
EEETEARGNBRESTR (TEEST
Bl) BHNEARABRBRFANERI AR
LI

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

2



' DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFHREE

30

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares R RARRRR RIS
Interests in the Company REABZ D
Approximate
percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest Number of shares (" shareholding®
EEH% mtE BRI ®E" BukERSLE®
LAM Chi Fan Founder of a discretionary trust 1,275,906,000 (L)® 7291%
MER 2REFENMIA

Beneficial owner 1,500,000 (L)@ 0.09%

BmBEBA
CHEUNG Tung Beneficial owner 1,500,000 (L)@ 0.09%
RAR BmBEBA
CHEN Feng Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)® 0.06%
BRAR BmBEBA
LAM Fei Man Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)® 0.06%
MER BmBEBA
LAM Kam Cheung Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)® 0.06%
MR BB A
WONG Chi Keung Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
TER BB A
LAM Sing Kwong, Simon Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
MREELE BmBEBA
ZHANG HWO Jie Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
SR BmBEBA
WU Tak Lung Beneficial owner 300,000 (L)@ 0.02%
e BB A
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Notes:

The letter “L" denotes long position.

The percentage is compiled based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 shares of the

Company (the “Shares”) in issue as at 31 December 2021.

These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises. Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to
37.5% by Chi Fan Holding Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 100% by The Frankie
Trust. The Frankie Trust is a discretionary family trust established by LAM Chi Fan as settlor
and Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited (“Vistra") acting as the trustee. The beneficiaries of The Frankie

Trust are LAM Chi Fan and his family members.

Each of LAM Chi Fan, CHEUNG Tung, CHEN Feng, LAM Fei Man and LAM Kam Cheung,
each being an executive Director; has been granted share options to subscribe for 1,500,000,
1,500,000, 1,000,000, 1,000,000 and 1,000,000 Shares, respectively, under the post-IPO
share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 4 March 2014 (the “Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme”), all of which are still outstanding. Each of WONG Chi Keung,
LAM Sing Kwong Simon, ZHANG HWO Jie and WU Tak Lung, each being an independent
non-executive Director, has been granted share options to subscribe for 300,000 Shares

respectively, under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Long positions in associated corporation — Sinomax Enterprises

HREHEERIT S — R

Approximate

percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest Number of shares shareholding M
EENY it E RIP#E AR 2t
LAM Chi Fan Beneficiary of The Frankie Trust I5 37.5%
MER Frankiel55EH952 & A

CHEUNG Tung Beneficiary of The Cheung's Family Trust 5 12.5%
RAR REKEEENZ @A

CHEN Feng Beneficiary of The Feng Chen's Family Trust 5 12.5%
B BRI EENRE

Note: The above percentage is complied based on the total number of 40 shares of Sinomax
Enterprises in issue as at 31 December 2021, and the remaining |5 shares of Sinomax
Enterprises in issue is owned by The James' Family Holding Limited, which is owned as to
1009% by The James' Family Trust. The James' Family Trust is a discretionary trust established by
CHEUNG Shui Ying, the mother of CHEUNG Tung, as settlor and Vistra acting as the trustee.

The beneficiaries of The James' Family Trust are CHEUNG Shui Ying and her family members.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the Reporting Period, had any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company
been granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under |8 years old, or
had any such rights been exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which enables the Directors, or their respective

spouse or children under 18 years old, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as

recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long positions in Shares

Name of substantial Shareholders

Nature of interest

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ERHRTEE

TERR 2D

02112831 B BEALT (FEEAR
AESEARETHAL) RGO EREKRR
PEBLBRRARBARED S RBEEG
FERHEEENELMNEZTRIXBLT :

RIREISFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares (" shareholding

TERRAE U EmtE Rix®E" BORERDLE

Sinomax Enterprises © Beneficial owner 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%

EEBRAXO BmBEBA

Chi Fan Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%
REREEED

The James' Family Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,275,906,000 (L)® 7291%
REREEED

Vistra © Trustee of various trusts 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%
ZEFENRFEA

CHEUNG ShuiYing Founder of a discretionary trust 1,275,906,000 (L) 7291%

SRIK B 2REFEMILA

LI Ching Hau Interest of spouse 1,277,406,000 (L)® 72.99%

FRE P8 m
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Notes:

The letter “L" denotes long position.

The percentage is compiled based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 Shares in issue as at

31 December 2021.

Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to 37.5%, 12.5%, 37.5% and 12.5% by Chi Fan Holding
Limited, Wing Yiu Investments Limited, The James' Family Holding Limited and Venture Win
Holdings Limited, respectively, and beneficially owned in the same proportion by The Frankie
Trust, The Cheung's Family Trust, The James" Family Trust and The Feng Chen's Family Trust,

respectively.

These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises, which is legally owned as to 37.5% by Chi Fan
Holding Limited.

These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises, which is legally owned as to 37.5% by The

James’ Family Holding Limited.

Vistra acts as the trustee of The Frankie Trust, The James" Family Trust, The Cheung's Family
Trust and The Feng Chen'’s Family Trust. The beneficiaries of The Frankie Trust are Mr. LAM Chi
Fan and his family members. The beneficiaries of The James' Family Trust are Ms. CHEUNG
Shui Ying and her family members. The beneficiaries of The Cheung's Family Trust are Mr.
CHEUNG Tung and his family members. The beneficiaries of The Feng Chen's Family Trust are
Mr. CHEN Feng and his family members.
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7. These Shares are held by Sinomax Enterprises. Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to
37.5% by The James' Family Holding Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 100% by The
James' Family Trust. The James' Family Trust is a discretionary trust established by Ms. CHEUNG
Shui Ying as settlor and Vistra acting as the trustee. The beneficiaries of The James' Family Trust
are Ms. CHEUNG ShuiYing and her family members.

8. These interests belong to Mr. LAM Chi Fan, the spouse of Ms. LI Ching Hau. Under the SFO,
Ms. LI Ching Hau is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. LAM

Chi Fan is interested.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had continuing connected transactions and
connected transactions with certain connected persons, details of which have been disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated |5 April 2021 and 7 November 2021.
Certain continuing connected transactions are exempt from one or more of the reporting,
announcement, circular (including independent financial advice), shareholders™ approval and

annual review requirements for the purpose of Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

The following are the continuing connected transactions and connected transactions of the
Group during the Reporting Period that are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements but otherwise exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules:
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Continuing Connected Transactions

()

Lease agreement between Dongguan Sinohome Limited* (B B 5 & FHin B IR
VA=) (“Dongguan Sinohome”) and Dongguan Donglian Furniture Co., Ltd.* (FZ
B1BE R A E)(“Dongguan Donglian”)

Dongguan Donglian is indirectly wholly-owned by Sinomax Enterprises, the controlling
Shareholder of the Company. Dongguan Donglian is therefore an associate of Sinomax

Enterprises and a connected person of the Company.

On 2 December 2013, Dongguan Sinohome, as tenant, entered into a lease agreement
(the “Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome”) with Dongguan Donglian, as
landlord, for the lease of certain premises situated at No. | Dajieling Road, Shahu
Village, Tang Xia Town, Dongguan, Guangdong Province, PRC (the “Dongguan
Premises”) for a term of slightly more than two years at a monthly rental of

approximately RMB695,000.

On 18 December 2015, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a renewal lease agreement
(the "Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease
of the Dongguan Premises for a term of three years commencing from | January 2016
and ending on 31 December 2018 at a monthly rental of approximately RMBI.3 million

after the expiry of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome.

On 18 December 2018, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a renewal lease agreement
(the “2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease
of the Dongguan Premises for a term of three years commencing from | January 2019
and ending on 3| December 2021 at a monthly rental of approximately RMB660,000

after the expiry of the Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement.
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(i)

On 17 November 2021, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a renewal lease agreement
(the 2022 Dongguan Lease Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease of
the Dongguan Premises for a term of one year commencing from | January 2022 and
ending on 3| December 2022 at a monthly rental of approximately RMBI,330,000
after the expiry of the 2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement.

Details of the terms of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome, the Renewal
Dongguan Lease Agreement, the 2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement, the 2022
Dongguan Lease Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were set
out in the Prospectus and the announcements of the Company dated 18 December
2015, 18 December 2018 and 17 November 2021.

The annual cap determined by the Directors with respect to the maximum annual
amount of rental payable by the Group under the 2019-2021 Donngguan Lease
Agreement for each of the years ended 3| December 2019, 2020 and 2021 was
RMB7.9 million, respectively. The rental amount paid by the Group to Dongguan
Donglian pursuant to the 2019-2021 Dongguan Lease Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately RMB7.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$9.7 million).

Sale of foam products by Sinomax Trading to Studio Moderna S.A. (“Studio
Moderna”)

Studio Moderna is the holding company of SMSA North America Holdings, LLC,
which in turn holds 48.69% equity interest in Dormeo North America, LLC, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. As a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company, Studio Moderna is a connected person of the Company.
Each subsidiary of Studio Moderna is an associate of Studio Moderna and hence a

connected person of the Company.

(i)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ERHRTEE

2021511 B 178 > 2019 F202
FREHERZERE REEHX
ERRMEERTEARTREE]
UEERERZ (NNEREHEER
#Z)HEBAA—F 820251 81H
BENENAIBLE - EAHEEA
# NE1,330,0007T 0

EMR=ERXERARHEERE &
BETHAEHE 2019FE2021F8
SHERERNERZHERZEZ
BERRHEEBETHETRZ ZHBHEN
RABZBRERKBEAA20I55F12
BI18H 2018128 18H K2021 &1 1
BI7TEB A

EERNEE2019F  20204F K£2021
FNANBLEEESEFEAEERE
WIOFERNNFREHEGREMDN
EEFEHEEENEE LIRD 5
BARBIIBEIT - REE2002IF2
B3IBLEFE AEERB0I9FE
W FREHEREARERE ST
MESANARKIIBEET FHER
#9788 ETT) o

FEEE B B [aStudio Moderna S.A. (TStudio
Moderna ) i &8 % Edn

Studio ModernazSMSA North America
Holdings, LLCZ ¥R 2 &) » MISMSA
North America Holdings, LLCIFAE 7
ANE)NEZIEZEN B A B Dormeo
North America, LLC 948.69% R o 3
FStudio ModernaZ & /A B —fE Y /@
NEMEERE > Studio ModernaZy 7
AR BIFEFE A T o Studio ModernalE T
E B B A B AStudio Modernaly B
BALD BAXABNEEAL

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

37



y

38

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFHREE

On 30 December 2016, Sinomax Trading entered into a renewed procurement
agreement (the 2017 Renewal Procurement Agreement”) with Studio Moderna
to govern the sale and purchase of foams products between Sinomax Trading and
Studio Moderna for the term commencing from | January 2017 and ending on 3|
December 2017 after the expiry of the procurement agreement entered into with
Studio Moderna in 2016 (the "Procurement Agreement”). Parties to the Procurement
Agreement would, from time to time, agree to a price list setting out the price,
specifications and delivery schedule in respect of each type of foam products, which the

purchase orders must adhere to.

On 19 December 2017, Sinomax Trading and Studio Moderna entered into a renewed
procurement agreement (the “2018 Renewal Procurement Agreement’) in relation
to the continuing supply of foam products by the Group to Studio Moderna and
its subsidiaries for the term commencing from | January 2018 and ending on 3|
December 2018.

On 17 May 2019, Sinomax Trading and Studio Moderna entered into a renewed
procurement agreement (the “2019-2020 Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement’)
in relation to the continuing supply of foam products by the Group to Studio Moderna
and its subsidiaries for the term commencing from | January 2019 and ending on 31
December 2020.

On 15 April 2021, Sinomax Trading and Studio Moderna entered into a renewed
procurement agreement (the “2021-2023 Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement”)
in relation to the continuing supply of foam products by the Group to Studio Moderna
and its subsidiaries for the term commencing from | January 2021 and ending on 31
December 2023.
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(i)

Details of the terms of the Procurement Agreement, the 2017 Renewal Procurement
Agreement, the 2018 Renewal Procurement Agreement, the 2019-2020 Studio
Moderna Procurement Agreement, the 2021-2023 Studio Moderna Procurement
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 12 April 2016, 30 December 2016, 6 January
2017, 19 December 2017, 17 May 2019 and |5 April 2021, respectively.

The annual cap determined by the Directors in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate value for such continuing connected transactions under the 2021-2023
Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement for each of the years ended 31 December
2021, 2022 and 2023 was USD9 million, respectively. The total amount of sales to
Studio Moderna pursuant to the 2021-2023 Studio Moderna Procurement Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately USD3.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$27.7 million).

Sale of foams by the Company to Gu Jia Household Co., Limited* (BB X ERHE
PRZE]) (“Gu Jia Household”)

Sinomax Kuka is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is
owned as to 60% by the Group and 40% by Gu Jia Household. As a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, Gu Jia Household is a connected person
of the Company. As such, each subsidiary of Gu Jia Household is an associate of Gu Jia

Household and hence a connected person of the Company.

(i)
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On 30 December 2016, Haining Sinomax Trading Co. Limited (“Haining Sinomax’)
and Sinomax Kuka entered into a procurement agreement (the “Original Haining
Procurement Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household and its subsidiaries to govern
the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams between Haining Sinomax, Sinomax
Kuka and Gu Jia Household and its subsidiaries for the term commencing from |
January 2017 and ending on 3| December 2017, after the expiry of the procurement
agreement between, among others, Haining Sinomax and Gu Jia Household entered
into in 2016. On | November 2017, the Original Haining Procurement Agreement was
superseded by a revised procurement agreement (the “Revised Haining Procurement

Agreement”).

On 30 December 2016, Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane Household Products Limited*

(B8 (D) RREXRERARBRAE) (‘Sinomax Zhejiang”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a renewed procurement
agreement (the “2017 Renewal Zhejiang Procurement Agreement”) with Hangzhou
Gu Jia Bedding Co, Limited* (INEEXBABRAE) (“Gu Jia Bedding"), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Gu Jia Household, to govern the sale and purchase of
polyurethane foams between Sinomax Zhejiang and Gu Jia Bedding for the term
commencing from | January 2017 and ending on 31 December 2017, after the expiry
of the procurement agreement between Sinomax Zhejiang and Gu Jia Bedding entered
into in 2016.

On 19 December 2017, in view of the prospective expiry of the Original Haining
Procurement Agreement (as superseded by the Revised Haining Procurement
Agreement) and the 2017 Renewal Zhejiang Procurement Agreement on 3|
December 2017, the Company as supplier entered into a new procurement agreement
(the "“2018-2020 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household as
purchaser for the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams for the three financial years

commencing from | January 2018 and ending on 3| December 2020.
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On 18 December 2020, in view of the prospective expiry of the 2018-2020 Gu Jia
Procurement Agreement on 31 December 2020, the Company as supplier entered
into a renewal agreement (the “Original 2021-2023 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement’’)
with Gu Jia Household as purchaser for the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams
for the three financial years commencing from | January 2021 and ending on 3l
December 2023.

On 17 November 2021, the Original 2021-2023 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement was
superseded by a revised procurement agreement (the “Revised 2021-2023 Gu Jia
Procurement Agreement”) to revise the annual caps in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate amounts in respect of the transactions under the Original 2021-2023 Gu
Jia Procurement Agreement based on internal estimates and the anticipated growth in

business.

Details of the terms of the Original 2021-2023 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement and the
Revised 2021-2023 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18 December
2020, 29 December 2020 and |7 November 2021.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of the annual maximum
aggregate value for such continuing connected transaction under the Revised 2021-

2023 Gu Jia Procurement Agreement are as follows:

For the year ended 3| December 2021
BE2021F 12831 HIEEE

For the year ending 31 December 2022
BE02F 12831 HIEEE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ERHRTEE

ER0I8EE200FBRIXERER
1220205 12831 B @/ 1220205 12
B8 RNAB (FAMER) BEX
RE(EABR) TUEEREZ (TR
2021 EF03FEERIXBWE) 0K
AEMBE202IFIBIHEE2023EI2
B3BEN=EMBFERTRRER
KNEE-

2021511 BI17H > R2021 552023
FEFXEEBEBEE —DEEITNEE
B (MEE:T2021 EE203FER R
BinE) B URBREhEt B
BRI R B FR202 1 FEE20235F
BEXREHGRETRZNEFERSR
BENFE LR

BE202 1 FRZ203FBER KB HZRL
B0 I EE203EBRFXEHEN
BRUARBIEERETZRF RS
HNAABHEFA2020F 128188
2020 12829 B2021 11 BI7THZ
NG

BEEFEEET2021 FE2023F AR IF
BHZ T ERBEREXINEER
SHEETENEELRNT :

For the year ending 31 December 2023
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RMB630.0 million
ARE00BE T
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The total amount of sales to Gu Jia Household pursuant to the Revised 2021-2023 Gu
Jia Procurement Agreement for the year ended 3| December 2021 was approximately

RMB418.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$504.5 million).

Pursuant to Rule [4AS55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions for the Reporting Period and

confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:
(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms; and

() inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions Under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued the unqualified letters
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected

transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Copies of the auditor's letters have been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Connected Transaction

(i) Lease agreement between Sinomax Kuka and Zhejiang Puruimei Industry Co., Ltd.*

(W I B = EEERAE)(“Zhejiang Puruimei”)

Sinomax Kuka is an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Zhejiiang
Puruimei is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr: Qian Hong Xiang (“Mr. Qian”), who is (i)
a director and a substantial shareholder of Trade Sincere Limited, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company; and (i) a director of Sinomax Kuka, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Zhejiang Puruimei is therefore an associate

of Mr. Qian and a connected person of the Company.
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On | January 2018, Sinomax Kuka entered into a lease agreement (the “2018-2020
Haining Lease Agreement”) with Zhejiang Puruimei, pursuant to which Zhejiang
Puruimei agreed to lease to Sinomax Kuka certain buildings and warehouses situated
on the parcel of land situated at No. 99, Qi Chao Road, Haining Agriculture Foreign
Integrated Development Area, Zheijiang, the PRC* (REIATI &8 E B E MR
& B & BUEEZ995%) (the “Land”) with an aggregate area of approximately 18,209
sq.m. for a fixed term commencing from | January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2020 at a monthly rent (exclusive of management fees and other outgoing charges and
expenses) of RMB411,522.80 (equivalent to approximately HK$452,675.08), subject to

an increase at the rate of 5% annually.

On 15 November 2019, Sinomax Kuka entered into a supplemental lease agreement
(the “2019 Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement”) with Zhejiang Puruimei, pursuant
to which Zhejiang Purimei agreed to lease to Sinomax Kuka: (i) the second floor of a
certain building situated on the Land with an aggregate area of approximately 2,706
sqm. for a fixed term commencing from 16 November 2019 to 30 August 2020;
and (i) certain buildings and warehouses situated on the Land with an aggregate
area of approximately 6,469 sqm. for a fixed term commencing from 16 November
2019 to 31 December 2020, at a monthly rent (exclusive of management fees and
other outgoing charges and expenses) of RMB48,302.10 (equivalent to approximately
HK$53,132.31) and RMB149,242.88 (equivalent to approximately HK$164,167.17),

respectively.

On 18 December 2020, in view of the prospective expiry of the 2018-2020 Hainnig
Lease Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement)
on 31 December 2020, Sinomax Kuka entered into a lease agreement (the “2021-
2023 Haining Lease Agreement”) with Zhejiang Puruimei, pursuant to which Zhejiang
Puruimei agreed to lease to Sinomax Kuka certain buildings and warehouses situated
on the Land with an aggregate area of approximately 23,946.9 sqm. for a fixed term
commencing from | January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023 at a monthly
rent (exclusive of management fees and other outgoing charges and expenses) of
RMB592,097.41 (equivalent to approximately HK$696,585.19), subject to an annual

increase at the rate of 5%.
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On 17 November 2021, Sinomax Kuka entered into a supplemental agreement (the
2021 Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement’) with Zhejiang Puruimei, pursuant
to which Zhejiang Purimei agreed to lease to Sinomax Kuka: (i) certain buildings and
warehouses situated on the Land with an aggregate area of approximately 526
sq.m. for a term of 25 months commencing on | December 2021 and ending on 31
December 2023 at a monthly rent (exclusive of management fees and other outgoing
charges and expenses) of RMB51,416 (equivalent to approximately HK$62,702), and
(i) certain portion of the second floor of a certain building situated on the Land
with an aggregate area of approximately 1,801 sqm. for a term of seven months
commencing on | December 2021 and ending on 30 June 2022 at a monthly
rent (exclusive of management fees and other outgoing charges and expenses) of
RMB35,480 (equivalent to approximately HK$43,268).

Pursuant to HKFRS 16, leases shall be recognised as right-of-use assets in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position for the accounting period on or after
| January 2019. Accordingly, the entering into of the 2018-2020 Haining Lease
Agreement, the 2019 Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement, the 2021-2023 Haining
Lease Agreement and the 2021 Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement by the Group
shall be regarded as an one-off acquisition of assets of the Group under Rule [4A.24(1)

of the Listing Rules.

Details of the terms of the 2018-2020 Haining Lease Agreement, the 2019
Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement, the 2021-2023 Haining Lease Agreement and
the 2021 Supplemental Haining Lease Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18 November
2019, 18 December 2020, 24 December 2020 and |7 November 2021.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules in respect of all the continuing connected transactions and
connected transaction entered into by the Group during the Reporting Period and all of the
above continuing connected transactions and connected transaction were entered into in the

manners stated above.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the Group's financial
performance for the Reporting Period using financial key performance indicators can be found
in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on

pages 6 to 7 and pages 10 to |7 of this report, respectively.

Environmental Policy and Performance

In conducting its business, the Group's objective is to minimise the adverse effects of
its operations on the environment. In addition, in order to comply with the applicable
environmental protection laws, the Group has established an environmental management
system in its operations in accordance with ISO 14001:2015 international standards. The
environmental management system will be reviewed from time to time in order to reduce
risks related to environmental issues. The Group has complied with a number of PRC
environmental protection laws in connection with water pollutants, air pollutants, solid waste
pollutants, as well as noise pollution generated from its manufacturing operations. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations
on environmental laws and was not subject to any fines or legal action resutting from incidents
of non-compliance with any applicable PRC environmental regulations, nor was there any

threatened or pending action by any PRC environmental regulatory authority.

Details of the Group's environmental policy and performance are set out in the Environmental,

Social and Governance Report on pages 80 to |31 of this report.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Reporting Period, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant

impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers, Customers, and other Stakeholders

Details of the Group's relationship with employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 80 to

131 of this report.
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(1) Risk of customer concentration

Sales to the Group's top five customers accounted for approximately 36.5% (FY2020:
37.1%) of the Group's total revenue, with one customer in the Group's foam
sales segment accounting for approximately |1.8% (FY2020: export sales segment

accounting for approximately 10.0%) of the Group's total revenue.

The Group has not entered into any long-term agreements with these top five
customers. Their purchases are on an order-by-order basis. The Group cannot
guarantee that it will be able to maintain stable relationships with its key customers.
A substantial decrease of purchases could adversely affect product sales, financial

condition and results of operations of the Group.
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The Group will continue to diversify its customer portfolio by actively searching for
new customers and seeking opportunities for strategic acquisition in order to capture

more customers in different markets.

Risk of changing in the economic conditions

To manage the risk of economic fluctuation in the world, the Group is trying to
diversify its investments geographically. In particular;, the Group's factories in the US and

Vietnam have started operations and are expected to generate profit in the future.

Risk of deterioration in the value of the Group’s brands

The Group is dependent on the goodwill in its brands for the continued success and
growth of its business. In particular; the Group relies on sales of its “Sinomax" branded
products in Hong Kong and the PRC, and products under other brands owned by or
licensed to it in other territories. Adverse publicity or regulatory or legal action against
the Group could damage the reputation and brand images of and discourage long-term

demand for the Group's products.

The Group continues to adopt its strategy to promote its brand names through
different marketing schemes. The Group also uses multi brands strategy to promote
more brands like “Zeosleep”, “PureLUX", “Dream Serenity”, “ComforZen”, “Spa
Supreme” and “Tung Ah" so as to reduce the risk of reliance on and deterioration of a

particular brand.
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Risk of volatility in the pricing of raw materials

The Group is exposed to commodity price risks resulting from fluctuation of prices
of chemicals including polypropylene glycol and toluene diisocyanate, which are the
principal raw materials for the production of polyurethane foams. The Group has not
entered into any long-term agreement with any of its raw materials suppliers, nor has
it entered into any hedging arrangements or transactions to reduce the exposure to

fluctuations in raw materials costs.

The Group implements a cost-plus pricing policy in the segments of export sales and
polyurethane foam sales. Price quotations for orders are negotiated in an order-by-
order basis. In determining the product prices, the Group usually takes into account
various factors such as production costs (including costs of raw materials), production
cycle, transportation costs, product types, specification, market price and global

economic conditions.

Risk of compliance with laws and regulations

The Group's business is subject to Hong Kong, PRC, Vietnam and US laws and
regulations. Any failure to comply with laws and regulations could result in legal
proceedings and expose us to civil and/or criminal liabilities. The long term
development of our business largely depends on a steady legal environment.
Unanticipated changes in policies and regulatory practices may adversely affect our
business. The Group will continue to manage and ensure the highest compliance

standard with first-rate independent legal services.
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PROSPECTS

A description of the likely future development in the Group's business is provided in the

section headed "“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 17 of this report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 4 March 2014, the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme becomes valid and effective on 10 July
2014 and will expire on the business day preceding the tenth anniversary thereof. Subject
to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, grantees may exercise the share options
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the period commencing

from the date of grant and up to such expiry date as determined by the Board.

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to
eligible participants with an opportunity to acquire the equity interests in the Company, for
their contributions to, and continuing efforts to promote the interest of the Group or for such
other purposes as the board of directors of the Company may approve from time to time,
linking their interests with the interests of the Group and thereby attracting and encouraging

those parties to work better for the interests of the Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any

of its subsidiaries.
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On 26 January 2017 (the "Date of Grant”), the Company granted a total of 30,800,000 share
options to 58 eligible participants, representing approximately 1.76% of the 1,750,002,000
shares in issue as at the Date of Grant. All 30,800,000 share options are valid for a period of
5 years commencing from the relevant vesting date and shall entitle the grantee to subscribe
for one Share upon exercise of such option at a subscription price of HK$0.69 per Share.The
exercise price of HK$0.69 per Share represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HK$0.69
per Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on 26 January 2017,
being the Date of Grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$0.676 per Share as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding

the Date of Grant; and (iii) HK$0.1, the nominal value of the Share.

As at the date of this report, the total number of securities available for issue under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme was 145,400,000 Shares, representing approximately 8.31% of
the total number of issued Shares as at the date of this report, and no Share has been issued
and the Company has not received any monetary or other consideration under the Post-IPO

Share Option Scheme.

The following tables disclose details of movements of share options granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

R2017%F1 8268 (REBHE)) > AREA
58 B ERBEER H G 130,800,000 FE
B (B2 H B ERE 8171,750,002,0008% B%
1R491.76% ° FF 530,800,000 B PR 1 B 48 R
558 B HAE A RS F K T AR AR
TEZERERUSRKH0.69E TR
BEIRBE—RERD SROOBTNTHFEE
ABLUTERSE (()N2017F1 8260 (BMRH
HER) MR FTE HRERFTHNSR0.698
TRHE (W EERE BB AEE:R
BRI ESHRERASANEREMN FHYR
m{B0.6768 7T 5 K (i) EEO. I BT o

BEARSBH REER2HAEE
BRERESITTFTETNESBESD
145,400,0008& B 17> M E AR E BB ETT
RHBERS3I% BEXEBEMRERES
RARBERBRESEEZTEELAT
BERILIWEEMERNEMAE-

TERRERBERHEESRERESS
RENEREZEFE

Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding

Exercise asat during the during the during the asat

price per | Jan Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 Dec

Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercise period Share 2021 Period Period Period 2021

JLAE:3 IR

IR RESMA RERSEA RESHER 2A3IE

AR RHEH BES 118 BRITEE  HATE R X% i ER{THE

LAM Chi Fan (Chairman) 26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
WER (EFR) WIEIBBE  WITEIFWE- 0I8EIF26H-
0185 1726H 03E1A25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 -26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
WIEIRNE  W0ITEIRBA- 01915260~
019F1826H 200451A25H

CHEUNG Tung (President) 26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
R @5 WIEIBBE  WITEIFWE- WI8EIF26H-
0185 1726H W03 1A25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 -26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 750,000 - - - 750,000
WIEIRNE  W0ITEIRBA- 019F1B26H -
019F182%6H 200451A25H
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Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding

Exercise asat during the during the during the asat

price per | Jan Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 Dec

Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercise period Share 2021 Period Period Period 2021

#0215 0215

IBIR RERESEA REEHER RESER 1A3IH

EBEA RHAH FRES 18 SROTHEE  HROE By ESd I HERTE

CHEN Feng 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
MRiE WI7EIBWE  017FEIBWA- 20181 B26H-
2018% 1 F26H 2031 F25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H

LAM Kam Cheung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
iR WI7TEIBWE  017FEIBWA- 20181 B26H-
2018%1F26H 203 1F25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26R 202441 F25H

LAM Fei Man 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 -26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
HER WIEIFWA  WITEIFWA- 2018E1B26H~
20181 526H 203EIF25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017-26Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 500,000 - - - 500,000
WI7EIB2%E  017FIF6H~ 2019518268~
2019F1526H 204E1525H

WONG Chi Keung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 - 26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
T5R WI7EIB2%E  017FIF6H- 20185 1826H~
20181 F26H 203EIF25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WI7EIB2%E  017FIF6H~ 2019518268~
019F1526H 204E 15258

LAM Sing Kwong, Simon 26 Jan 2017 26)an 2017 -26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
Eib WIEIRWA  WITEIFWA- 018E1B2H~
20181 526H 203EIF25H

26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017-26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 - 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WI7EIB2%E  017FIF26H~ 2019518268~
2019F1526H 204E 15258
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Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise asat during the during the during the asat
price per | Jan Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 Dec
Grantee Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercise period Share 2021 Period Period Period 2021
#0215 0215
IBIR  REEHN RESHEA  RESHR 1A3IH
ERA REAEH FEH 18 SROTHEE  HROE b ESd I HERTE
ZHANG HWO Jie 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
SR WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 20181 B26H-
2018% 1 F26H 2031 F25H
26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H
WU Tak Lung 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
R WI7TEIBWE  017FEIBWA- 20181 B26H-
2018%1F26H 203 1F25H
26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 150,000 - - - 150,000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26R 202441 F25H
Other employees 26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2018 26 Jan 2018 - 25 Jan 2023 069 6,650,000 - (150000) - 6500000
(in aggregate) WITEIBWE  2017FIFWE- 0I8FIF26H-
HitES (BH) 201818267 203E1A25A
26 Jan 2017 26Jan 2017 =26 Jan 2019 26 Jan 2019 = 25 Jan 2024 069 6,650,000 - (150000) - 6500000
WITEIFWE  WITEIFWE- 2019F1B26H-
2019%1F26H 202441 F25H
Total 20500000 - (300,000) - 20200000
ast
Number of share options 20,200,000

exercisable at

31 December 2021
Ra21E128318

BfTREREYE
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Notes:

(@)  During the Reporting Period, | (FY2020: 3) eligible participant who has been granted share
options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme has ceased to become eligible participant

upon termination of employment and the said share options have automatically lapsed.

(b)  Other details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

() Save as disclosed above, no share option granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

was outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The articles of association of the Company and the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands do not entitle any Shareholder to any pre-emptive right or other similar rights

to subscribe for the Shares.
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PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any Shares

during the Reporting Period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. Other
than those transactions disclosed in the paragraph headed "Connected Transactions”
above, these related party transactions either did not constitute connected transaction/
continuing connected transactions or constituted connected transaction/continuing connected
transactions that were exempted from all disclosure and independent Shareholders’ approval

requirement under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 35.4% of the Group's total purchases. The Group's largest
supplier accounted for approximately 10.0% of the Group's total purchases. The average length

of relationship with the Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 10.5 years.

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 36.5% of the Group's total revenue. The Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 11.8% of the Group's total revenue. The average length

of relationship with the Group's five largest customers was approximately 8.8 years.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company) had
a beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Reporting

Period.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report

R - hEsEmR

RHRSH KRATREERNEARRE
FEE HEHBLOERRD -

MERR S

FEERKREHANETHNERFRELIRS
ZHBENGEFBRERME32 RN EX
AEX7 —REBENRZI ZF5HE
HRZRELTRAE 4ABRGAE L
BRE/ FEBETZNEHRARRE T
BERBERBIUREHERENEERS
RERERS-

TEHEERER

REEHN AEEBAAMEENRE
BTN EBRREN3 4% KEBRA
HEFRGAERBERENI00% AEH
BAEERAREEEBGEZFERRAS
[0.5%F o

RESHRN 2EBRRLAERNHEES
HEAEEBKALN3S% AEERAE
PG REBBIAL1.8% AEMHEARE
BARERRBGZFHFROD8E

RESHN BEEFARSENEDH
BALHAEARE BEFHANEAERAT
BETROBESY REERLATR
HEBEEEmED



PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If any Shareholders has any doubt about the taxation implication of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in, or exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to

consult their own professional advisers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 57 to 79 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, are held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this

report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), whose term of office will retire at the
close of the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of PwC as the auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

During the past three years, following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 12 August 2020, PwC was appointed as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 19 August 2020 to fill the vacancy, particulars of which have
been set out in the announcement of the Company dated 20 August 2020. Save as disclosed
above, there were no other changes in the auditors of the Company during the past three

years.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period have been reviewed by

the audit committee of the Board.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Lam Chi Fan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance to
safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Board believes that good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management and healthy corporate culture, thereby earning the confidence of the

Shareholders and the public.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (version up to 31
December 2021) as its own code of corporate governance. The Company met the applicable

code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Reporting Period.

Furthermore, the Board will adopt the new CG Code (version with effect from | January
2022), the requirements under which shall apply to the Company's corporate governance
report in the forthcoming financial year ending 31 December 2022 and the Board will
continue to monitor and review the Company's corporate governance practices to ensure

compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for the Directors and relevant employees, who
are likely to possess inside information of the Company, in their dealings in the Company's
securities. The code of conduct are on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code") contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting

Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, with five executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors Lam Chi Fan (Chairman)
Cheung Tung (President)
Chen Feng

Lam Kam Cheung

Lam Fei Man

Independent
non-executive
Directors Wong Chi Keung

Lam Sing Kwong, Simon

Zhang Hwo Jie

WuTak Lung

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the Company’s business.
The independence of the independent non-executive Directors is assessed according to the
relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company requests the Directors
to disclose annually to the Company the number and nature of office held in public companies

or organisations and other significant commitments with an indication of time involved.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
concerning the diversity of Board members. The board diversity policy outlines the factors
to be considered when deciding on the appointments of members to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments. These factors include but are not limited to gender; age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from

time to time.
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Relationship between Board members

- Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman and an executive Director; is the uncle of Mr. Cheung
Tung, the President and an executive Director and a cousin of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an

executive Director;

- Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive Director; is a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei

Man, an executive Director;

- Mr. Chen Feng, an executive Director; is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an

executive Director; and

- Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director; is a cousin of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman
of the Board and an executive Director; the daughter of a cousin of Mr. Chen Feng, an
executive Director; and an aunt of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an executive

Director.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board and in particular, between the Chairman of the

Board and the chief executive.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board and management

The Board is responsible and has general power for the management and conduct of the
business of the Group. The Board oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board also makes decisions on matters relating to
strategies and budgets, financial information, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
dividend, adoption of accounting policies and other matters of operational significance to the

Company.
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The Board delegates day-to-day management and operations functions of the Company
to Board committees and senior management of the Company with clear directions and
authority framework. The Board will review periodically the delegation given to management

to ensure that they are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

The Board has delegated specific roles and responsibilities to the Company's audit committee,
corporate governance committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.

Details of these committees are set out on pages 64 to 71 of this report.

Chairman and President

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lam is responsible for the formulation of

the overall business strategies and business planning of the Group.

Mr: Cheung Tung is the President (equivalent to the role of a chief executive) of the Company.
Mr. Cheung is responsible for the overall management of the day-to-day operations of the

Group.

Mr: Lam Chi Fan is the uncle of Mr. Cheung Tung. However, there is a clear distinction between

the Chairman’s responsibilities and the President’s responsibilities.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company currently has four independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the members of the Board, who are persons of high caliber with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
independent non-executive Directors bring a diversified range of expertise and provide checks

and balances of safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and the Group as a whole.
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Each of MrWong Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr.
WuTak Lung has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years

commencing from || July 2020, respectively.

The Company has received from all independent non-executive Directors their confirmation
of independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors have met the

independence guidelines and are independent.

Board meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year and a tentative schedule for regular Board meetings
for each year is provided to Directors prior to the beginning of each calendar year. Between
scheduled regular Board meetings, Directors may approve various matters by way of passing
written resolutions. Additional Board meetings may be arranged if required. At least 14 days'
notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given and the Company aims at sending the agenda
and the accompanying board papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the intended

date of a Board meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held four meetings and the Company held one

general meeting.

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open for

inspection by the Directors.
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The attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings and the general meeting held

during the Reporting Period are set out as follows:

BEFRHERBERRTNESTEER N

RAGEEHHIWT :

Board meetings

General meeting

I
X

attended attended
Name of Directors EENS LEEETEERY HERRAERY
Executive Directors BITESR
Lam Chi Fan HEN 414 11
Cheung Tung IRAR 4/4 1/
Chen Feng PR AR 4/4 171
Lam Kam Cheung MRERAE 4/4 11
Lam Fei Man MEZ 414 11
Independent non-executive Directors BUFRTER
Wong Chi Keung FTE® 4/4 /1
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MEE 4/4 171
Zhang Hwo Jie SR 4/4 /1
Wu Tak Lung RIEF 4/4 1/1

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Accountability and audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of financial statements
of the Group to ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results of its operation and its cashflows. In preparing the
financial statements for the Reporting Period, the Board had prepared the Group's financial
statements on a going-concern basis and in accordance with relevant accounting standards
and regulations. Board members are provided with monthly updates on the Group's financial
position, which give the Directors a clear assessment of the performance, position and

prospect of the Group.

A statement from the external auditor relating to their reporting responsibilities is set out in

the independent auditor's report on pages 132 to 145 of this report.

Continuous training and professional development for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their responsibilities and duties and are committed to
participate in continuous professional development to develop their knowledge and skills. This

is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company provides regular updates on changes and developments relating to the Group's
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board
meetings. In addition, the Company also organises briefing sessions to the Directors which
place emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director; as well as the

latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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Individual training record of each Director during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

BEENRESPNZEAEINZEHDT

Reading materials
regarding regulatory Attending seminars

updates and corporate and/or conferences

governance matters and/or briefings
REEMRN
EEEMK
TEERFE HEWAER/H
Name of Directors EENS Ay AFL BiE K SR
Executive Directors HITES
Lam Chi Fan MEN v v
Cheung Tung TRAR \ v
Chen Feng PR v v
Lam Kam Cheung B v \
Lam Fei Man MR v v
Independent non-executive Directors BUFRTER
Wong Chi Keung FTE® v \
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MRER v v
Zhang Hwo Jie R v v
Wu Tak Lung SEge v v
BOARD COMMITTEES EFXZRE

The Company has set up four committees, namely, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the corporate governance committee, for

overseeing particular aspects of the Company. The terms of reference of these committees are

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee currently comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu
Tak Lung. Mr: Wong Chi Keung is the chairman of the audit committee. He has professional

qualifications in accounting and financial management.

The primary duties of the audit committee include, among other things:

- reviewing and monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity;

- recommending to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor and

approving its remuneration;

- reviewing the Group's consolidated financial statements, annual reports and interim

reports before submitting them to the Board;

- overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, internal control and risk management

procedures and audit process;

- reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices of the Group; and

- meeting with the external auditor to discuss issues regarding audit at least twice a year

in the absence of the management.

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee held four meetings and reviewed and
discussed with the external auditor the interim and annual results of the Group and
the relevant financial reports. It also discussed matters with respect to the Group's risk

management and internal controls and the re-appointment of external auditor:

EEERHRS
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A summary of the work of the audit committee during the Reporting Period was as follows:

(@)  reviewed and discussed with the external auditor the annual results for the year ended

31 December 2020 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2021;

(b)  discussed and reviewed the risk management system of the Group, reviewed the
internal control review plan for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the interim

financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2021;

(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the Company's internal audit function; and

(d)  approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The attendance record of each member of the audit committee at the meetings held during

the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

RREANNELZEST TERENT

(2)

2R R B SNEE AR BT 5 aR B 22020
FNAIHLEEENEEZEREE
2021 F6 B30 IENE R RERES ;

HmkBRAEEZEREERSA
ZREF200FE A3 HEEEZR
IEHIE R 8 KRB E2021F6830
HIEAEAM TR ;

BERARBDAEEBBAENBRIL
K

HERBEREZE2021F1283IBIEE
ENEESIZTE

EERZEEREBHERBREHRRETZ
SEMEHHEIWT

Meetings attended

Name of members of audit committee BERZEENENRS HEGHERY
Wong Chi Keung TE® 4/4
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MRER 4/4
Zhang Hwo Jie R 4/4
Wu Tak Lung RIEF 4/4

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee currently comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Wong Chi Keung, the chairman of the corporate governance committee,

Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr.WuTak Lung.

The primary duties of the corporate governance committee include, among other things:

- developing and reviewing the policies and practices of the Company on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board with regard to any change;

- reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management on corporate governance;

- reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements on corporate governance and making

recommendations to the Board with regard to any change;

- developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and corporate governance

manual applicable to Directors and employees; and

- reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.

During the Reporting Period, the corporate governance committee held one meeting to
review the Company's corporate governance policies and practices and the compliance with
the CG Code.
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The attendance record of each member of the corporate governance committee at the

meeting held during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

BREXELZEENEHENREMAE
TzEZNTHEIWT

Meeting attended

Name of members of corporate governance committee TEERZEERENRS HEGERY
Wong Chi Keung FE® /1
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon EIE 11
Zhang Hwo Jie R 1/
Wu Tak Lung REHE /1

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee currently consists of one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee is chaired by Professor
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, an independent non-executive Director. Other members are MrWu
Tak Lung, an independent non-executive Director and Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the

Board and an executive Director.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee include, among other things:

- studying and making recommendations or proposals to the Board for its review on
the Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management, the Company's incentive schemes and the establishment of a formal and

transparent procedure for formulating the remuneration policies and incentive schemes;

- determining the remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the

non-executive Directors; and

- reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate

objectives approved by the Board from time to time.
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In order to recognise and acknowledge the contributions of key employees of the Company,
the Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme enables eligible persons to have a personal stake in the Company and thus motivates

them to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management's emoluments for the Reporting Period and
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note || and note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration committee held one meeting to assess the
performance of the Directors and approve Directors” and senior management's performance
bonus, after taking into consideration the comparable market practice, competitive market
condition position, individual performance and contributions of the Directors and the Group's

operating resullts.

The attendance record of each member of the remuneration committee at the meeting held

during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

EEERHRS

REERBEUXLADEIZEENER &
NERMERLHEERBERESE B
ﬂ’\Eﬁ% ERERESIFTSAERAL
RAERBFHEAEAED  EMREEE
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HRETZ

Meeting attended

Name of members of remuneration committee ML EEmalS HEEERY
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MEE 171
Lam Chi Fan MEN 11
Wu Tak Lung RERE /1
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises three members with the majority of its
members being independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee is chaired
by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director: Other members
are Mr.Wong Chi Keung and Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, both being independent non-

executive Directors.
The primary duties of the nomination committee include, among other things:

- reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and making
recommendations regarding any proposed changes to the Board in line with the

Company's strategies;

- developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of

directors:
- identifying suitable candidates for appointment as directors; and
- assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Company acknowledges and embraces the benefits of diversity among its Board
members. The nomination committee has a policy concerning the diversity of Board
members with measurable objectives. Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and the legitimate

interests of the principal Shareholders.

Currently, the Board consists of nine members, including five executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors who are of different age, genders and with professional
experience and qualifications in various aspects. Having regard to the composition of the
Board and the measurable objectives, the Company considers that the Board composition
is sufficiently diversified with a balance of skills and experience desirable for the effective

management and sustainable development of the Company.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Nomination Procedures

The Company has a nomination policy for the nomination of Directors. Appointment of new
Directors is first considered by the nomination committee. In considering the appointment of
a Director; the nomination committee applies criteria such as relevant experience, professional
and educational background, reputation for integrity and independence as well as the diversity
in the Board. The recommendation of the nomination committee is then put to the Board for
consideration and approval. Thereafter, any Director appointed by the Board is subject to re-

election by the Shareholders at the general meeting after his/her appointment.

During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee held one meeting to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board. The attendance record of each member of the

nomination committee at the meeting held during the Reporting Period is set out as follows:

EEERHRS

‘aEr
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E2RAR RLEZESRANEMER -
BERYBERS AEBERBIUMEUK
EFEL LS ER -RRUBEEET RS
HERESFEGERAME- LR EES
EEAZANEFTANAEZERINKRR
ARG LHRREEET

RERSHN RBLZEGAR—REEU
BANESENRE RERMEN -BREE
EEMEHRNBRSHRBTZEZMT
EEIMT

Meeting attended

Name of members of nomination committee REZETHEHRS HEZERY
Lam Chi Fan MER 1/1
Wong Chi Keung TE54 1/
Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MEE 1/1

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Reporting Period, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit services provided to

the Group by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor; are set out as follows:

2% Gl

RREMA MIERYMEIRKES
SHNEBARAEBRMHNBZRIFEZ
FRBMs B EBHIWT

Fee
&R
HK$'000
FHT
Audit services BIZRE 2,920
Non-audit services: FEBEZRE
Reviewing the Company’s interim financial information, report on ~ BRIAA B RN BER - HFEBRAEX ZFE
continuing connected transactions and review of risk management R 5 M BRI AEEN R EE KRS
and internal control of the Group, and conducting financial and tax  FLEEWEEBEHTFEREFEZ
due diligence for potential acquisition BHAT 880
3,800
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr: Lam Kam Cheung was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 4 March
2014. The biographical details of Mr. Lam is set out in the section headed “Directors and

Senior Management” on page |9 of this report.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lam took no less than |5 hours of relevant professional

training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company respects the rights of Shareholders and seeks to facilitate the effective exercise

of those rights by ensuring that the Company communicates effectively with its Shareholders.

The Company promotes effective communication with Shareholders and encourages effective
participation by Shareholders at general meetings of the Company. To ensure a high quality of
communication and level of clarity with all investors and other stakeholders, whilst complying
with its statutory disclosure obligations, the Company endeavours to provide Shareholders
with ready and easy access on a timely basis to matters that affect their investment in the
Company and communicate in a clear, accurate and easy to understand manner with investors
and other stakeholders. Communications with Shareholders are mainly maintained through
the Company's interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars, general meetings and

publications on the Company's website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy of the Company, in deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account the following

factors before declaring or recommending dividends:
(@)  the Group's overall results of operation, financial condition, expected working capital

requirements and capital expenditure requirements, liquidity position and future

expansions plans;
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(b)  the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company;

(c)  the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity ratio and the relevant

financial covenant;

(d)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Group;

(e)  the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry's norm; and

(f)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board also considers that general meetings of the Company provide an useful forum
for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Company shall in each year hold a
general meeting as its annual general meeting. All general meetings other than annual general

meeting shall be called extraordinary general meetings (‘EGMs”).

Members of the audit committee, remuneration committee, corporate governance committee
and nomination committee and the external auditor also attend the annual general meetings
to answer questions from Shareholders. Notice of annual general meetings is sent to all
Shareholders at least 2| days before the annual general meetings and the accompanying
circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules. The voting results of annual general meetings and EGMs are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day of the

annual general meetings and EGMs.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the deposit of a written requisition
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to require an EGM to be called by

the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must specify the purpose of the meeting, signed by the requisitionists
and deposit it with the company secretary of the Company at the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |, MegaBox Enterprise Square
Five, No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly
to convene the EGM to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of

deposit of the requisition.

An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner; as nearly

possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests for information to the Directors or
management through the ‘Contact Us' section in the Company's website at www.sinomax.com

or in writing or sent by post to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands laws, no members nor Shareholders are permitted to propose
new resolutions at general meetings if the intention to propose the new resolutions is not
specified in the notice convening the general meeting. However, procedures for proposing
candidate(s) for election as Directors at a Shareholder's meeting are set out in the Corporate

Governance section of the Company's website at irsinomax.com.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders by electronic means, particularly through its website, is an efficient way of
distributing information in a timely and convenient manner. The Company's website at

(www.sinomax.com/group) provides the following information:
- members of the Board, terms of reference of the Board committees, key corporate

governance policies and the Company's constitutional documents;

- latest news, announcements, financials including interim and annual reports and all

material information submitted to the Stock Exchange; and

- other information relating to the Group and its business.

Shareholders can make any query in respect of the Group or to make request for the

Company's financial reports. The designated contact details are as follows:

By post: Sinomax Group Limited

Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |,

MegaBox Enterprise Square Five,

No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
By email: ir@sinomax.com

Shareholders who have any matters relating to change of name or address, transfer of shares
and loss of share certificates, may contact the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar,

Tricor Investor Services Limited. The contact details are as follows:

Address: Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has a whistleblowing policy to provide employees and those who deal with the
Group to voice concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the chairman or members of the
audit committee about possible improprieties in matters related to the Group. An effective
whistleblowing system can help detect and deter misconduct or malpractice in the Group. The

Group reviews the whistleblowing policy periodically to improve its effectiveness.

ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-BRIBERY POLICY

The Group had an anti-corruption policy under the Code of Conduct and has adopted an
anti-fraud and anti-bribery policy in February 2022 that supports anti-corruption laws and
regulations, and to promote an anti-corruption culture within the Group. The Group reviews
the policy periodically to ensure that it is operating effectively and consider whether any

changes to the policy are required.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company's constitutional documents during the Reporting Period.

The Board proposes to amend the existing memorandum and articles of association of
the Company (the “Memorandum and Articles”) and to adopt the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company incorporating the amendments
(the “New Memorandum and Articles”) for the purposes of, among others, bringing the
Memorandum and Articles in line with the relevant requirements of the amendments made to

the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.

The proposed amendments to the Memorandum and Articles and the proposed adoption of
the New Memorandum and Articles are subject to the approval of the Shareholders by way
of a special resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on 22 June 2022 (the "AGM"). The New Memorandum and Articles will take effect on the
date on which the proposed amendments are approved by the Shareholders at the AGM.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. A review of the implemented systems and
procedures, including areas covering financial, operational, legal compliance controls and risk
management functions (including ESG risks), is carried out annually. The risk management and
internal control systems are implemented to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed

and used as a management tool for the day-to-day operation of business.

The Board has, through the audit committee, reviewed and considered the Group's risk
management and internal control systems to be effective and adequate for the Reporting
Period.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational, legal compliance

controls and risk management functions of the Group were identified.

The Group has established an organisational structure with defined levels of responsibility and
reporting procedures. The Group's internal audit department assists the Board and the audit
committee in the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Company has established Enterprise Risk Management Procedures to ensure safeguard of
assets and to identify, evaluate, quantify and manage existing and potential risks. Relevant rules
and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks (including ESG risks) that may impact on the Group's performance

are appropriately identified and addressed.

EEERHRS

R EIER A BB

EXCEEHERARFAAEERAREER
NEEFR RGN BRI - HERERR SR
REFETEERS REME K2 A
ReaREEREREERE (BEESCRR)
FHE -BENRREERABEFRRES
AR AEEmEZARR/ME L& RR
REABEBHEEZEETA

EEENREHEEBERZETRAK
ERAEERREERABENRRES
BUMKRIERE

WEHHN T EREBME  KE A
REREHREREEBAENERMIE
Igo

AEBECRY—EABRE BUWIRE
AP R B ERIZ T o A5 B A B 2 5t 20 P
HHEEERELZEERFREEERE
BRAEEZRBREERASBEFRRGEZ
BRYE

ANBIEEU(CERKREEGE) » MUk
REEZERH FE ELREERE
R B TE B K o B RE R B Ko 3536 LUK A] S 7
BREstaRENEBN AT EET
HAREERERT TEEMHRE
BUgEAERAXRBENTERR (B
ESGRLER) o

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

’7



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERHRS

The internal audit department is responsible for the operation and coordination of enterprise
risk management mechanism, which includes examining, reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management processes and systems, assessing whether risk is properly identified, assessing
significant risk reporting, and reviewing significant risk management. The internal audit
department provides risk management and internal control assessment reports to the
management on a regular or ad hoc basis. The internal audit department also regularly reviews
and reports to the audit committee and the Board on risk management and internal control

affairs. The Group will appoint external internal control consultant when necessary.

The task group on risk management is responsible for establishing the risk management
register and defining responsibilities, procedures and system of risk management, formulating
the annual risk management work plan, carrying out risk assessment, proposing the risk
management strategy, assisting the relevant departments and the enterprises in significant risk
management. It also prepares risk management performance appraisal program and conducts

annual performance appraisal and arranges risk management training.

The departmental management executes risk management strategies, solutions and crisis
management plans for significant risks, dynamically monitor significant risk associated indicators
and executes the procedures and policies of the risk management and internal controls of the
Group.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls undertaken within the

Group, the external auditor also assesses the effectiveness of certain key risks and internal

controls as part of their statutory audits.

To help ensure all risks which are relevant to the Group are considered, a systematic approach
to risk identification is followed. Identifiable risk areas which are considered include:
maintaining a safe work environment for the Group's employees;
safeguarding and efficient use of assets;
management of human resources;

ensuring the Group complies with legal and regulatory obligations;
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achieving established objectives and goals;

reliability and integrity of financial and operational information; and

compliance with internal policies and procedures.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information, the Group:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the SFO, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper disclosure of inside
information, announcements and financial disclosures and authorises their publication as

required;

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information Disclosure Policy; and

(il has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the securities transactions
of those employees who, because of their positions, are likely to have access to

confidential or inside information.
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ABOUT US

Company profile

Sinomax Group Limited (“Sinomax” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group") (Stock Code: 1418) is principally engaged in the development, manufacture and sales
of visco-elastic health and wellness products. Since 2001, Sinomax's dedication of adhering
to its belief, “Love Supports Beloved”, has driven it to continuously developing products
ranging from viscoelastic pillows, mattress toppers, mattresses to polyurethane foam, which has
consequently led to the Group's success of being listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK") in July 2014.To secure its leading market position, the Group has constantly
researched, designed, developed and produced high-quality health and wellness products
through engaging customers, steering innovation and ensuring high quality standards, in hope of

raising awareness of healthy-living and fulfilling households" everchanging needs.
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Corporate vision, mission and core values

With our strong research and development capabilities, we seek to create innovative and
excellent health and wellness products to achieve our objective of being the global leader in
the health-living industry. We communicate with our consumers on a regular basis to better
understand their needs and to promote healthy living and community well-being. Supporting

our vision, our core values are:

Inclusive 8%
To engage and include
stakeholders of our value chain
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Innovation 8%
To steer and develop

HHEEBWHFRERRER sustainable products that
benefits the community

Integrity E{E
Be trustworthy and
transparent to our

stakeholders
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting standard, period and scope

This report was prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKEX ESG Reporting Guide"). More in-
depth information regarding corporate governance is addressed in the section of corporate

governance report in the annual report according to Appendix 4 of the Listing Rules.

This report covers the ESG performance of the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters, Shenzhen
office, and factories in Guangdong, Zhejiang and Shandong Provinces, the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") from | January 2021 to 3| December 2021 (the “reporting year”). The
Group shall continuously improve its data collection system, and seek possibilities of including
existing premises located in the United States and Vietnam in the future, in order to increase

the comprehensiveness of ESG performance and disclosure.
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Reporting principles

We have followed the reporting principles set out in the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide in the
preparation of the ESG report.

. Materiality: In order to identify the material ESG issue to Sinomax's business operation,
the Group invited its key stakeholders including employees, suppliers and customers
to rate the importance of relevant ESG topics. The Board of Directors and senior
management has reviewed the material topics to ensure the topics in this report

address stakeholders’ views.

. Quantitative: To evaluate and review the effectiveness of ESG policies and management
approach, we report our ESG performance quantitatively with clear narration to
explain the impacts. The Group is in the process of developing environmental targets to

reduce particular impacts.

. Balance: This report was prepared in a fair and unbiased basis. The Group fully disclosed
the material key performance indicators regardless of whether performance has

improved or declined in line with the principle.

. Consistency: The Group is consistently following the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide in
disclosure and calculation methodologies are consistent to ensure data is comparable

year-on-year.

BRIE- S RELARS

wEER

RARBEEBHATESGR &S5 PR EAY
RERAEHRERE

- EEM ATETHREEREES
N EARESGEE AEBEBBFH
Bh& GBI HERNER
HEESCEENEEHETHN &
EENREREEEREARZE
DRRARSERMBEHENER

« 2t AFERBERESGHEBBEMN
BEAENNA BABABEER
EHMMESGEN > N KRBEEXF
HARMTE - AEBEEHITRIRE
BELUR/ DR E

- T AREDERAFTAENE
ERR ERBLEZRIBENAEA
B AERPNTUARBEAERFRE

MIETR

- —EUE I FAEE-EERER(EBEHX
FRESGHR&E1551) » HIBEMst HE 0k
BRF—2 URRABEEEREY
EEME

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

83



84

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HERERHS

Reporting theme

The reporting theme of this year is “Promote Environmental Stewardship”. In support of the
Group's vision and core values, Sinomax believes our idea of win-win innovations promote
sustainability through its products and environmental management. The Group's efforts on

promoting sustainability will be further discussed in this report.

Contact details

To continuously refine the Group's sustainability strategy, we welcome any feedback
concerning this report and the Group's sustainability performance. If you have any questions

regarding the report, please contact the Group and its contact details are set out as below:

Address: Sinomax Group Limited
Units 2005-2007
Level 20 Tower |
MegaBox
Enterprise Square Five
38 Wang Chiu Road

Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2754 7798
E-mail: in@sinomax.com
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear stakeholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Sinomax Group Limited, | am pleased to present
the Group’s 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report with the theme
of "Promoting Environmental Stewardship”, which describes our effort in sustainability
throughout the vear In facing the challenges of the year, we did not delay the search
for opportunities and took initiatives to promote the company's fundamental values of

inclusiveness, innovation, win-win, and integrity.

The year 2021 was a difficult year, against the backdrop of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic
and global economic instability. In our pursuit of a sustainable recovery, we sought to advance
our governance of the potential risks and opportunities related to ESG issues. This reporting
year, the Group has established an ESG Task Force to manage all ESG-related matters and
report to the Board regarding ESG performance and future recommendations. The ESG Task
Force led the formulation of the Group’s climate change resilience system which seeks to
identify and mitigate risks from climate change impacts. The Group recognizes the materiality
of climate change impacts and endeavors to respond to China's 2060 carbon neutrality

commitment.

Sustainability is also about responding to the needs of stakeholders. In response to the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group adopted various measures to protect the health of all
stakeholders such as implementing strict in-shop and delivery COVID-19 measures. To bolster
the confidence of our mattress consumers, we also offered doorto-door RAZE's sanitizing
photocatalyst spray services. The Group shall continue to spare no efforts in elevating our

safety measures to protect all staff and customers.
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On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my gratitude to the management team AANERREERZEORSEERERNE
and staff for their efforts and contributions to the company's long-term viability in face of T ERBHRENRNEFARRREERE
the pandemic. We shall continue to pursue a recovery trajectory with sustainability at the HERB RMATVBHIXKE ETEAIFEE

forefront. FEWNE—4Fo
LAM Chi Fan EFERTE
Chairman HER

25 March 2022 202293825H
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BOARD STATEMENT ABOUT ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group has been adjusting its business development plan in response to the changing
economic environment. This year, we have established an ESG Task Force to manage the
Group's ESG-related matters. The Board approves the Group's ESG-related goals and targets
on a yearly basis based on the forward-looking recommendations provided by the ESG
Task Force. The Board has overall responsibility for the oversight and decision making of the
Group's ESG matters. Under the leadership of the Board, relevant departments and business
units play an important role to ensure the smooth practice of ESG, from policy development
to action plan implementation. The integrative management framework also enables the Group
to identify risks and opportunities, which helps enhance the Group's ESG risk management.
To fulfil our environmental responsibility, we put our green and sustainable development
philosophy into action by implementing an 1SO14001:2015 certified Environmental
Management System to ensure energy efficiency, proper waste management, and compliance

with relevant laws and regulations in our operations.
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Stakeholder engagement

Effective communication with stakeholders is critical on the route to sustainable growth as it
allows the Group to better understand the expectations of its stakeholders. The Group has
created numerous contact channels to listen to stakeholders’ views in this respect. Throughout

the reporting year, Sinomax has engaged different stakeholder groups via the communication

channels as below:

FHnE2H
BRENERNEBMBEBRUFBER
HNBERERER *EETUELFTHE
RhENPE - SEERUFRBERE
UBRENENRERR ABERSF
Ef  BEBBUTEERERTRAER
RinEER !

Shareholder meetings
BRAE
Financial reports, announcements
and circulars
BIEEE - RENBER
Company website
DEEE
Company enquiry e-mail and
phone number
DEEHETBHMEZRS

Site visits
* Interview EihE R
i
. ;?vgslelter Stak;;hﬁol; I%WUP * Staff orientation
L s BT AR
B * Interviews and performance
C — " appraisals
ommun;;qou;gchanne s AR AN
°® bl ., * Seminars and workshops
o e, FTEAM T
) ) ° * Staff activities
* Charitable activities Social Media ATEE
BETH : L3RRS _ © ESG survey
* Public consultation o - ESG %
AREN K
° L]
. 0
° L]
o .
° L]
N .
. .
L]
Community Employees
WE BT
° L]
. .
© L]
© .
° L]
.
. .
© .
° .
© °
° L]
° L]
.
L] ..
. Government and
- other public bodies
TR fh o S
. . .
o, .
.
© L] ° . . ° L]
®®e, Suppliers e°®
g
T E-shop
* Site visits B EEE
mwER e * Customer service hotline
* Inspection and interview and e-mail
ERHM * Site visits BRI RENE T I
BihER * Mobile application
* Feedback and FHERRERF
improvement plan * Facebook
REERBUER & * Instagram
* Direct communication * Retail stores
HEEE TEHE
* ESG survey * ESG survey
ESG B%& ESG Bi%&
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Materiality assessment EEMETE

Adhering to the reporting principle of Materiality, the Group had carried out several FEEFRAKBEEMIRERA T209FF

stakeholder surveys between 2019 and 2020 and invited its key stakeholder groups such as 200FEETHRENE[BERAET L&

employees, suppliers and customers to complete the surveys and rate the importance of the AHFEARFMHE (FIN: BT HER

ESG issues to the Group's long-term development. Based on the survey results, a materiality MER) STREE T ERRESCEBH A

matrix was created to identify the material ESG topics to the Group. EEREZENEEU -REMSER &
EEFITHEZNRERE UREHERE
BRMESGHE

Materiality Matrix
EEMERE

—0—/——©0 © EE

]
e

HIFOEOBE (M)
e
®

Impact to Stakeholders (External)

Impact to Business Operation (Internal)

HEBHEE (W)

@ Environmental @ Social
B5 e

1 Environmental compliance 5 Wastewater management 9 Social compliance 15 Green procurement
BRESRM BEKERE HEERME G EERE

2 Air quality control 6 General waste management 10 Employment practices 16 Product health and safety
ZRE2EY —REZEYER {EIEIER EmfEREEZE

3 Energy usage and conservation 7 Hazardous waste management 11 Labour standard 17 Product quality assurance
BEREARELN BEEEYER S5 T AR EmEBRE

4 Water consumption and 8 Impact on natural environment 12 Occupational health and safety 18 Anti-corruption practices
conservation HERIBENE BXRREZ2 RESES
K ERAERH 13 Development and training 19 Community involvement

BREEET HBRA

14 Raw material selection and supply
chain management
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DELIVERING HEALTH AND WELLNESS PRODUCTS

Quality assurance

Developing with innovation

Sinomax is dedicated to providing high-quality health and wellness products through
innovation in order to become a global leader in the health-living industry. With excellent
research and development (R&D) skills, the Group is constantly improving existing materials
and products while also creating new ones to provide a diverse product range that caters to
varied customer demands. Driven by our enthusiasm for innovation, as of the conclusion of the
reporting year, we had generated and registered over 20 distinctive product design patents. As
part of the Group's assets, we hold product design patents and intellectual property (IP) rights
in high respect. As part of our commitment to intellectual property protection, we incorporate
applicable clauses and terms into contracts with our suppliers and partners to safeguard each

party.

Sustainable procurement

Apart from innovation, raw materials and suppliers are also crucial factors in delivering
premium products. In this regard, the Group dedicates effort in managing its suppliers to

create a sustainable value chain.
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We use a strict procurement process to choose and manage our suppliers and raw materials
in order to supply safe and healthy products to our clients. Therefore, we have a strong
criterion for procuring non-hazardous, organic, and environmentally friendly raw materials.
During the selection process, we prioritize recyclable and natural materials with low volatile
organic compounds (VOC) and certification standards such as CertiPUR-US certification and
UKBS5852 standard. Also since 2019, we have been a member of the Sustainable Procurement
Charter, recognized by the United Nations One Planet network. As a member, we are
committed to implementing sustainable procurement procedures with reference to 1SO

20400.

Bl

CertiPUR-US
certification
CertiPUR-US?2 %

o]l

Oeko-Tex Standard 100
A REAH B mIRZE100
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Low volatile organic compounds (VOC)

REREEHILEEY (VOC)

Sustainable Procurement Charter
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UK BS5852 standard
REIBS5852F %

Canada 117 standard
MERTIEE

Chlorofluorocarbons (CFC)
TEEAK (CFC)

To embed sustainability into the Group's
procurement process and practice, Sinomax
has been a member of the Sustainable
Procurement Charter since 2019.

BT UHEBRRRARENRERENE
B BREE2019 FUR—ERUHEEREE
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The Group also places high emphasis on supplier chain risk management. All potential
suppliers are required to undergo a comprehensive assessment on their product quality,
price, timeliness and ESG performance. We consider their business ethics, environmental
performance and labor practices through site visits and document screening in order to
minimize ESG risk in our supply chain. If the potential suppliers fail in the assessment, we will
provide them feedback to enhance their sustainability performance and engage them to be re-

assessed in the following year.

The Group also conducts regular inspection and assessment on its existing suppliers to ensure
product quality and performance consistency. To encourage greater sustainability performance
of suppliers, higher volume order is rewarded to existing suppliers with prominent assessment
performance, where possible. For suppliers who underperform in the assessment, they are
notified and an improvement plan is proposed. If they fail to improve within the proposed

timeframe, they are removed from the qualified supplier list.

To further minimize the environmental impacts presented in the supply chain, the Group
prioritizes the sourcing of local manufactured material and local suppliers to avoid greenhouse
gas emissions released during the transportation of materials. Throughout the reporting year,

95% of the suppliers were from the PRC.

Local

%S

Number of suppliers

HRERSE 445
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Stringent manufacturing process

Apart from raw material quality, Sinomax's key strategy for securing customers’ trust and
market share is to ensure the quality and condition of the final products. The Group has
established a quality management system and received the worldwide accreditation ISO
9001:2015 as a result of this dedication. The Group has formed a quality assurance team
of more than 80 professionals to monitor and guarantee that operations follow the quality
management system’s standard operating procedure. The Group did not meet any cases of
non-compliance with product quality and safety laws and regulations throughout the reporting
year

Prior to delivery, the quality assurance team conducts spot checks on product quality for
environmental, health, and safety performance, including VOC content and fire resistance
ability. To verify that the goods meet with safety regulations, they are evaluated in an ISO/IEC
17025:2017-certified laboratory and testing centre. In addition to product safety, the quality
assurance team examines defective items in order to develop improvements and preventive
actions to reduce defect rates and resource waste. There were no product recalls due to
health and safety concerns during the reporting year.

BRIE- S RELHRS

BER L EBE

BRTEMERE RERSELEENIE
EMBEEEENZORBERERRNE
ENMRR -EETILTEEEERA I
HILE A MEFEEZEISO 9001:201553
B EENBRBILT —ZHOZHEEA
TRAARMNEEREER  EETRRE
ENEENAEESEAMMNZERER
FoREFEN AEBUTEAETERE
ERTENIREE-

FERRWA BEE2RILZEKRTHRIR
B BENZ2RBHEEREE 87
BEEMBERETCEVMESENTWAEN A
BREGTALE2KAE  EREISO/EC
17025:201 75858 MO B 55 = A A 8 R OEST
B BRTERZRIN BEEREEBT S
IR E 0 U R E Rk st 6 E Bk
B REBRREXLRVRE - REFE
W AERYBRRENZE2MEMAE
Efme

R&D

Conduct professional research and development
HEATEHRE

Developed and registered over 20 design patents
BASXILEE M T 202 HE MR EA

Raw material procurement

R EHRIR

CertiPUR-US certification 323

Oeko-Tex Standard 100 &
VO C
FEERMEEH

Manufacturing and quality monitoring
EEMHERE

£

1ISO 9001:2015 Quality management systems
HREEERR

ISO 14001:2015 Environmental management systems
BEEEER

80 professional quality assurance members
BOBREXHEBRIEME

Delivery
=t

Conduct spot check on products’ environmental and safety performance
HERNWRENZSAMETHE

Analyse samples at laboratory and testing centres
EEBRENRRPOD MRS

Follow-up actions
Conduct analysis in defected items and propose responsive measures
through monthly quality assurance meetings

HREERETHN - WEBBEANEBREGREHEHERE

Send customer satisfaction survey and evaluate performance of goods
and services
BRE PR EREIMEE R MR AR
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LABORATORY ACCREDITATION CERTIFICATE
= ¥

rition Mo CMAS L13636

Dongguan Sinobome Co., Ltd, Test Caner

Avquiremants for #he Competence of Testing and CabSretion
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Our testing centre in Guangdong has been accredited to comply with the ISO/IEC 17025:2017
General Requirements for the Competence of Testing and Calibration Laboratories by China

National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment.

EMUREREWRATOERSTESKTEARTATEEGMNAFE - FRISO/IEC 17025

2017 (RAMBERBREEDNWEBAER) -

Connecting with our customers

The Group recognizes the importance of customer interaction and connection in order to
understand their requirements and expectations as it strives to create customer-oriented
products with innovation. The Group has buift a number of consumer communication and
interaction channels in this respect. During the reporting year, the Group has invited a
Chinese Medicine Practitioner to launch a live stream on Facebook to address children'’s sleep

problems.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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~' © Facebook live with Chinese Medicine Practitioner
BrhB2Ef# fTFacebook H i

SINGMAX

Sinomax constantly communicates the newest health-related news and updates with its clients
via its retail stores, e-shop, and mobile apps in order to improve their well-being. Customers
can use those channels to submit product reviews or comments in addition to receiving the
most up-to-date information. Customers' opinions are welcomed and valued by the Group.
The Group uses the following complaint processing mechanism to ensure a systematic
approach. During the reporting year, the Group received 47 complaints. The customer service

team has resolved all complaints with care and responsive measures.

BRIE- S RELHRS
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®
02

01

Search for the order's
relevant details and report
to the corresponding
departments such as sales
procedures to handle and quality control for
customers' complaints further investigations

& PRI EEER PR BRI ENEEFAEEL

Customer Service
Department shall follow the
customer compliant
handling policy's

RIBBERIRF REREER SRR - Bl WE A ETEBEN
BERH SHEMEZR - LUETT BRI

E-SRE

BOEREFITE
Sewarded by GE1 Hong Fong in 2020
RANERRSARE
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The responsible
department is expected to
communicate and resolve

the issue in an effective
manner and in a way that
satisfies the customers

BEMPIEUBHANEEF

®

05

Filed cases may be
selected as training
materials to educate staff

measures, duration and members to prevent similar
solution for both parties' incidents from occurring
records again
ZRFERE — N aiEER SRR )R] LU R 3E 3 A
- 1~ SRR AR BHEBEIEAE  UEEE
ROMEMETERE BERLISEMF

The department shall
generate a report which
consists of the cause,

Consumer Caring Scheme

ELIS S 435 ]

In testament to Sinomax's continuous commitment to
elevating consumer care throughout its business, the
Group was awarded with the “Consumer Caring
Companies” for more than 5 consecutive years.
REPRFSEESREATORE  AEEEFTF
UEREREREHBHERTA [BORE] -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Customer privacy and data protection

As a reliable and trustworthy company, Sinomax is committed to protecting its customers'
privacy. The Group has formulated its information management guidelines in the Corporate
Culture Handbook with reference to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. All staff members
are required to follow the guidelines when handling customers' personal information. In order
to prevent information breach, the Group has appointed an external information technology
auditor to check the security system and measures of the e-shop. During the reporting year,
the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding privacy-related law and

regulations.

COVID-19 measures

The Group paid heed to the recommendations of the Hong Kong government in maintaining
strict social distancing measures. In response to the risks presented by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has launched the 60 Days Satisfaction Guarantee Campaign, offering
customers a one-time exchange within 60 days from the date of delivery upon the purchase
of certain mattress models. Under the Campaign, customers may try the mattress at home,
limiting face-to-face contact to deter the spread of the virus. Also, we offer door-to-door
RAZE's sanitizing photocatalyst spray service for customers who purchased mattresses for

free.

BRIE- S RELARS
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Sinomax places a high priority on ensuring our clients' safety, We have launched bedding goods
with unique anti-microbial coating technology to help battle the epidemic. The technology
which has been certified by the US Food and Drug Administration and Japan’s Society of
International Sustaining Growth for Antimicrobial Articles, is able to efficiently destroy more

than 97 percent of germs, including E. coli.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Antimicrobial Products Certificate of SIAA
SIAAEE RZE

To protect its retail customers and frontline employees, in addition to the 60 Days Satisfaction RREEHTERRNAIGET Re0BE
Guarantee Campaign and anti-microbial coating technology, the Group has implemented DMRESTEINNEEE EETTI% rERE
various in-shop COVID-19 measures and obtained the Certificate of Retail Anti-epidemic T EIEARREER RS T%\/ﬁ%

Measures Recognition from the Hong Kong Retail Management Association (HKRMA). EEEREEEN(SEHRIERDESR
£)e
Outlet Anti-epidemic Measures Recognition
5 S8 5 7% 1 i 52 58

B E R EEEREEE

GERTIFICATE OF OUTLET ANTIEPIDEMIC MEASURES RECOGNITION

R R L T SRR
This is 0o certify that the following epidemic prevention mwasures have been
implemented in this store:

Sinomax Health & Household Products Ltd.

v EACERRECWWES
W pupsemers Memimes ot Estruse

TERENATENARENG
Il ot LR Rl

g BASAIRHNFEANIMETRS IDARG
Provide cheat kypone: puskdines w (st sl

Nasender: OMRII0N 260
Vislsd il 31 Ochiber, 2021

T

ISUED BY HONG KOWG o

RETAIL MANAGEMENT ASSRINTHIN N j
I
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In-shop COVID-19 measures
5 8 75 9% &

All Sinomax shops received HKRMA Certificate of Retail Anti-epidemic Measures Recognition
FT78 Sinomax/& $H 39 SHKRMAS &y RIS Rl 5 &

Shop area and display products are disinfected with photocatalyst antibacterial coatings regularly

EERRYRERETABEES

Display products are sanitized before and after each customer’s trial
RTIEMESUEFAANAZBKEBEES

EEBES X EMAIFETERE

Salespersons sanitize their hands frequently and wear a surgical mask at all times

EEEYRTF  2REMANMNOE

Customers are asked to use hand sanitizers before touching the products on display

BERBEEEBRIINERZAEREFR

§ Salespersons are required to undergo daily temperature checks before work
o°%9

100 Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRIE- S RELHRS

Delivery COVID-19 measures
2RMmEERE

test results before reporting duty

Delivery staff and drivers undergo rapid antigen testings and demonstrate negative
XE B RMIE LU AT R R ARRI I B R R M ARRI S R

The trucks and equipment are regularly disinfected with photocatalyst antibacterial
coatings and are sanitized thoroughly throughout the day

FEARBERABEES  LEBRAXBENEEEETES

Delivery staff wear gloves and masks at all times and sanitize regularly

ZPEAEZEMEFENAE  AERETHES
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PROMOTING WELL-BEING INSIDE OUT

Recognizing employees as the key to continuous business development, Sinomax strives to

provide a fair, healthy and harmonious workplace for our employees to thrive in.

Corporate governance

Maintaining high standards of company ethics and integrity requires sound corporate
governance. To maintain ethical business activities, we had an anti-corruption policy under the
Code of Conduct and have established a strict anti-fraud and anti-bribery policy. To ensure that
all employees understand the standards, they must sign and follow the Letter of Commitment
to Honest and Clean Business Practice. During the reporting year, anti-corruption and anti-
bribery training sessions or materials were provided to the Board and employees in Zhejiang.
The topics of the training sessions or materials include the Group's policies on anti-corruption,

anti-bribery, and disclosure and handling of conflicts of interest.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing channel for stakeholders to report any suspected
unethical activity. In a timely and judicious manner, the HR department is to investigate and
report suspected misconduct to the Board. If necessary, the HR department determines the

appropriate disciplinary action.

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding

all relevant law and regulations relating to corruption.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Being a responsible employer

Labor standard

We pledge to provide a fair working environment that values diversity and inclusion, as well
as job candidates’ and workers' basic rights. To establish a diverse workforce, we aggressively
support equal opportunity. Discrimination of any kind is not tolerated. Regardless of race,

ethnicity, gender; or other social considerations, every employee is treated equally.

To protect labor rights even more, the HR department is in charge of screening all candidates’
identities, ages, and working permits in order to prevent unlawful or unethical labor practices
including child labor and modern slavery. If forced labor is detected, the Group will promptly
cancel the employment contract and compensate the employee appropriately. If child labor is
uncovered, the HR Department will terminate the employee’s job and offer the individual with

education opportunities.

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding

all law and regulations in relation to employment and labor standards.

Retaining and attracting talents

Employees are regarded as one of the Group's most significant assets. Our employees’
commitment has been the foundation of our success and the foundation for future growth.
As a result, the Group places high value on attracting and maintaining top people. The Group
provides competitive remuneration packages that are assessed on a regular basis in light
of market conditions, as well as advantages such as a discount on wellness goods for its

employees.

BRIE- S RELARS
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Category
a5

Gender TR 5 Number of employees as Turnover rate for

at the end of the reporting year the reporting year
BEREFERETAH REFEEIRAE
Male 5tk 936 22%

Female &t 1,068

23%

Working level B4R E| 5 Number of employees as Turnover rate for

at the end of the reporting year the reporting year
HERESFERETIAH BEFEETRAE
Management Z2[E 30 9%
Senior BRI 929 9%
Junior — %R 1,875 23%

Age group F#El5% Number of employees as Turnover rate for

at the end of the reporting year the reporting year
HEREFERETIAH BREFEETRAE
30 or below 3055 AT 280 46%
31-50 315 E505% 1,360 21%
51 or above 5155 E 364 9%

Geographical location Number of employees as Turnover rate for
HhE 2|4 at the end of the reporting year the reporting year
BEREFERETAY REFEETIRAE
Hong Kong &# 150 22%
PRC [E& 1,854 23%

Employment type Number of employegs as Turnover‘rate for
Full time 2 1,956 22%
Part time 3RH# 48 54%

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Continuous training and development

We are of the view that an effective training approach could help individuals reach their
greatest potential, and we are committed to helping our employees grow professionally. To
help newcomers and experienced employees advance in their careers, the HR Department
offers induction training and customized training. The HR Department reviews the training
plan on a regular basis to ensure that it corresponds with changes of the company in order to

better satisfy employees’ needs.

Machine safety training
BRI

BRIE- S RELHRS

FEIE R R

RADB/BEROEINRBAIUEYHELR
NEEE D URNEHEINEERR
AEFMABBIMEETINHERE
ANERBRHEABEINESERGE
MiEdl-AREEINRE ANERSE
E T AR B BERIBEIET BIBC S A
52 -

Production safety accident emergency plan

EERSEHERAR
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Safeguarding employees’ health

The Group's main focus is always the health and safety of its employees. As a result, we
implement an occupational health and safety management system that is aligned with
ISO 45001: 2018 standards. The Group has implemented corresponding safety rules and
procedures based on international standards for employees to thrive in a safe working

environment.

Employees working in the memory foam factory are exposed to toxic materials during the
manufacturing process. Employees are obliged to wear personal protection equipment such
as helmets and masks in specific sections of the factory to reduce chemical exposure. To
guarantee that on-site operations meet the Group's safety standard, the safety manager will
conduct regular inspections and maintenance of manufacturing facilities and hazardous material

storage.

Along with on-site safety measures, the Group strives to increase its employees’ safety
awareness. Employees are given incident drills and safety training to improve their awareness of

safe operations and emergency response protocols.

In the event of a work-related injury, the site manager must notify the Administration
Department, which will assign the appropriate department(s) to investigate the occurrence
and offer corrective and preventive measures within two working days. Following the
investigation, the injured employees will be given an appropriate remuneration based on the

degree of the harm.

Under the holistic safety management system, the Group did not encounter any case of non-
compliance regarding occupational safety law and regulations during the reporting year. As a
result of the Group's effort towards creating a safe workplace, there were no work-related
fatality cases over the past three reporting vears. During the reporting year, the lost days due

to work injury was 979, while the injury rate was 2.0%.
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COVID-19 measures

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19, Sinomax has paid extra attention on the disease
prevention and staff protection. The following cautious measures have been put in place to

better protect the employees as well as the local community:

Workplace COVID-19 measures
TR FRbh i

Office
WA=

Manufacturing plant

BRIE- S RELHRS
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RESTHERIIBM - BTEHFRES
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Implemented flexible working hours
Bit®E TIERRE

Sterilized the common areas with diluted
household bleach frequently
REARBIOESHAZE

Intensified online meeting and teleworking for
social distancing

ZERRKREERERN A URIFE R B

Provided epidemic prevention supplies such
as hand sanitizer and disinfectant wipes for
employees

HETRMEEEYR - fim OEREFRRE
ity

Required employees to wear mask at the
office
ZRETAPAEMBOE

Conducted anti-epidemic assessments to
enhance employees’ awareness
BRETEAHRENESR  UEBHHEE
2

Established COVID-19 Prevention and
Control Task Force
B BB 2 BB R 12 TR A/ A

Released COVID-19 contingency plan
HHFEHREBRSER

Checked the body temperature and health
code of every staff when entering the
workplace

EETEAPQISHA - BEEBRREER

Carried out disinfection work every day
BREEESKE
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Company culture

We seek to build an engaging and supportive business culture by advocating for a pleasant
working environment. As a result, we have given leisure amenities for our staff in the
Guangdong premise, such as a library, recreational center, fitness room, and games rooms.
Sinomax is a signatory to the Labor Department's Good Employer Charter, demonstrating our

commitment to be a people-centric company.

RARXIE

RASHEERFREMBAT XL B
BMENTFRE AL RMAETRME
RERE ANEERREREBEE B
AL REENMEE - REBRREHMN
RUANRTNERZEE FEEAEEE
BLIEB(FREENE)

Spring Festival Activities

FHEERED

The Group held a lucky draw, with prizes given away to

National Day and Mid-Autumn Festival Party employees as a sign of appreciation.
AEBEPHKEREE MBI T TR 0 WK EBYURTEE T MRS o

To celebrate National Day and Mid-Autumn Festival, the
Group arranged a series of festive activities for employees.

REREEMNTRES  ARERETRHT —RIHAED -
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SHAPING A HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT

Environmental management

As a responsible wellness product manufacturer, Sinomax is devoted to mitigating its
environmental footprint throughout its operation. In light of this, we implement an
ISO14001:2015 certified environmental management system to control and monitor impacts
from our operations including energy consumption, air emission, water usage, resources use
and waste management. We also adopt an ISO50001:2018 certified energy management
system to incorporate energy-saving measures into daily operations and increase long-term
operational efficiency through on-site energy generation and renewable energy purchase. The
Group has obtained the Wastewi$e Certificate and Energywi$e Certificate, which recognizes

our effort in reducing waste generation and energy consumption.

An independent certification organization is hired to conduct annual site inspections to
check that the standards are being followed. In addition, we engage a third party specialist
to evaluate the wastewater released, as well as the air and noise emissions generated, to
guarantee that our operations comply with relevant standards. The Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China has approved the Zhejiang site as a
green factory in honor of our environmental performance. In order to continually improve our
environmental performance, we will conduct energy or carbon audits at least once a year to

maintain high energy efficiency in offices.

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding

environmental laws and regulations.

BRIE- S RELHRS

BIERRNIRR

IRIREE

FAEBEANRBEREER RAEWS
TEEAEERAEDPRVEHRENTZE-
BERIL ZMEHMISO 14001 : 201558
FNREEERZ WEFMEREME
BRMEENTE BEEREE REY
PR ERERNBEEYEE -BME
FAISO50001:20 18R BN R EERZ
REIREIENMAHREE LB BREFE

ENABLERRBRS EHEENE-
AEECHAREEEROERE UE

ERFERCBERYMELERERHEAE
AR

RAEFBUNIERBETFERSR
B UBRERERBEARRE LI R
TRESER T %6 = 73 B 5K T {t HR I A B 2K KX
REENREMIRE T UERKEM
BENGRLE-PEARLNBEIEMNE
BAEMEH EN I TRAEE IR UE
TRANBEFRRF - HUEBRAAMANIE
REV HMEELBFET —RERY

BB LURAIAZHE A TARRE
REEEN FEBTETETRE AR

ERBER N

Green Factory recognized by the PRC’s Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology
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Energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions

Sinomax is aware that climate change is a growing critical issue to all corporates. Aligning to
the PRC government's pledge to carbon neutrality by 2060, the Group aims to monitor and
control its energy consumption and associated greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Based on the
environmental management system framework, the Group has developed a number of energy

efficient and low carbon mitigating measures.

In an effort to reduce energy consumption and carbon emissions, we are actively participating
in renewable energy integration. In our Guangdong and Zhejiang premises, a total of 3,198
MWh energy was generated by photovoltaic panels installed on factory roof-tops during
the reporting year The clean energy source has prevented 1,951 tonnes of carbon dioxide
emissions being released through conventional power plants. The Group will organise
workshops, exhibitions or campaigns under the theme of climate change to raise employees’

awareness in order to reduce energy consumption in daily operations.

Energy consumption Unit
HER1ERA B
:@, Electricity MWh
Y- = JKTLES
Natural gas m?
RAR KV, N
MWh
JKELBF
1‘] . Diesel (Logistic) L
[ N g @) #
MWh
IR FLEF
]  Petrol (Logistic) L
07 s () 7
MWh
JKELRS
AR Diesel (Manufacturing) L
’ sl (4E) 7
MWh
JKELRF
:di Solar energy MWh
AR e JTLE
S~ Energy consumption MWh
@ REIRfER JKTLES
f,f Energy intensity MWh / M’ revenue
4 wmze JKFTHS EEM
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UREEEATENNTE BB
DiRBEINEH# WAL BEESHY
BERIHFE

2021 2020
20215 20204
8,950 9,161
59,234 44,366
642 480
400,367 170,244
4,285 1,959
341,747 10,109
3,312 96
26,285 21,349
281 227
3,198 2,323
20,668 14,246
4.85 4.41
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GHG emissions Unit 2021 2020
im = R E{i 20214 20204
C? Scope 1: Direct emission tonnes of CO: equivalent
_-agi EEEN - EEHR (tCO=-e) 2,270 674
AWM_FILREE
Scope 2: Indirect emission tCO2-e
0Co  fEM2 : RAEHER AW FILHER 6,095 7,543
4+ Total emissions tCO2-e
SCONE Tt AW S HEE ECES 8,217
f/f GHG emissions intensity tCO:2-e / M’ Revenue 1.96 254
I T A= FILHER TR : :
Air quality EREE

As a visco-elastic wellness product manufacturer, Sinomax understands the negative impacts
of air pollutants such as dichloromethane, toluene and carbon tetroxide generated from the

production process. We are spending ceaseless effort to mitigate the problem.

We have constructed multiple spray towers at the exhaust outlets to reduce the release of
at least 80% of certain air pollutants into the environment as part of our efforts to reduce air
pollution. In addition, to control the emission of gaseous pollutants, we have installed activated
carbon adsorption devices and VOC removal equipment at our Guangdong and Shandong
premises, respectively. Furthermore, to reduce air pollution, our manufacturing units have
increased the use of cleaner fuels such as natural gas and solar energy. We undertake on-site
air quality assessments at least once a year to manage and track operational compliance and

keep air pollutant emission levels far below the limit.

During the reporting year, the Group did not encounter any case of non-compliance regarding

air pollutant emission laws and regulations.

ERIEDBEREEMNEE BETHBE
EBRAEENZRSEY U _&F
e~ REMMEAEHR) WAREE - RF—
BEFEME D REE ERE -

ABTRLVERSE BAEHRORET
ZEERE BEMIBREPNELETR
SRRV ED80% e  IhAh » AEEFIRAES
2R HMD A EERRLUEDE
ZEFUERBHEEREEEERLEEY
ERFHE M BTRHLOERSE EM
NWREEMIEMT RARMKGESFFZR
MENER - KMSEEVET—RES
TRESNE WEBNEBERESSRML
R EE R BEUK ERFBERENRRERK
Fo

BREFEN AERITESETER SR
MIBEBUE R AR E A o
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Water & wastewater management

The chemical mixing manufacturing process is Sinomax's primary source of water usage.
Despite not having any difficulties obtaining water, the Group places high value on water
conservation in light of the global concern over water shortage. For the coming years, the
Group targets to maintain or reduce water consumption intensity below FY2021's level. With
this goal in mind, we have introduced a number of water-saving projects and water-saving

measures.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

k5K ER

ERREHEBERRANTIEZRKM
T3 BEBUKCRAEMEE  BENR 2
KERERNES FEESEERNY
Ko RSB F  AEEPBKEREHER
R EAKRERR2021 M ERIKT 5
IBR FfisEH T —HEIK TRRMEIK

&

Reuse water at spray towers
EEEAEBE R

Conduct daily maintenance to prevent /
water pipe leakage

AT BB AN K ERR

Turn off water appliances when not in use
and avoid running taps
EREARREAKERE » Wik RKEERSAEK

Keep track of water usage pattern to identify
any abnormality
BRAKERUBREAREER

Prioritise the use of recycled water, rainwater or
groundwater where possible

|AIALELERBERK - RARHETK

Affix educational posters on bulletin board
to convey water-saving messages to staff

EAER EREFEA L EEEHR - LB TEEHKES

Encourage employees to bring their own bottle,
instead of bottled water

SRS T AR - B

Water consumption Unit
k& B8
(»  water consumption m?
(5 mkeE IHK
©§<§3 Water consumption intensity m?/ M’revenue
7y BkEE i V=T "N
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2021 2020
20214 20205
106,738 116,151
25.06 35.94
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As the chemical mixing process inevitably generates wastewater with chemicals, Sinomax HRNEE RS BRI TELEER
implements guidelines and various measures to handle and manage the wastewater discharge LEYMBENREK REEHIEEHHNE

with an aim to minimize the adverse impacts of the effluent discharges:

1 N i

T

R EEMNEERE KN B8R
DB R E

Properly connect designated drainage collecting wastewater pipes from spray
tower and sites cleaning to local water treatment plant for proper treatment
and compliance

IEF A IE WIS M5B R FEENTKE - BREAZEBNSKER
B ETBENEENETER

Provide separate sewer system for staff canteen to sort out waste cooking oil

* from municipal wastewater

D RETRERMEENTKERS LRGBS KD BERM

Install diffluence facilities to treat the wastewater prior to its outflow and
separate rainwater and sewage

REMBDRRE - LIE5KPERAT R IR BE K W AS R K FI5 7K 5 B

. Conduct wastewater sampling and assessment regularly to monitor the
. quality of the outflow and ensure the compliance to the regulations

| EEBETEKEURARE  LUEERAT RS AR E L RRER
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Waste management

With tightening regulations on waste disposal, Sinomax focuses on improving its waste

management approach. We take initiative to avoid, reduce, reuse and recycle our waste.

Production processes generate a certain quantity of hazardous waste, such as waste
equipment oil, chemical containers and residue. Pollution could be caused by improper storage,
handling, and disposal of hazardous waste. As a result, we adopted a solid waste management
handbook to train all frontline staff on how to properly dispose of waste. They must sort the
rubbish into different types and store it in specified waste storage locations that are clean and

well-ventilated. Trash is collected and handled on a regular basis by qualified waste companies.

As a result of the waste foam generated during the manufacturing process, the Group has set
up recycling facilities at all of its locations to collect and transform it into resalable material. In
addition to operational waste, the Group improves its waste management strategy by raising
employees” awareness of resource efficiency. Staff training is provided on a regular basis to
encourage waste sorting and recycling. With the effective waste management initiatives, we
have achieved an overall non-hazardous waste recycling rate of 70%. We will continue to

record the recycling rate of non-hazardous waste and maintain or exceed the FY2021’s level.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Waste management training

BEFEHEREN

Silk wool recycled

H¥EEY

2 R 1 Flll';nnes

Hazardous waste disposed
ERENEEEEY

414.0:™

nnnnn

nnnnn

Paper recycled

Bl EHER

l‘A‘J e ‘ 516.55"

Non-hazardous waste intensity 0 37 tonnes/M’ Revenue
EEBEYTE . LIEELTON

Hazardou: ste intensity tonnes/M’ Revenue
BEBRENEE LD ON
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Packaging material

We aim at increasing the usage of recyclable and sustainable packaging material to further
reduce our environmental footprint, as packaging material is one of the most common types
of trash generated. To ensure that paper is sourced from responsibly-managed forests, we
select FSC (Forest Stewardship Council)-certified paper and necessary material. We purchase
refillable-packaged raw materials instead of barrel-packaged raw materials to reduce packaging
waste from raw material procurement. The Group will continue to promote the use of

sustainable materials in the future, in accordance with its procurement policy.

Packaging materials Unit
BEMEAIER ES{i
Plastic tonnes
Lk M
Cardboard tonnes
D 4R 2

Green office

We are not only committed to sustainability in our production operations, but we are also
extending our efforts to the office in pursuit of sustainable development. We have been
actively encouraging employees, suppliers, and customers to reduce carbon emissions in
their regular business activities, developing environmental awareness and green culture in
the workplace. In this regard, the HR Department promotes a green workplace culture by
implementing the “Sinomax Green Office Plan,” which follows the ISO 26000 corporate social

responsibility standard. The following actions of employees are encouraged:

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report

BRI

9By B AR 2 HE 0 A [ UL A T K5 8 B
KB > LIE—2 R FFIBRIR R B
AABEMHERE ROVIRER 2 —-
AERAEREUABETIAEENR
o JZFIEEFSC BMEEZEE) S8R0
MERMABIME - BAXRBEIFETE
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MERBENERRE AEBERKRRE
HEBER #EnEERTFEME -

2021
20214

963

2,814

BREMAE
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Promote electronic submission

== of HR-related forms
PN

REUEFHARIANE
D RMEERE

j Switch off all idle electronic

| devices and lighting systems
to reduce electricity
consumption
ETERRFREMEEFRE
HER

°c Maintain room temperature
between 24 and 26 degree
Celsius to avoid unnecessary

BRIE- S RELHRS

Print on both sides of a
= sheet of paper to reduce
x} paper consumption

TEARREESIED UR D AR

N

7\

energy wastage Bring own cups and bottles

ERAERISE24ZE26HEKE @ to avoid single-use Reduce, reuse and recycle

2 B LA R B RER drinking containers waste where possible
BB R FARERD - ERAMEIKEE
— RS =27

To demonstrate commitment towards energy saving, Sinomax is a signatory of the Energy
Saving Charter organized by the Environmental Protection Department and Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department. We will keep exploring ways to improve our energy

efficiency and continue moving towards a greener operation.

RERHNMAENAE BERETHIRE
REZEMEEIRZABN(AENE) -
RAREERRESERYENG E I
EERETRFNEETREE

BEEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

117



118

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HERERHS

Climate risk management

In line with China's commitment to achieve carbon neutrality in 2060, the Group has
established a climate change resilience system formulating appropriate procedures and
measures to prevent or minimize the damage that may be caused by climate change, and make
good use of the opportunities that may arise. The Group identifies the climate-related physical
and transition risks. Physical climate risks come in the form of extreme weather in greater
frequency and intensity, as well as sea level rise. Transition climate risks are the evolution of
the regulatory, technological and market landscape due to climate change action. The Group
takes these risks into consideration when planning and designing new projects, as well as

incorporating physical climate risk impacts into business continuity plans.

CARE FOR THE COMMUNITY

Sinomax has no hesitation in contributing to the needs of the community as the first company
in the industry to acquire the famous ISO 26000 corporate social responsibility certification.
The Group's staff volunteers, for example, has actively organized and participated in the

following community activities to show support for the community:
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Assist the nucleic acid test of all

Shahu Respect for the Elderly Festival members of the Shahu community
P L £ BRI ES R RERA

Volunteers visited the elderly with gifts to show their love and Volunteers supported and participated in the epidemic
care. prevention and control.
ZIBTREEBRRGTREAREZEBIE - Donation to Henan HRRE XIS EREHE -

BEAEYE

The Group donated daily necessities to those in heavily
affected areas of Henan.

EERTEEXLBREEELER

Tree Planting Environmental Protection Tour
HEEE ®

Sinomax regularly organizes tree planting activities and environmental protection tours to promote
the importance of environmental awareness among employees and within the community.

BT HAMEREDIRARE  DETIHEESERREBNWEE -

Sinomax has been proactive in supporting the community. During the reporting year, the R —HBBZFHE REFERN EF
Group has contributed approximately HKD 102,755 and 1,786 hours to the community. BAMEEMA027558 M 1,786/)\F o
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LOOKING FORWARD

Seeking to integrate sustainability principles at all levels of our business operations and
service, the Group shall continue to deliver quality care for employees and community and
align to our long-term sustainability operation. A sustainable environment and community
are inseparable from our goal to provide customer-centric products. We will keep delivering
innovative products to elevate the sleep health of our customers. With the continuous effort
of the management and its staff, the Group will overcome the challenges ahead and create a

prosperous and sustainable future.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

e

Environmental Performance Unit 2021 2020

RIFRE B 2021 20204

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions®

BEREHK

Scope I: Direct emission tonnes of CO» equivalent (tCOz-e) 2,270 674

HE | BN AB_REREE

Scope 2: Indirect emission tCO2-e 6,095 7,543

#ED | BRI RB—H(CHRESE

Total emissions tCOz-e 8,365 8217

mErme AW_HERES

GHG emissions intensity tCO»-e/M’ Revenue 1.96 254

RERBHREE RM_FEREE BBERA

Energy Usage®

RERMER®

Solar energy MWh JKELBF 3,198 2,323

LS

Electricity MWh JKFL B 8,950 9,16l

Natural gas MWh JKFLB 642 480

RAR mIL K 59,234 44,366

Manufacturing diesel MWh JEELEF 28| 227

LERSH Litre (L) F+ 26,285 21,349

Diesel used for transportation MWh JK LB 4,285 1,959

EEASH Litre (L) F+ 400,367 170,244

Petrol used for transportation MWh JK T, B 3,312 96

BRARH Litre (L) F+ 341,747 10,109

Energy consumption BEJR{E MWh JKELBF 20,668 14,246

Energy intensity SEJRZE MWHh/M’ Revenue 4.85 441
KEE/BEBKRA

Water Consumptionfl 7K

Total #88 m’ LT3 K 106,738 116,151

Water consumption intensity F 7K 2 & m*/M’' Revenue 25.06 3594
A RBEBKA

Hazardous Waste B ZEEEY)

Total 485t tonnes M8 414 361

Hazardous waste intensity 75 2 B ) % tonnes/M' Revenue M/B & A 0.10 0.11

Non-hazardous Waste HEREEY)

Total 485t tonnes ME 1,596 1,698

Total waste recycled EEZEH)[B] UK tonnes ME [,113 1471

Waste recycling rate [B¥ 4] [O] Ut 2 % 70 87

Non-hazardous waste intensity 2= EE Z Y% 8 tonnes/M' Revenue MA/BH & WA 0.37 0.53

Packaging Material 3415}

Total 485t tonnes M 3,777 4378

BEEBEERAA

0V FERE
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Note (I):

Note (2):

Note (3):

Calculation standards and methodologies for carbon emissions are referred to “How to F(:

prepare an ESG Report” published by HKEX. The sources of published emission factors

for the disclosure of carbon emissions are:

. Sustainability reports of the local utility companies (Hong Kong Electric and CLP)

. “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2 published by HKEX
. Greenhouse Gas Protocol's "GHG Protocol Tool For Energy Consumption in
China"
The energy consumption and GHG emissions of retail shops were not included. Q)
Gaseous emissions are insignificant to Sinomax's operations 5?(3)2
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Social Performance Unit 2021 2020

HERE B 20215 20204
Workforce Profile & T#E5

Total workforce#2{E & No. of people A% 2,004 2,081

By gender Male No. of people AZ( 936 977

ZI% R85 B Turnover rate % 8 T &K= 22 20

Female No. of people AZ( 1,068 [,104

pegis Turnover rate % 8 T &K= 23 17

By age group Under 30 years old No. of people AZ( 280 357

RERRARE D 30BR AT Turnover rate % 8 T &K= 46 29

30 to 50 years old No. of people AZ( 1,360 1,407

305% Z505% Turnover rate % 8 T &K= 21 17

Over 50 years old No. of people AZ( 364 317

505 MU £ Turnover rate % 8 T k= 9 9

By employment type Management BI2/8 No. of people AZ( 30 40

REREFERE D Turnover rate % 8 T k= 9 7

Senior &S IR 4R 5] No. of people A# 99 52

Turnover rate % 8 T k= 9 16

Junior — A B 4R No. of people A# 1,875 1,989

Turnover rate % 8 T k= 23 19

By geographical region Hong Kong &7 No. of people A# 150 163

R R E S Turnover rate % 8 T k= 22 17

PRC E A No. of people A# 1,854 1918

Turnover rate % 8 T &K= 23 19

By employment type Full time 21 No. of people A# 1,956 2014

ZREEEE S Turnover rate % 8 T k= 22 18

Part time 3% B No. of people A# 48 67

Turnover rate % 8 T k= 54 32

BEEBEERAA
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Social Performance Unit 2021 2020
HERR B 2021 20205
Occupational Health and Safety B ¥ @EHRZ 2
Injury rate per 1,000 employees 8 FZL BT THX % 20 26
Lost days due to work injury 45 MEA TER# Day H#X 979 1,660.5
Number of fatalities JET- A\ #§ No. of people AZ 0 0
Rate of fatalities JE T L% % 0 0
Training and development Y53/l F13% B
By gender Male B 1% Training % 3B 2 LL 88 85
ZI% R85 Average training hour 175 24
Rl TR
Female %14 Training % ZEIE 2 LL 65 69
Average training hour 89 I5
R
By employment type Management B 12/ Training % 3B 2 LL 40 25
REEREE D Average training hour 147 2
Rl TR
Senior &8 IE 4R 5] Training % ZallE 72 LE 15 75
Average training hour 45 4
R
Junior — BB AR Training % S allE 7 th 80 77
Average training hour 133 20

SRSl

Note (I): Calculation methodologies for employee turnover rate, training percentage and average

training hour are referred to “"How to Prepare an ESG Report” published by HKEX.
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ESG INDEX TABLE

BGRERSI
Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
BE MEBARER it B HH ¥

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL 1&1%
A1:EMISSIONS HEiR4

Al General disclosure  Information on: Shaping a healthy environment

—RIRE (a) the policies; and EERENIRE
(b) compliance 109
(a) BER ; &
(b) HRERIER -

Al.l The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Energy consumption and greenhouse
B RS R o gas emissions 110

SERHFER R E REEHEN

Al2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Energy consumption and greenhouse
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per  gas emissions
unit of production volume, per facility). AERHFER R E RARHEN o

B#% (EE) RREE EE) BERBEFKE WU
W E) R (ER) ZE MMUSES B BERMT
8o
Al3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste management
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per ~ EEEY)EIE
facility). 14
FFEL R SREEYEE CUEStE) k (NBRA) BE WL
SEBB( BERMHH) °

Al 4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste management

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per ~ EEEY)EE

facility). 14
FMESEEEFEYEE QEETE) & NER) BE WL

BEER( BERMHIH) °

AlLS Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Shaping a healthy environment
them. SEREIRE 09
WP ]SRN E B IR R A E R B L B R REY S
o
Al6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Waste management
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps ~ EE Y B2
taken to achieve them. [14

W RRIE A E R ESEEYNT % RIEHPRE] LAV
BEERKAETEEERPIRIAT R
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]



126

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HERERHS

Aspect KPI Description
EBE PRERENIER it

Statement/Section Page No.

B E B

A2:

A2

USE OF RESOURCES & iR F

General disclosure  Policies

—RRINEE R

A2l Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENE DN EER/NEEER WE RO BFEE
UTETREFE) REE WUEEEEN §ER
st E)

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BIEKERTE WNUSEEEN BERKHE) -

A23 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
PR 5T 3 BYAE IR GE PR A B R R B Bl IE L B ARPT R
EEpg i

A24 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
it SKEGE A KR £ R BRI  BUR PR T 2B A K
HamERAAEIELEBRARITER-

A25 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
R AR EMEBEE LIEE) &k MMER £
EELEE-
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Shaping a healthy environment

- 109
BRI
Energy consumption and greenhouse
gas emissions
SERHFE R R E RPN o
Water & wastewater management
KR5S K EE 112
Shaping a healthy environment
SERENRE

109
Water & wastewater management
kKB KER

112
Packaging material
2 g



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRIE- S RELARS

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
EE MEEARIEE il B E B
A3:THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES IRIE R KA E IR
A3 General disclosure  Policies Shaping a healthy environment 09
—fRIRE BR SERERNRE
A3l Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Shaping a healthy environment
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to EIERENIRE
manage them. 109
HREXBEPHRERRAERNEAT EREHNE
EERMEENTH-
A4: CLIMATE CHANGE RIRE1E
A4 General disclosure  Policies Shaping a healthy environment 09
—fRIRE HR SERERNRE
A4l Description of the significant climate-related issues which have  Shaping a healthy environment
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the EERENIRE
actions taken to manage them. 109
HACERAEEHETAEEFENEARGEERSE
B REHTH-
(B) SOCIAL $#1 &
BI: EMPLOYMENT {& 1
Bl General disclosure  Information on: Being a responsible employer
— MR (a) the policies; and BETNEE
(b) compliance
103
@) BUR ; &
(b) EHEEENER o
BI.I Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Retaining and attracting talents
geographical region. BB RS AL 103
mtR - EERE - FRENRMEB DA ESEH -
BI.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical ~ Retaining and attracting talents
region. BB RRSIAT 103

2R FRAER RMEB D EERKLE R

BEEBEERAA

0V FERE
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RIE-HERERHS

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
EBE PRERENIER it B E B
B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY {2 Z 2
B2 General disclosure  Information on: Safeguarding employees’ health
— R iR R (a) the policies; and RESTHIEE
(b) compliance 106
@) BUR ; &
(b) HEEENER 0
B2 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Safeguarding employees’ health 06
ETEREMIE TR AR LR REETHEE
B22 Lost days due to work injury. Safeguarding employees’ health 06
RIGHEEIFEAH REETHEE
B23 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Safeguarding employees health
how they are implemented and monitored. REEE TR 106
WP R R REEZ 2 URBARITRE
BHke
B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING & B K 153l
B3 General disclosure Policies Continuous training and development 05
—fRIRE H5R FEEillkERE
B3.I The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Performance table
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). VeSS ]
BRI REEER WESHREERE PREEE) 90
RilllBEBE DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  Performance table
and employee category. VeSS 121

BERREEENE D BREETARIIN TR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRIE- S RELARS

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
EE MEEARIEE il B E B
B4: LABOUR STANDARDS & T %8|
B4 General disclosure  Information on: Being a responsible employer
— MR (a) the policies; and BEENETE
(b) compliance 03
@) BUR ; &
(b) HEEENER 0
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Being a responsible employer
avoid child and forced labour. BEANEE 103
AR SRR B AR I B o B T a8 h% T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Being a responsible employer
discovered. BEANET 103
WM IRER BN ERHRA B P RENBIF BR o
BS: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT i3 & 18
B5 General disclosure Policies Sustainable procurement 90
—RRINER HR B ERE
B5.| Number of suppliers by geographical region. Sustainable procurement 90
wtRE D HEFHE B ERE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  Sustainable procurement
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how P FEES
they are implemented and monitored. 90
AR B HEERIEA mERTAMEMNRHE
BHE UREMBANRTRERS %
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Sustainable procurement
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are AR
implemented and monitored. 90
A R R H RS AR MNIRIR KT R RIE
B> LR T RER S %
B54 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Sustainable procurement
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and ~ PJ &R ES
how they are implemented and monitored. 90
HREREHEERRESBRRERRRBNER
URBREITRER G %o
EHEMERAE 200 FEHS 129

-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HERERHS

Aspect KPI
B PR ENIER

Description

fiit

Statement/Section Page No.

B E B

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY R & 1E

B6

General disclosure  Information on:

—RRINEE

Bé6. |

B6.2

B6.3

B64

B6.5

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance

@) BUR ; &

(b) HEEENER 0

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
BENEEXERBHTRER 2 AR RERMAR KA
Btk

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
RERRERNRERFEEURER S A
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

i R R RIE R A E R A R ER -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
WA ESREBENEROUWERF-

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.
HACHBEEBERRERLBER  URBFARITRESR
J3ike

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report

Delivering health and wellness products

RURERFRER

90
Stringent manufacturing process
BRENEERRE %
Connecting with our customers
HERKME 94
Developing with innovation
Rl 3 90
Stringent manufacturing process 03
BRENEERRE
Customer privacy and data protection
BERLERERRE o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRIE- S RELARS

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section Page No.
EE MEEARIEE il B E B
B7:ANTI-CORRUPTION R &35
B7 General disclosure  Information on: Corporate governance
— R iR R (a) the policies; and TEER
(b) compliance 0
@) BUR ; &
(b) HEEENER 0
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Corporate governance
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting ZE A
period and the outcomes of the cases. 102
RERAANHEETASEESRETEEENE 50
EHRHMB RFRER
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Corporate governance
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. EEAR 102
Hp AR B RER  URERRITRERS %
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and Corporate governance
staff. TEER 102
HEmESERE TRENRESE-
B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT # B & &
B8 General disclosure Policies Care for the community "
—RINE B =l
B8. Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Care for the community
concerns, labour needs, health, cutture, sport). HEEE 8
EIEMER WHE BEZE S IERBE X
(A=)
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.  Care for the community "

AFIRBEMPAER WEEAHFRE) -

HERE

BEEBEERAA

0V FERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MR ER S Gl

_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of Sinomax Group Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sinomax Group Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group™), which are set out on pages 146 to 299, comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“‘the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Provision for inventories

. Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE") and right-of-use assets (“ROU
assets”) held by the US cash generating unit (“US CGU")

. Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment on trade receivables

ERVRER S Gk

ERIER

BESEREETEGHMASRMB(EES
SHER) (TEREFER)) ETES-BF
MAFERRKENEEERRSE LB
Bt A BRRAENSEI B RE—
p P

BEEHE ESMEGHNERRERTRE
REEMAESNESTERIEMER

B\t

RiEEAESMASHN(EEXSHMEET
AU (TpR)) - EFB/UN EEE LB
BITTRIPREMBEERS R

il E

MRBHEEIRESSNELALN B
BHAHBEA Y ERENBHRASE
NEH - EEEESATSEHERES
HERERHEBEERETREN -EZ
FENEEEERHEBNER

EEEE PR RS SR M
N

FEREE

- ZERSELEU((XEREESE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\IRHENHR S

Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Provision for inventories

AR

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

AR M B RRM 00

As at 3| December 2021, the Group had gross inventories of
approximately HK$766.0 million and provision of approximately
HK$62.7 million.

R2021F12A310 EXERAFERENT6aRETK
BENTERBT

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of such inventories may not be recoverable if they are damaged
or become obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined.
FENENARIEREFENBREELB - URLEEFER
BEB R REHEER T A E MR AR

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

Our key procedures in relation to management's assessment of the provision

for inventories included:

EERNEERN AN Lz ARRFEE

- Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of provision for inventories and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud:

— THEEERRTERANADERRGER TBERER
st 2 A RMERNEE R EMER RRE RN KT (NEHE
B EFRHERERENMFHGREN) SHEEXRHE
RERAHE A R

- Understood, evaluated and tested key controls over the inventory
provision, including those in identifying slow-moving and obsolete
inventories, and the estimation and review of subsequent selling price
against the corresponding cost;

— TR FENAGFEEENMELE QEBRERFIEN
REFENER URHBBERNAHREEBETHIRE
B



Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Provision for inventories (continued)

FEEE (8

The Group’s management regularly reviews its inventory levels,
ageing and conditions in order to identify slow-moving and obsolete
inventories and assess if provision for obsolescence is needed.
Management also reviews and estimates, if necessary, the subsequent
selling price and the estimated cost to sale of the inventory and
compares with the corresponding carrying cost and estimated cost
to completion to assess if the net realisable value is lower than its
carrying amount. When management identifies items of inventories
which are slow-moving, obsolete, or having a net realisable value
lower than its carrying amount, management estimates the amount of
provision for inventories by assessing their ageing and conditions, or
comparing the items' corresponding cost with the subsequent selling
price.
EEETEBENBREFENKT IRE KRR > AR
RREFE U hEEREtRRERE BEERTEEL
ERERAGRENECBURMGFHFEHERE L EA
FERIRE A R 5T TR A ETEER LB 25R % E
EEBRERAE - ESEEMN LFHE RENIERFE
BREREEENFRERER  EEERRTEFENRE
RRRSARFENEENFEAREEBETLE A5ER
BHEEE-

We focus on this area due to the significance of the inventory balance
and, management judgement and estimates involved in determining
the provision.
EFEINEBENENFEEREAREER B I RERE
FIEr A& 5t

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HBENR S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

- Tested, on a sample basis, the net realisable value of finished goods, by
comparing the carrying amounts of the inventory items against their
respective selling price and the cost to sale subsequent to the year end.
For raw materials and work in progress, we also tested, on a sample
basis, their subsequent utilisation. For those inventory items which have
not been sold subsequently, we evaluated management's assessment
and checked to the source data on a sample basis, in which they made
reference to the historical sales information and performed research on
the market price information and compared with the estimated selling
price;

— BRMESALRFERENREEAENFRENEER
HEER BRAMIAERFEETIE  HRMHKER
mME EFTHEREERBRETHEANS - WNRERE
HNEFE EETEEERNFRIMEZEREE  ETRK
FLEFELHEEN T HHBERENETRE LRELERG
SHEBETER;

- Attended the inventory observation to observe the inventory

condition;
—  SNEFEEBRHUBEEFEERR;

- Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of individual
inventory items by checking to the underlying supporting documents.

—  EERREEE AR RS ENFERE KRR ER
i

Based on the procedures performed, we considered management's
judgements and estimates applied on the inventories provision were
supported by available evidence.

ERABTHNER BEERREEEN TSR G AR AIE Rt
BEABRESS-

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MR ER S Gl

Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-
use assets (“ROU assets”) held by the United States cash generating
unit (“US CGU”)

XEREELEM ((REARSELEM) FIFNYE - BER
& (ME--BERRE) URERREE (FAEEE) B
miE

Refer to notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARG EHMBRERMEEISKI6e

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets held by the US CGU were
approximately HK$254.7 million and HK$208.8 million, respectively.
2021128318 REREEEBEUMBNNE BER&R
HURERESENREEDANR25478BATR20888
Bl

As a result of the unfavourable performance of the US CGU during
the year ended 31 December 2021, the management performed
impairment assessments by estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU which was determined based on higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use.

RREE02IFNAIHLFEXAREETEURRRE
EEERBAFZREELEUNTRESRETRHET
f ZERFADERAFERLERFTECREEZTHR

BEEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

Our key procedures in relation to management's assessment of the
impairment of PPE and ROU assets held by the US CGU included:
EERNEERE AR ELBUMFNYE BERRBUR
ERAREENAEF G ZAREEFEE

- Obtained an understanding of the management's internal control and

assessment process in identifying the indicators of potential impairment
and estimating the recoverable amount of the US CGU, and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud:

- THREEEMRANZEREELBUNETRETR G
stE PRI EBRE TR A EES R ERER TR8BE
Bt 2 NAREENEEREMES RBREENKT (N#E
B TEN 2PREEERERR MO FEEXR
HRRARER R 5



Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-
use assets (“ROU assets”) held by the United States cash generating
unit (“US CGU”) (continued)

XEREELEM ((REARSELEM) FIFNYE - BER
& (ME--BERRE) URERREE (FAEEE) B
miE (@)

The value in use calculation used cash flow projections based on
management approved financial budgets covering a five-year period
and extrapolate the cash flow projections beyond the period covered

by the budgets with a terminal growth rate. Certain key assumptions

used by the management include revenue growth rates, gross margin,

discount rate, and long-term growth rate. Management also performed

sensitivity analysis on the recoverable amount of the US CGU to

changes in the key assumptions used in the cash flow projections.

There was no impairment loss identified for the year ended 3l
December 2021 based on the management's assessment.
EREEHENREEEEMERELFRBNMERE
UERAsRBERXENBHASMAZHBNRESRER
A EEEFERNETHRER BREBRABRE EFX.
FREUAKRIAEER) - EEETHERREELEMUN
AREEENFEERERATEANEIZRRECHREE
THRIE DT - RIFEEE L BE2021F 128318 LEF
B BERSRERR

We focused on this area due to the significance of the balance of the
PPE and the ROU assets held by the US CGU, and the management’s
impairment assessments involved judgements and estimates.
EEEINKERIANZEREELBUMBTHNYE K
BERuEURGEAEEEGREAKREEBNAET G R
HIER A5t o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HBENR S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

Assessed the appropriateness of the key assumptions used in estimating
the value in use of the PPE and ROU assets. For revenue growth
rates and gross margin, we compared these assumptions to the
historical performance of the US CGU. We also obtained evidence
such as indicative sales orders regarding the expected sales which
were forecasted in the financial budget. For discount rate, we assessed
management's calculation and made reference to other comparable
companies. For terminal growth rate, we compared it to the industry
research and market data;

AHEREEF R BEAREUREAEEENEREEDH
TANBRERNBEL - HRNBRABRERENX BER
ZEBRRAXBFECELEMUNEERFETILR -EFTE
BETRE AWRARFHRE R FERNENERIEH
BB -HRNITRX EETLEERNEBREL 2 ZHM
DELERRAB -HRRIFERE BERHEATERRETS
HIRETTIER

Compared the current year's actual results with the forecast made
in last year to evaluate the reliability and historical accuracy of
management's budgeting process;
RAEFENBEREELXENTAAFILE LEHEEEREFY
HEBENAREERELEREE

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the
key assumptions used in the cash flow projections to understand the
impact of reasonable changes in key assumptions on the estimated
recoverable amount of the US CGU, and to consider if any impairment
loss would be resulted by such reasonable changes. We have also
checked the mathematical accuracy of this sensitivity analysis;
FEEEEHREERERATEANTIERRETHHRAME
A UTRIERRNEEEHHEEREELBMURMGE
AIREEENTE TEEZECEEHETEREMAES
B -BETRE T REBHRIMED OB BERN ;

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS
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B\IRHENHR S

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MREHEE ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-
use assets (“ROU assets”) held by the United States cash generating
unit (“US CGU”) (continued)

XEREELEM ((REARSELEM) FIFNYE - BER
& (ME--BERRE) URERREE (FAEEE) B
miE (@)

- Involved our in-house valuation expert to review the valuation
methodology adopted by management and assessed the valuation
assumptions such as discount rate used by management in the cash
flow projections with reference to market data; and

— BREAARNEGEERSTHEEE EREEERANG
Er*x RFLEEENRERAERATEANGERR 4
ITRE &

- Tested mathematical accuracy and considered the appropriateness of
the cash flows included in the discounted cash flow projections.

— A ENERE TEEREREREEATHAANRE
RENBEEM!-

Based on the procedures performed, we considered management's
judgements and estimates applied on the impairment assessments in respect
of the PPE and ROU assets held by the US CGU were supported by available
evidence.

ERFATHER ESRAEEBMEEREELEUMPFYE -
T 55 T2 3%t DA i PR AR EE 72 B R ST A P B O 1 B Xk (4 51 2 PJ 19
BEX o
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Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) assessment on trade receivables

B2 RWRIANRRE GG (TRREEEBHE) T

Refer to note 3.1(ii)(b)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

B2 RREMBRRMEE. () (b)))

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade receivable of
approximately HK$685.5 million and provision for impairment of
approximately of HK$26.8 million.

R2021F12A310 BXERAEZERTIREERN85.5H
BRETRAEREN2068ERETe

Management applied the simplified approach to measure the lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The Group measured
the expected credit losses on an individual and a collective basis.
For customers with public financial information to assess the credit
rating, they were assessed individually for the expected credit losses,
the remaining customers with shared credit risk characteristics were
grouped into different categories and assessed collectively based on
their likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customers and their geographical location.
EEERBHECAIEBEMEESRUENZMENBE
Bt SREEUENRAFEEFERREEHRE HNF
AARMBEMALUFEERSMNER  REREHEE
FERBEEHER HEABHAREEARBEHENERBA
AEER REEWEBRIEERRZEE A EEREMIE
I B HREENE-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HBENR S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

Our key procedures in relation to management's assessment of the ECL on

trade receivables included:

EERNEEEYESBENENENEEERT G2 AREERFE

&

Obtained an understanding of the management's internal control
and assessment process of estimating expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;
TREEBMN G EZBRRRENAREERBRERNR
SRR WBBE Bt 2 THBEENEERE
MEARBRRRNKT &M TEE - ZHRHEERR
SEIEERISURIE) FHEE R HERRARE R AR ;

Understood, evaluated and tested key controls over the estimation of

allowance for impairment;

T FHERZBHERER A G RRRES
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B\IRHENHR S

Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) assessment on trade receivables

(continued)

B EWRENEREEHR (TAREEER) 1 (@

In developing the loss allowances of trade receivables, the expected
credit loss rates are based on historical payment profiles of sales, the
corresponding historical credit losses rate, the external default data,
and adjusted by management's assessment to reflect the current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
AHTEZBRRENERERE RAGEBEREXDER
HENELATRRR HRELEEHEXR IHINBENHUE
TREEEEAMTETR BERRTBENNEERLER
ENERRATEEER BT EELAE-

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade
receivables balance and the management's ECL assessment on trade
receivables involved judgements and estimates.
EFEINEBBENENESRURBEREAREEREY
B 5 RWRUER TR E BB R HIE M (45T o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

For expected credit losses of trade receivables assessed individually,
with the assistance of our in-house valuation expert, on a sample basis,
we performed market research of the loss given default rate and the
debtors’ credit rating which are publicly available. We evaluated the
credit rating as probability of default which included forward-looking
factor as well as combining the loss given default rate, and compared
with the expected credit loss rates applied by management;
HRERFENEREZENRREERRE AR GEES
KHRE T EFHLRIENENBERRREHAEBTR
ETHEREE - EERERTREAROBRTME APESE
AEERR TAGEOEERR TRAESEERBNENEEES
BREETHER

For expected credit losses of trade receivables assessed collectively, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the management's grouping, We then
tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing analysis of trade
receivables as at the reporting date used in management’s assessment
to the invoices and other relevant documents. We evaluated the
appropriateness of adjustments for forward-looking information based
on the analysis of macro-economic factors, with the assistance of our
in-house valuation expert; and
HRARREETENE R RITENAREERENS &S
AT EEBNENBEE EEARHNEEETEEERE
AR R ERR RS B E 7 RUCGRIANRE 2
ZRMEETHEAS -ERABLEERNHH T ERHER
RERZNDM EEFETHAREEETHAENEES
5 &



Key Audit Matter
MREHEE

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) assessment on trade receivables

(continued)

B EWRENEREEHR (TAREEER) 1 (@

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HBENR S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ESHEBHTHAREAFENEESR

- Recomputed the historical loss rate calculation and evaluated the
appropriateness and tested the accuracy of the major data inputs
including historical settlement pattern of trade receivables used in
the expected credit losses models, on a sample basis, to the Group's
accounting records.

- ENSAEELBEXHE HR S£ENgSCH XAM
BANHEIEZEBAME BERAEEEREATERANE
ZREEHRENBEEEREN) NEEN LRI EER -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered management's
judgements and estimates applied on the expected credit loss assessment on
trade receivables were supported by available evidence.
BERFATHER ESTAEEENEZRNENTRREES
BTGP AR BT R 5T EE AR RE o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do

SO.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error; as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or; if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is

Albert KW. Lee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

rEEmkEMEERTER

For the year ended 31 December 202 |
HE202IF1A3IBLEEE

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By EE FET THATT
Revenue WA 5 4,259,882 3,231,701
Cost of sales THE A 9 (3,542,929) (2,607,886)
Gross profit EH 716,953 623,815
Other income Hr A 6 63,136 82,031
Net impairment losses of financial assets THMEEHERERHE 3.1(i)(b) (4715) (1932)
Other losses, net Higs18 0 %48 7 (11,746) (25,554)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHFAS 9 (420,245) (319,528)
Administrative expenses TEREX 9 (199,207) (202,400)
Research and development cost B R A 9 (67,366) (48,380)
Finance costs A 8 (38,941) (39,050)
Profit before income tax PRETIS IR AT ) 37,869 69,002
Income tax expense PGS 12 (6,434) (7948)
Profit for the year FREH 31,435 61,054
Other comprehensive income Hth2mla
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: R EM P EEIRIER
Current translation differences for foreign BINEEENRE R =58
operations 24,559 46,321
Other comprehensive income for the year FREM2EWE 24,559 46,321
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EW =L 55,994 107,375
Profit for the year attributable to: THANLEGEFERRT]
Owners of the Company KABEB A 15,305 58,523
Non-controlling interests JEPER R 16,130 2531
31,435 61,054
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mrEEmkEtEERTR

For the year ended 31 December 202 |
BEIFNRAIBILEFE

2021 2020
20214 20205
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
By 5E FHET THETT
Total comprehensive income for the year THATEREENEENGEE !
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EREER A 38,308 99,549
Non-controlling interests R R 17,686 7,826
55,994 107,375
Earnings per share BREN
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (B) 14 0.87 334
The notes on page 153 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. FINE2VENWFAZEREMBRE

By —EB o
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' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBIRR

At 3| December 2021
2021128318

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By EE FET THATT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I~ B Rkt 15 507,902 528953
Right-of-use assets TRREE 16 314,997 198,078
Investment properties KB |7 32,508 33,479
Intangible assets B EE 8 12,955 14,733
Deposits and other receivables & R EMERZIE 21 23,333 82,109
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 19 29,616 8,003
921,311 865,355
Current assets MEEE
Inventories =78 20 703,278 585510
Trade and other receivables B2 R E A ERIE 21 840,098 813,930
Bill receivables eSS 2 94,644 78,168
Trade receivables at fair value through other FEEMEEWRGERATETIRZ
comprehensive income B 5 EIREIA 23 39,833 24,072
Pledged bank deposits BIERRITEN 25 1,174 10,260
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 25 228,532 136915
1,907,559 1,648,855
Total assets BEBE 2,828,870 2,514,210
Equity R
Equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders 2R AT ERIFH AR
Share capital % 29 175,000 175,000
Reserves i 817,819 779,511
Equity attributable to owners of the Company EABBE AELER 992,819 954,511
Non-controlling interests IR R 36 13,799 1,948
Total equity 4% 1,006,618 956,459
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRR

At 3| December 2021
20214128318

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 FHET FHET
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Lease liabilities HEaR 16 272,457 162,756
Deferred government grant IRIEE AT # B 26 1,863 2229
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 19 18,106 17,048
292,426 182,033
Current liabilities TREaE
Trade and other payables B R EMEMNIE 26 789,288 678,034
Bill payables ANEE 27 35,729 44902
Contract liabilities BHERE 5(iv) 14,837 12,559
Unsecured bank borrowings RIRRIRITER 28 588,273 547224
Lease liabilities HEa’ 16 84,139 75,468
Taxation payable FESI 17,560 17,531
1,529,826 1,375,718
Total liabilities AR 1,822,252 1,557,751
Total equity and liabilities ke EesE 2,828,870 2514210

The financial statements on pages 46 to 299 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25

March 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Cheung Tung SRIR &
Director £

The notes on page 153 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BI46F299B FTE M IR K FR 2022563825

HESEgHERKRETE whTIE
ERREE !

Mr. Lam Kam Cheung #8355 4

BT

Director £
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' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
M‘I:l*g &@J%

For the year ended 31 December 202 |
BE021F 12831 HLLEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FARER NEGRR
Share Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital options  Translation Retained Sub- controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits total interests Total
B R

Rk ROEE AHFEE IEER EXEE W ERfR  REEN gt 1B st
HKS000 ~ HK$000  HKFO0D  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00 — HK$000  HKS000
TEr Tz  TEx  TEx  TExn  TExn  TEx  TET  TET  TExT  TEzx

(note (7))
(Bt35())

At | January 2020 202051518 175,000 379% 4659 (28305) 663419 854962 10,046 865,008
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 58523 58523 2531 61,054
Exchange differences arising on BEBINEBELN

translation of foreign operation ERER - - - 41026 - 41026 5295 46321
Total comprehensive income for ~ ERZEUREE

the year - - - 41,026 58523 99,549 7826 107,375
Dividend declared to non- IR RS RN

controling interests RE - - - - - - (15924)  (15924)
Lapse of share options BRERN - (936) - 936 - - -
Transfers of statutory reserve BREEAERE - 19,053 - - (19,053) - - -
At 31 December 2020 12020128315 175,000 57,047 3723 12721 703825 954511 1,948 956,459
At | January 2021 R01EIBI18 175,000 57,047 3723 12,721 703,825 954,511 1,948 956,459
Profit for the year FERiEH - - - - 15,305 15,305 16,130 31435
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEREED

translation of foreign operation ERER = = = 23,003 - 23,003 1,556 24,559
Total comprehensive income for ~ ERZEUWGEE

the year - - - 23,003 15,305 38,308 17,686 55,994
Dividend declared to non- RGPS R

controlling interests RE - - - - - (5,835) (5,835)
Lapse of share options BRERN - - - - - (61) - 61 - - -
Transfers of statutory reserve BRELAERE - - - 8473 - - - (8473) - - -
At 31 December 2021 ®021E128315 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 65,520 1,510 3,662 35,724 710,718 992,819 13,799 1,006,618
The notes on page 153 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. FIS3E29ENWEAZELREMBRRMN—

P
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Note:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Pursuant to applicable People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer a portion of their profits after taxation to the statutory
reserve and allocation to the statutory reserve which shall be approved by the board of
directors of the entity. The transfer had been made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners. The appropriation to statutory reserve may cease if the balance of the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital of the entity. The reserve can
be applied either to set off accumulated losses, if any or to increase registered capital. The

statutory reserve is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

In accordance with the provisions of the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in Macau is required to transfer a minimum of 25% of annual net
profit to statutory reserve until the accumulated amount equals half of its quota capital. This

reserve is not distributable to the shareholders.

g2

maEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 202 |
BEIFNRAIBIEFE

REPEARLNE (TRE) VBARTE
ATTEMRARAEEBIMEIBEZ
ERERIETEICHERACERESRS
HE-ZERERRRZEEADRREA
ET-MEiTREGHREZERAMELZ
50% QIR IE B E LR EHME - 2 RER
IR R EIE NA) EMEMEL-

ETRERN AERBTEREDIKC

RERF (BER)BRE  RARB ORI
MR IR A B AB R R D 25%H F E A
MNEZERHFE EERFAERERANREE
AN—F 2B T BRERRED K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= L=
AARERER
For the year ended 31 December 202 |
HE202IF1A3IBLEEE

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By EE FET THATT
Operating activities IR SEE
Net cash generated from operations S FREIRE 328 31(a) 183,782 140,867
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEHER (7,211) (1878)
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") paid B HEEERER (RERER) (19,052) (28260)
PRC withholding tax paid B HREENR (729) (11,409)
The United States of America (the “US") EIREEHIRSRE (T£R)) ek
income tax refunded - 15356
Net cash generated from operating activities RS EEELIRS 2 156,790 114,676
Investing activities ETE
Payment for purchase of property BEYE BERRBZIN
plant and equipment (48,637) (29,428)
Withdrawal/(placement) of pledged bank deposits  $2HY /(7710 BIEIFIRITER 9,086 (8,469)
Proceeds from disposal of property HEYE -HRRERE
plant and equipment 31(b) 5,441 16,774
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBATZIRE RAZEE 21(a) 61,815 33,266
Interest received BUWHE 487 603
Net cash generated from investing activities BEEHESE RS2 28,192 12,746
Financing activities B EH
New unsecured bank borrowings raised HEENEIKIPIETER 31(c) 805,969 483,142
Repayments of unsecured bank borrowings Bl IR TED 31(c) (775,402) (566,486)
Repayments of lease liabilities EREEaE 31(c) (81,563) (70,518)
Interest paid BAFE (38,941) (39,174)
Dividends paid BB E 31(c) (4,861) (44,051)
Net cash used in financing activities BE I FrERE R (94,798) (237,087)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRIREZEEY
and cash equivalents #an Gl B5E 90,184 (109,665)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FNRERRELEEY
the year 136,915 240,320
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEgHHE 1,433 6,260
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, & kESRIELZEY)
represented by bank balances and cash LSRTRERRES 2 228,532 136915
The notes on page 153 to 299 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. FIBE2VENM T AZFLRAUBRRN—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Sinomax Group Limited (“the Company') and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
manufacture and sell health and household products. The Company acts as an
investment holding company and the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 35.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower |, MegaBox
Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company is a subsidiary of Sinomax Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises”),

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Comparative amounts in certain notes have been reclassified to conform with the

current year's presentation.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS™)

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance Cap. 622.

e RRMEE

—REE

RHEEEERAD ((FAF) KEM
BRE MBI ER) SERHEER
BERREBEM - ARDAREERA
A EFENBABNTEEHREN
BizE350

AR R —BRASESFMMIL
MERAR - HEMM =Rt A
ERANREERRBENREXES R
MegaBox | EE201%2005-2007% ©

FABEEBREEBMARFZMER
NEERLED

KRB RERBCFARAT ((EH
BER)WNBAE ZABR—H
REBREEBEMA LN RE -

ATHENEREECERDE U
MERFEENZI AN

FESHBERIE
2l AREIEE

() BFEEMBREZARE
(LB IR BERE

AEENGREMHRE
DREEBVHRSER
(TERMBREERN))
REB(RBER) (5622
B NRERERR

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

153



y

154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for certain trade receivables at fair value through other

comprehensive income which were stated at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the

first time for their annual reporting period commencing | January 2021:

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

HKFRST6 (Amendments)

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial position and
performance for the current and prior years and on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv)  New and amended standards issued but not yet effective

Certain new and amended standards which have been published that are

not mandatory for the financial year beginning on | January 2021 and

have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to AG 5 (revised)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS |

HK Int 5 (2020)

Merger Accounting for Common

Control Combinations("

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use()

Onerous contracts — Costs of

Fulfiling a Contract("

Annual improvements to HKFRS
2018 to 2020

Reference to the Conceptual

Framework!"

Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current®

Classification by the Borrower of
aTerm Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause®

2

R E MR RMTEE

TEEHEREE (@
2 RREE®

()  EHEENEENRIITR
TR

UTEFHITREEE
EREEEM Bl EA
2021 F 1B IHBEBZK
FERBER FLAE

B R R AR A

R E S A
(BET%) HzEH
(B2 BEHE0

EEGHEN  YERE
H168% R th—
(BET%) RTRR

FIATR
R

BEGEL  BBREN-
$375% BiT—1%
(1B31) BHZH

$(‘)

EEUBRE  0I8EE
8| (IB5TA) 2020538

HREBE
BRS%E
BIMEE
oD

EEUBRS  BOERZ
I35 R0
(BET%)

EEGHEN  REaEDE
ek ABREY
(CHEN) JE e

EEREETE ERAY
(2020%F) LaRE

KEER
HZEH
N

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

155

-



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv)  New and amended standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS | and Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

O Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on | January 2022
@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on | January 2023

e Effective date to be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

22

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the

Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations by the Group (except for business combination
under common control) are accounted for using the acquisition method.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)

()

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated

statement of financial position respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in an “Other Reserves”

within equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

22

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)

(i)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to

another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary

comprises the:
. fair values of the assets transferred:

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

. equity interests issued by the Group;

. fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration

arrangement, and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity's net

identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The excess of the:

. consideration transferred,

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a

bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an

independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial asset.
Amounts classified as a financial asset are subsequently remeasured to fair value

with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23

24

25

Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from

such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM").

The executive directors of the Group (the “Executive Directors”) are regarded
as the CODM who will review the operating results of the Group on a

consolidated basis, and make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

26

Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars

(“"HK$") which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

2

AT IR R MIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

26

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through other

comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive income

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@)  assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of

that consolidated statement of financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

26

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

Group companies (continued)

(b)  income and expenses for each consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(c)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

2

AT IR R MIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

27

28

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising land and buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group. It also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at carrying values,
representing cost less depreciation and impairment provision. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their

estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, plant and machinery,
leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures, and motor vehicles are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

28

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost over its estimated useful lives, at the following

rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements, 10% to 33.3% or over the term

furniture and fixtures of the lease, whichever is shorter

Buildings Over the shorter of the term

of the lease or 35 years
Plant and machinery 109% —20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

consolidated statement of financial position date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable

amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised within administrative expenses in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less impairment losses,
if any. No provision for depreciation is made on assets under construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the relevant assets are transferred to

property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

29  Intangible assets

()

(i)

Customer relationship

Customer relationship was acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. It has a finite useful life
and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses.

The customer relationship has finite useful lives ranging from 7 years
to 10 years and is amortised on a straight-line basis. Its useful life was
determined with reference to a number of factors, including historical
customer data and management’s experience and industry knowledge.
Useful lives of customer relationship are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period by considering the changes in above factors.

Brand name

Brand name was acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the brand name is developed through years of advertising,
promotional campaigns and customer satisfaction. Brand name has
a finite useful life of 10 years and is subsequently carried at cost less

accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10  Impairment of non-financial assets

211

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the follow

measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through

other comprehensive income or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

2

R E MR RMTEE

EETEERIE (8

210 FFEREERE

211

BEEBEERAA

AEEERAUGREHZELE
EBRAEBHE EESFETR
BAHSEEEEHABERN
BRETIRELRABR FH
FHERRN HMBERE L
EHHNEREHERHEKRE
1B 7 B 7% I o] B E TR B R
HAoREGEREERMER
HERWEIEE 2 T EERED

RomBlIEEEEELTE
BHERARFEREEWSE T
ZREE-ILBEMS B
ERABEBINEMEEDS
EEMARNNBIAMIIRERE
ReEELEM) 2REKFR
B-BREBEZEEMEENS
BEPERBTZE A SRR
Ee

RERHMEHEERER

() AE

FEEREEZREERE
BB T 248

. HBEZFBHMZ2E
WA B BRERE
NEESEE &

. REBEHAFEE

0V FERE

169



y

170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
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2

AT IR R MIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

()

(i)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and liabilities and the contractual terms of the cash

flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI). For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business

model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iij)  Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or liability at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment

of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the

Group classifies its debt instruments:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iij)  Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in “other losses, net” together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

211

Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iij)  Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate

line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investment and other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(iv)  Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. For other
receivables and deposits, the Group applies the general approach in
assessing the expected credit loss. See note 3.1(ii)(b) for further details

of how the expected credit loss allowance is measured.

2.12  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future event and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,

insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
comprises merchandises and other direct costs. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services

performed in the ordinary course of business.

They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore are all
classified as current assets. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR
17 (=

2

R F5 R R M E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14

215

Trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group, whose contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, were factored
to reputable financial institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement
according to the Group's daily fund management needs. These trade receivable’s
business model is therefore achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling of these assets. Such trade receivables were therefore classified as

financial assets carried at FVOCI.

For details of the accounting policies and impairment policies, please refer to

note 3.1(ii)(b).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 29).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. These amounts
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented

as non-current liabilities,

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

AT IR R MIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawn
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as prepayment for

liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting period.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report

2

£

218

EETEERIE (8

BENTRATENGRAES
M7 AR fEMEREK
Bl A SIBR o FRAEARIR (HO R
R E) BEEEENERZE
BERERREBERN AT
BmAEB - EERRAEMNE
HONEMERIABERT > 5t
RUBMMEXTERTHE
RRmERNZZMAEFEILE
RT ZERRELEERNE
MELER -FUEPRETRZ
ERREAESND HZMIEN
MBERT ZERBERENRE
mRBEERBOANRE
W EHAMREREA T U#
5 o

EaNTREZEERET
BOH 50 & i B 18 "R AL AR 5 B 75
MR KRG R BHRSEE
ME—hZERAERZEREE
HEXNAE (BEEBERZE
FFREEENAEZEE) 2
BNEE RES2EKRmE R
FesR AR o

PRIFAERAEFREENRE
BEEORELERSHEE
D+ZEA > BRMERRRE
ARBEE



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 IE

2.19

220

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Borrowing costs 219

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax 220

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AT IR R MIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

220 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future
taxable amount will be available to utilise those temporary differences

and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

220 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

221

(i)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until

the time of leave.

(i

Retirement benefit costs

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans which are available to all relevant employees. These plans
are generally funded through payments to schemes established by

government or trustee-administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AT IR R MIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

221

Employee benefits (continued)

()

(i)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefit relating to employee service in the current and

prior periods.

The Group also contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution plans and other employee social security plans, including
pension, medical, other welfare benefits, organised and administered by
the relevant governmental authorities in respect of its employees in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group contributes to these
plans based on certain percentages of the total salary of employees,

subject to certain ceiling, as stipulated by the relevant regulations.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus is recognised as a liability when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation for payment of bonus as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the

obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12 months and are

measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 IE

222 Share-based payments 220

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the share
scheme option, including Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Employee share option

The fair value of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is recognised as an employee benefits expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is

determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions (e.g. the entity's share
price)
. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance

vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an

employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement

for employees to save or hold shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

e RRMEE

EETEERIE (8
LARRAR A BRI TR
ZEEkEsE (BFRERARE
LEMBERESERERAR
LERERESD) nESRH

LU AR D B REERB 2R o

ERBKRE

REEBRAFEEABRES
BRERAFEERBRES
BIROBBRENATERES
~EERAN XL AE L ME
moRTXENETEHZE
ERHBRENATEERT

BEEATEREFMNE
WEENRE)

« FEBEEARBRIEHS
R BIR M (NEF R
N HEERERRR—
BREMEARE—RE
BES)NTE R

- BEEAFEEBEFMG (0
BEREER —BREEHRE
REBAFBERMORTE)
MR-

BN EEHRE CERRE
RE R BB IRRD) MRS o 1Y
BSHEGERE BERREFD
7 5 B K R IR 5] KR
RTEENEREHB M-
HRN B m A RESMEST RE &5t

(nA) e e THERFH
HEFEHEE o

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS

183



y

184
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AT IR R MIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

223

224

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations

may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management's best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to

the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods sold or services
performed, stated net of discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities, as described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recoghnition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of goods or services is
transferred to a customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and services may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods and services is transferred

over time if the Group's performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. does not creates an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the

Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a

point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recoghnition (continued)

When determining the transaction price to be allocated to different
performance obligations, the Group first determines the service fees that
the Group entitles in the contract period and adjusts the transaction price
for variable considerations and significant financing component, if any. The
Group includes in the transaction price some of all of an amount of variable
considerations only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the

uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group presents the
contract in the consolidated statement of financial position as a contract related
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity's

performance and the customer’s payment.

A contract related asset is the Group's right to consideration in exchange
for goods and services that the Group has transferred to a customer or
cost to obtain a contract. A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to a consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional if

only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recoghnition (continued)

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to an amount of

consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service

to the customer, the Group presents the contract liability when the payment is

made or a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the

Group's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from

the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue

streams of the Group.

Revenue from sales of health and household products — Retail

For sales of health and household products through the Group's retail
network, which comprising self-operated stand-alone retail shops,
concession counters in department stores, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer
purchases and receives the goods at the retail shops and concession

counters in department stores or when the goods are delivered.

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the customer
purchases the goods and takes delivery in store or makes an order
online. Under the Group's standard contract term, the end customer has
no right to refund nor exchange for most of the household products,

including pillows and bedding products.

2 FE

224

BEEBEERAA

e RRMEE

EETEERIE (8

W bEsE (48)

HRAEERNERBEERN
B ERXANEREE
B AR EFRGEREAERIER
R AARERRFE IR
BREREBARE (UBREES
)2 anNad-anasR
FEEREME R BERAE (X
ARERRIBEN) MATFE
EEmIRBHEE

NTASEETERARNE
SR B i o

() HEBERXEEmREIN

A-FE

MBEBEEENTEMEE
(BEBEEBUTERE
RUNRBERINFEE
1B HERREAREEM
Mz WAREmER#E
BRE RERREE
ERUNRBERDNFTE
BEREE RINEE MBI
RIRE S AT G BF) BESD

ERERPBEEMRINIEH
BENERHNBLETITE
B R 5 BRI
REAEBENRESOR
M RERERPERENRE
o TEEB RO K
BEM BEMBERKLE
R e

0V FERE

187



y

188

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TSR R MIEE

4= A
777 g |

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recoghnition (continued)

()

(i)

Revenue from sales of health and household products — Retail

(continued)

For sales of health and household products on internet, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the customers,
being at the point the goods are delivered to and received by the
customers. Delivery occurs when the goods have been delivered to the
customer’s specific location. When the customers initially purchase the
goods online, the transaction price received by the Group is recognised
as a contract liability until the goods have been delivered to the

customers.

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the customer
purchases the goods and takes delivery in store or makes an order
online. Under the Group's standard contract term, the end customer has

no right to exchange nor refund.

Revenue from sales of polyurethane foam and health and household

products — Wholesale

For sales of health and household products to the wholesalers, revenue is
recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the
goods have been delivered to and received by the wholesalers’ specific
location, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer's

acceptance of the products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

224 Revenue recoghnition (continued)

(i)

Revenue from sales of polyurethane foam and health and household

products — Wholesale (continued)

Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for

acceptance have been satisfied.

Under the Group's standard contract term, the customer has no rights to
return once the goods are accepted by the buyers. The Group generally

allows a credit period ranging from 7 days to 120 days upon delivery.

2.25 Earnings per share

()

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing;

the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

225 Earnings per share (continued)

(i)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination

of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and the weighted
average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

2.26 Leases

As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to |0 years. Lease terms are negotiated

on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions,

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease
and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease

component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease

incentives receivable

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially

measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees
. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain

to exercise that option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects

the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also

included in the measurement of the liability.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group where possible, uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for

each period.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Short-

term leases are leases with a lease term of |2 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

226

227

Leases (continued)

As a lessor

The Group classifies all leases as operating leases as the Group will not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset. Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor, is
recognised within “other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for

assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values when there is a
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Group will comply

with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary to

match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, and

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
the senior management of the Company under policies approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating units to cope
with overall risk management as well as specific areas such as market risk, credit

risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Market risk

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China (“the PRC"),
Hong Kong, United States (“the U.S.”) and Vietnam.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Market risk (continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The functional currency of the Hong Kong reporting entities
is HK$ and the transactions are mostly denominated in HK$
and United States dollar (“US$"). For transactions or balances
denominated in US$ are reasonably stable with the HK$ under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the directors are of the opinion
that the Company does not have significant foreign exchange
risk, the exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates will only arise
from the translation to the presentation currency of the Group.

Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The functional currency of the PRC reporting entities is Renminbi
(“RMB") and the transactions are mostly denominated in RMB
and HK$.The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control

promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

(a)  Forejgn exchange risk (continued)

The functional currency of Vietnamese reporting entities is
Vietnamese dong (“VND") and the transactions are mostly
dominated in VND and US$.The conversion of VND into foreign
currencies is subjected to the rules and regulation of the foreign

exchange control promulgated by the State Bank of Vietnam.

As majority of the transactions are denominated in the functional
currencies of the respective entities. The Groups has no material
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and does not

have material exposure on foreign exchange risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

Market risk (continued)

(b)  Interest rate risk

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group's borrowings and receivables
are carried at amortised cost. The Group monitors closely its
interest rate exposure by maintaining an appropriate floating
rate on borrowings and considers hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. The position is regularly
monitored and evaluated by reference of anticipated changes in

market interest rate.
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R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Market risk (continued)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. As at 31 December 2021, if interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points)
with all other variable constant, the Group's post-tax profit and
total comprehensive income would have been approximately
HK$2,454,000 lower/higher (2020: post-tax profit and total
comprehensive income would have been approximately

HK$2,239,000 lower/higher).

(i) Credit risk

@

198

Risk management

Credit risk arises if a customer or other counterparty fails to meet
its contractual obligations. The credit risk of the Group mainly
arises from trade and other receivables and deposits with banks

and financial institutions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

@

Risk management (continued)

The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure
to any financial institutions. Substantially all the deposits in banks
are held in reputable financial institutions located in Hong Kong
and the PRC, which management believes are of high credit
quality and management does not expect any losses arising from

non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Sales to large or long-established customers with good
repayment history comprise a significant proportion of the total
sales. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and

other receivables falls within the recorded allowances.
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to the

expected credit loss model:

*  trade receivables at amortised cost,

*  bill receivables, other receivables and deposits

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment

loss was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBEREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEBEBER @
(i) Credit risk (continued) (i) EERE (&)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) (b) EHEELBE &

(i) Trade receivables at amortised cost () IREIHRAE

B2 EHEK

A

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to rEERAS
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime B BHREE
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To A9k 2 1
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have fER AT ETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of 12 months and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within the period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product index of the countries, export index,
and Consumer Price Index to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjust the historical loss rate based on

expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses of financial assets in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited

against the same line item.

The Group uses two categories for those trade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss allowance is

determined for each of those categories.
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

For trade receivables relating to corporate customers,
which are listed entities with satisfactory credit history, are
assessed individually for impairment allowance. As at 3|
December 2021, the balances of such individually assessed
trade receivables and the corresponding loss allowance are
HK$102,420,000 (2020:HK$ 1 1'1,271,000) and HK$364,000
(2020:HK$388,000), respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

Other than those trade receivables which were assessed
by individual basis, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared similar credit risk characteristics and the

days past due.

The following tables present the balances of gross carrying
amounts and loss allowance in respect of the collectively
assessed trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 and

2020:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

3 HBRKREER @
3 MEEBREZ @
()  EEREE &)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued) (b) EHEELBE &
(i) Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued) () FREIER ARG
2ZB SRR
B (B
Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis HE =8
(continued) EE5E @
Past due
Not  Within 3160 6190  91-180 181365  Over
yetdue 30 days days days days days 365 Days Total
3B I 9IE BIE BB
31 December 2021 WIENAIE  HXBE 30BA 60H 9H  180H  35H  3¢5A i
HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx TErn TEx TiErn TEx TiErn TEx TiEn
Trade receivables BREWEE 460360 70221 21531 7589 11066 615l 6172 583090
Expected loss rate BEER 1.0% 7% U7%  244%  S17%  808%  873%  45%
Loss allowance BEER 4791 1204 2516 1852 5718 4969 5387 26437
Past due
ki
Not ~ Within 3160 6190  91-180 181-365  Over
yetdue 30 days days days days days 365 Days Total
3IE 61E 9IE  IBIE e
31 December 2020 WNENAIA  HEABH 30HA 608 9%H  180B  365H  365H st
HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
TEr FhErn TEx TErn ThEx FTiErn ThEx FiEn
Trade receivables ER e 4001620 85151 20564 35032 14180 839 17767 583644
Expected loss rate LU RS 07%  08%  57% 115%  194%  676%  842%  55%
Loss allowance BEER 2731 76105 401 2746 5627 14963 32029
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 3l

R E MR RMTEE

IBERERE (@)
3 MBEBER @
(i) 1EERE 8
b) EHEENFE E
()  IRESEp A E

B2 E5EIK
oA ()

P12B31H/

December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as BRI
follows: BEREER
EEREY
BRUE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Opening loss allowance at | January 5318 | BBVEBYI RS I8 #& 32,417 30,751
Reversal of previous loss allowance  #[Ol3B IR ZEH (6,716) (6,431)
Loss allowance recognised in FRRIERRERHN
profit or loss during the year gty 11,431 25,233
Receivables written off during the T PRIRAEUR[EIT
year as uncollectible 1 4 FE W R IR (10,681) (16,870)
Exchange differences ERER 350 (266)
Closing loss allowance K12831 BREIRE B
at 31 December 26,801 32417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

Trade receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the group, and a failure to make contractual

payments for a period of greater than 360 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within statement of profit and loss.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

Trade receivables at amortised cost (continued)

The Group also uses trade receivables factoring facilities
to manage the credit risk of its trade debtors. As at 31
December 2021, trade receivables of approximately
HK$39,833,000 (2020: HK$24,072,000) was subject
to non-recourse factoring arrangements and therefore

derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include bill
receivables, other receivables and deposits. Management
considers that the credit risk of these balances has
not increased significantly since initial recognition with
reference to the counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected credit losses

which was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R F5 R R M E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

While cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and
pledged bank deposits are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss

was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)
(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group aims
to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and ensure
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank borrowing.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents and
flexibility in funding through having available sources of

financing.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated HK$228,532,000 (2020:
HK$136,915,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires a term loan that
contains a clause that gives the lender the unconditional
right to call the loan at any time shall be classified in total
by the borrower as current in the statement of financial
position. This is irrespective of whether a default event
has occurred and notwithstanding any other terms and
maturity stated in the loan agreement. As at 3|1 December
2021, borrowings of approximately HK$44,116,000 (2020
HK$27,096,000) was classified as current liabilities due to

this requirement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

AT IR R MIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.

| Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(il

Liquidity risk (continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's
liquidity reserve (comprising the undrawn borrowing
facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents (note 25)
on the basis of expected cash flows.

This is generally carried out at local level in the operating
companies of the Group, in accordance with practice
and limits set by the Group. These limits vary by location
to take into account the liquidity of the market in which
the entity operates. In addition, the Group's liquidity
management policy involves projecting cash flows in
major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets
necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity
ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements
and maintaining debt financing plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

()

(i)

3 HMEBEREE @
3 MBRBEER @
(i) EEERE &)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) (b) EHEERRE (B
Liquidity risk (continued) (i RBEZEMR
(“\E)
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities TRIAE
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining NEmEaBER
period at the end of the reporting period to the Eep e e
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the AIREHRRE
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. HEREAQE
HA B B9 R B8R HA
BET D
RARENE
BEAAMERS
NIRRT RE-
On demand Total
or within One to Two to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years five years cash flows amounts
BRERH FERRE
—£R  —ERE ZELE BRI RELE fREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TAT TART TAT TAT TART
At 3| December 202 120215128318
Trade and other payables BHREM
BT 713850 - - - 713850 713,850
Bill payables BARE 35729 - - - 35,729 35,729
Lease liabilities and HEBRERFENH
interest payment 101,164 65,960 144,439 105,209 416,772 356,596
Bank borrowings and BOERRFENTK
interest payment 608,157 - - - 608,157 588,273
1,458,900 65,960 144,439 105,209 1,774,508 1,694,448
At 31 December 2020 #20205128318
Trade and other payables B REM
BRI 607,795 - - - 607,795 607,795
Bil payables BIRE 44902 - - - 44902 44902
Lease liabilities and HEBERFENR
interest payment 81433 47738 74053 68419 271643 238224
Bank borrowings and RITBEIRFIEAR
interest payment 564,966 - - - 564966 547224
1,299,096 47738 74053 68419 489,306 1,438,145
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to
continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry,
the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which calculated
as net debt divided by total equity (as shown in the balance sheet, including
non-controlling interests). Accordingly, the net debt to equity ratio as at 3|

December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

3

MBRERERE (B

32

BAER

FEREEEAZERARE
AEERBEEENEN UF
BRRRTRLE A EME
MEFRNTUREFREE
ARBLUR D ERRAE

AEFYRABREARE K&
B AN TRENREE
BRRREBRBEEA EFTHR
FHEBEELUR D ER B
RNET— B AEEREBEEE
BEXEZEEN EEBEX
LR B ERUEREE WEE
BERM~ BEFERER)
STE o AL 722021 &£ 520205
NA3IBNFEHRHREGELER
N

2021 2020
20215 2020%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FHT

Unsecured bank borrowings IR IRITER 588,273 547224
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED (228,532) (136915)
Net debt FEE 359,741 410,309
Total equity B 1,006,618 956,459
Net debt to equity ratio FEEHEEEE 36% 43%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by level of inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure the fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels

within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1);

. inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market

data. (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBERERE G
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ATEMGE @

The following table presents the Group's financial assets carried at fair value as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

TRENAEBR202I FE R
2020F 12831 B A FESER

ZEREE !
Fair value Valuation technique
Financial asset Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs Sensitivity
fh{E TR
EHMEE RUTEBZATE RATERE FEBARE BRE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
128318 12A31H
Trade receivables at FVOCI 39,833 24072 Level 3 » Discounted cash flows * A slight increase in risk-
FBEME2EmNE B ERBERE adjusted discount rates
BATEIRZ used would result in a
B2 RIS + Estimated settlement slight decrease in fair

period from these
trade receivables and
risk adjusted discount
rates of 1.07% to
2.57% (31 December
2020: 1.23% to 2.73%)
per annum quoted by
the banks
ZEEFRNRIEZ
tsHE M AR R SR
TR 2 R R ER R4
BERAEFI07%E
257% (20205 12831
H :1.23%%2.73%)

There were no transfers between levels |, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value

measurements during the year. For transfer into and out of level 3 measurement

RE—E

value, and vice versa.
PR A Y L B s ZE 4
BEEY EARER
NFEEMED &
2R

A slight increase in
estimated settlement
period used would
result in a slight
decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

PR {55 RO 5B 11 HA
B/ g EFARERA
TENMERL R
TRfR e

MEEUEAFEHEMS  F
ETBRNEZEBZ

see (iii) below. BlrEESE ARBAKREL
E-EFHENHI FL2RET
X (iif) ©

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy AEENBRDEFERER R

levels as at the end of the yean
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33

Fair value estimation (continued)

()

(i)

Financial instruments in level |

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the statement of financial position date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, price services
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly

occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, overthe-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument

is included in level 2.
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(iij)  Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments at FVOCI
includes the present value of the estimated future cash flows at the fixed

rate stated in factoring agreements plus LIBOR.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the

years ended 31 December 202 and 2020.

3

MBRERERE (B

33

ATHEEE (@
(i) E=RNEMIA

W—EHZREEARSHIL
FERABRERZHARE
AIZEMIAIAE=E
R o

ARFEEBEMEZEIE
R ATEIERNERT
AR EGERMEER
RIE TR ERE E R
REFARRESREN
BEM EHHRITEZES

%

TRENEE2021F R
200 12A3IBNE=ZE
TAMNEIL-

2021 2020
2021 £ 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

As at | January RIAIH 24,072 44,696
Transfer from trade receivables B E B SR IE 358,303 462,570
Settlement wE (342,647) (483322)
Fair value change NEEEE 105 128
As at 31 December ®128318 39,833 24,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which,

by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise

judgement in applying the group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

@)

(b)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group's past historical data, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key

assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 3.1 (ii)(b).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated cost to completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. Management

reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR
17 (=

R F5 R R M E

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and

intangible assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment;
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates. Management
judgement is required in the area of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as

a result affect the Group's financial condition and results of operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences would impact the current tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax losses
are recognized when management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilized. Where the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in

the period in which such estimates are changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM. The Executive Directors
review the Group's internal report in order to assess its performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on these

reports.

The Group is currently organised into the following three geographical markets:

China market Manufacture and sale of health and household products
and polyurethane foam for customers located in the

Mainland China (the “PRC"), Hong Kong and Macau.

North American market ~ Manufacture and sale of health and household products
for customers located in the United States (the "US."),

Canada and other North American countries.

Europe and other overseas Manufacture and sale of health and household products
markets and foam for customers located overseas except for
those customers located in the China market and the

North American market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

Segment revenue

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue by operating and reportable

segments:

For the year ended 3| December 2021

e RRMEE

AR EBER (&)

0  DEKRA

TXHINREERTRE DB
BIDHARERBABN DN

HE2021F 12831 HILEEE

Europe

North and other

China American overseas
market market markets Total

BRMN R B Ath
PETHE IEETS B I st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FHERT FET
External sales HIMNHE 2,222,881 1,573,442 463,559 4,259,882
Cost of sales THE R (3,542,929)
Other income Hr A 63,136

Net impairment losses of EMEEZAHERBEFE

financial assets (4,715)
Other losses, net HihEsis 28 (11,746)
Selling and distribution expenses 5 K 388 FI 32 (420,245)
Administrative expenses TR (199,207)
Finance cost MR (38,941)
Research and development cost FfFE% A2 (67,366)
Profit before income tax PRETSIR AT F] 37,869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

()  Segment revenue (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

AR EBER (&)

0  IEUA @
BHE2020FN2A3IHLEEE

Europe
North and other
China American overseas
market market markets Total
B R ELAh
PEIT S IEET5H BINTIH wBst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TAET TET
External sales HIMNAE 1,649,701 1372313 209,687 3231701
Cost of sales HE A (2,607,886)
Other income HHA 82,031
Net impairment losses of EHEEZHERERE
financial assets (1932)
Other losses, net HAngs518 358 (25.554)
Selling and distribution expenses 5 K288 5 &2 (319,528)
Administrative expenses TR (202,400)
Finance cost R (39,050)
Research and development cost  Bff 8% B 2K (48,380)
Profit before income tax BRPTIS A A& A 69,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
R E MR RMTEE

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 WARSEHER @
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers iy ERAYIEMAS
(a)  Type of major products @) LTEEREY
Revenue recognised at a point in time during the year is as follows: A5 P9 118 R FED R B 5T
W
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TATT
Sales of health and household products ~ #HERE MK EE MR 2,370,009 2,054,608
Sales of polyurethane foam HERREEAK 1,889,873 1,177,093
Total B 5t 4,259,882 3231701
(b)  Geographical markets (b) HEEHE
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is AEBERBIIBERUA
presented based on the location of the retail shops and concession NERDRETSEHE
counters or location of customers for wholesales. NEEERTESEME
HMEBETHENTRME
#FLLES] e
2021 2020
20215 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
China market HEH S
—The PRC —FE 1,913,081 [,311,310
— Hong Kong, Macau and others — 5B VR RHEMM S 309,800 338391
North American market EETS
—The US. —%H 1,442,985 1,269,099
— Others —Hth 130,457 103214
Europe and other overseas markets BN R H I 5 463,559 209,687
Total a5t 4,259,882 3231701
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 WARSEER @@
(i)  Other segment information (i) HtpEpER
(a)  Geographical information @ HHEH
Information about the Group's non-current assets (excluding other rEEBFERBEE (18
receivables and deferred tax assets) is presented based on the 15 EL A P& WU RRTE R 3R SE AR
geographic location of the assets: BEE) NEHNEREE
MR EFUZS)
2021 2020
20215 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TAT
The US. ES 493,290 370411
The PRC a3 324,616 329,712
Hong Kong 5% 12,296 19,130
Vietnam 2] 45,623 59,400
Macau R = 4
875,825 778,657
(b)  Information about major customers b) ETEFEFHEF
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue to FRMERMBRAGEER
the Group during the years are as follows: BIA 0% ERNE AU
e
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TATT
Customer A ERA N/A RER' 323451
Customer B ZEB 504,533 N/A 78 F3?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
R E MR RMTEE

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 WARSEHER @&
(i)  Other segment information (continued) @iy EthaEEE @@
(b)  Information about major customer (continued) b FEEFHEN (#)
The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total HEWATLEGEAER
revenue to the Group for 2021, 202 1 FABUL A 10% 0L £ o
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total ! HEBKATRGEEEE
revenue to the Group for 2020. 20205 BULA 10%]L £ o
(iv)  Liabilities related to contracts with customers v ERANERNEaE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with AEBRCHEAUTHEREN
customers: BRENEE:
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TAT
Receipt in advance from customers for the sales TR ZE P MRERREEREEN
of health and household products 14,837 12,559
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the year was TRIITFARDEALEESH
related to carried forward contract liabilities. BEEHENKAEE-
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TAT
Sales of health and household products HERBEAXEER 12,559 466
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

6  OTHER INCOME 6  Hftwhz

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR FBR
Interest income from bank deposits RBFITERBF BHA 305 414
Interest income from cash consideration receivables RERUVIREREZHEWRA 2,390 2,876
Imputed interest income from rental deposits HERS 2GR BRA 1,335 [,003
Interest income from investment in subleases BEQNHZFEWA 182 189
Government subsidies (note) B R G (P5E) 12,634 40,831
Rental income HEWA 16,144 11,669
Scrap sales BERHHE 21,065 22,479
Others Hith 9,081 2,570
63,136 82,031

Note: Bt

The amount mainly represents government grant provided by PRC government related to

foreign capital injection and new material technology development which is in corporation

with the local PRC government (2020: The amount mainly represents salaries and wages

subsidies received from the governments for the use of paying wages of employees during the

year due to COVID-19).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

OTHER LOSSES, NET 7 Eftisis P
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BERREN G 166 830
Gain on early termination of right-of-use assets RELLFERAREENNT 463 668
Loss on early termination of sublease RELIEDHANEE (225) -
Net exchange differences EREESE (12,150) (26,898)
Loss on initial recognition of investment in subleases BRERDHEEZHE = (154)
(11,746) (25,554)
B
FINANCE COSTS 8 RATERAS
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITREMAE 21,074 23316
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHNE 16,952 14,505
Interest and charges on factoring of trade receivables ~ HIZE 5 EWFIBREZ M EREH 915 1,229
38,941 39,050
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 ERMHEIHHRARX
2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH7T
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRARTNEENR 2,884,378 2,098,601
Employee benefits expenses (note |0) BERMEX (M) 542,166 437,130
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESRD 1,778 641
Auditor's remuneration ZEEMEN
— Audit service — RS 2,920 2,800
— Non-audit service —FBERRE 880 880
Bank charges IRTEA 10,688 8,602
Concessionaire commission for department store BERAREERFEERAE ([sta)
counters (note a) 47,071 43575
Expenses relating to short-term or low value leases BRIy REEHER AX 2,261 1,314
Depreciation of investment properties REMEITE 2,211 1964
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MR R EITE 70,153 67936
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEITE 86,084 75,168
Inventory provision FaiEE 12,971 19,478
Legal and professional fees ARREXER 18,176 18,126
Marketing expenses THEEE 91,430 30,098
Transportation expenses EmE 99,734 81,594
Others Hith 356,846 290287

Total cost of sales, administrative expenses, selling and ~ #HE A {TEZ HE R
distribution expenses and research and development 338 K Fff 35 & 4R %R

expenses 4,229,747 3,178,194
Note: B st
(@)  Concessionaire commission for department store counters is generally calculated @ BELIEEFFLEME—HRUER
by applying pre-determined percentages to actual sales made through respective HENERHEERERETASL
counters. 8o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMTEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 0 (BERFHX
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET THTT
Wages and salaries (including directors’ emoluments) ~ TE#EH$ (BIEESZWE) ()

(note a) 503,638 417,010
Retirement benefits costs (note ) RRBRIBA (FiEEc) 35,385 17223
Other post-employment benefits HEERER 3,143 2,897

542,166 437,130

The employee benefits expenses amounting to HK$106,862,000 (2020:
HK$84,161,000) are recognised in selling and distribution expenses; HK$89,366,000
(2020: HK$82,165,000) in administrative expenses; HK$319,376,000 (2020:
HK$251,405,000) in cost of sales; and HK$26,562,000 (2020: HK$19,399,000) in
research and development cost in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

(@)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the
year included three (2020: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note | 1. The emoluments paid and payable to the

remaining two individuals (2020: one individual) during the year are as follows:

BERAZA%106862,0005 T
(2020%F : 84,161,000 7T) Wit E 2
BRERZHERDHM PSR ;
89,366,000 75 (20204 : 82,165,000
BL) DRITHEIHRER &
319,376,000 7T(20204F © 251,405,000
BL) DREERARER ; &
26,562,00078 75 (20204  19,399,0007
70) TR B RS o

@ hEREHMAL

FRAEALURSHFMAL
BIE=4 (2020 . UL) &S
WEZEFHMRKE 258
DFARB - ERETRER
BTIm4 (2020 : —4) AL
MEBN T

2021 2020
20215 20204F
HK’$000 HK'$000
FAT TFHET

Basic salaries, housing allowances, BEXx#FHe -EEEN HitZK
other allowances and benefits in kind EYHm 3,781 1,872
Retirement plan contributions RIRETEIHER 157 75
3,938 1,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

(@)  Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments for the two individuals (2020: one individual) fall within the

following bands:

0 {EEREFHS @

@

LasEHMAL (8

Zma (20008 —%) A2
McEENT :

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

Number of Number of

employees employees

BEAK EE AR

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T £2,000,0007 7T 2 |
During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors FRAEAEETRERAEZESEY X

or the five highest paid individuals mentioned above as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil).

(b)  Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments for the four senior management (2020: four senior

management) fall within the following bands:

A ReiH AL GER
Ml EABMATRINARE
EE RN K BB BB
(20204 : £E) o

b EREEREHMN
ML EREER (2020F ML 5
REERE) VHMEENT -
2021 2020
20214F 20204
Number of senior Number of senior
management management

SREEBEAE SHREEEAK

HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 752 1,000,000 7T
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 75 Z 1,500,0007 7T

| 2
3 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

(©

Retirement benefit plans

The Group participates in Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“"MPF Scheme”)
for all qualified employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at a rate of 5% specified in the rules, but
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable

in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC and Vietnam are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC and Vietnam
government, respectively. The PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable in future years.

The Group maintains multiple qualified contributory saving plans as allowed
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code in the US. These plans
are defined contribution plans covering employees employed in the US and
provide for voluntary contributions by employees, subject to certain limits.
The contributions are made by both the employees and the employer. The
employees’ contributions are primarily based on specified dollar amounts or

percentages of employee compensation.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total contributable charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amount to HK$35,385,000 (2020: HK$17,223,000).

e RRMEE

0 {EEREFHS @

©

BEEBEERAA

BINEFIETE

1R 5 58 1 1 A & & 5T B R4
rEBAMBEEAERER
2HREEAREEHE (8E
T8  RBEHEMNEE
BAEEERITEAZHT
NEZEENHEFE RIER
BEHERAF BEREEER
BRI GET AR5 %4 5t &
HFERELREA15008
T AEBEEMRBEHEN
W—EBARBHEEHAME
H TR o b A2 WL AR ET A L
TR AR RFERAIHER

RAEKRERERENESE ST
I 2 i BT 0 Bl R B B 5K
BEERAKEBNENME
BEhEUEREARRZEER
TENETHRLEARIKER
SR UABHEMRES -
AEE BRGNS I
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BARRE BRI HRR o
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

Il BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS I ERNENRED
()  Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ EERESTHAEME
The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the years ended 31 B ZE2021F K&2020F 128318
December 2021 and 2020 is set out below: TFEESUEERESITHA
BRNMEHINMT
Performance Share  Retirement
Salaries related based benefit
and incentive payment scheme
Fee allowances  payments  expenses contributions Total
MR AR

ek REAH SKERCR  BAER
ik R B fx R st
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
FExT FHExT FExR FEx FExR  FTHEx

For the year ended HE2021128318

31 December 202| IEFE
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (note i) MERALE (5 - 2,055 200 - 18 2,273
Mr CheungTung (note i) RIRAAE (i) - 2,127 450 - 18 2,595
Mr. Chen Feng [y - 2,532 300 - - 2,832
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MiRESRE - 1,603 350 - 18 1,971
Ms. Lam Fei Man MER/NA - 1,133 250 - 18 1,401
Independent non-executive ILIFHITESE

directors
Mr.Wong Chi Keung FEREE 240 - - - - 240
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, — #R& /A EU3R

Simon 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SRESTE 240 = = = = 240
Mr.Wu Tak Lung SERRAE 240 - - - - 240

960 9,450 1,550 - 72 12,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PA TS ER R M 5T

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

@

4= A
777 g |

I ERNENRED (8

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) @ EERESTHRASHME @
Performance Share  Retirement
Salaries related based benefit
and incentive payment scheme
Fee allowances  payments  expenses contributions Total
LA An
FrEk RRER SEROR  RAKET
Fiakeny 2R SRR fix stEIf w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT THEx TAErT TAT TERT  TER
For the year ended #ZE2020F12H31H
31 December 2020 ILEFE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (note i) MERFE (HTEH) - 1,571 500 - 14 2,085
Mr. Cheung Tung (note i) SRIRACAE (Fff5Eii) - 1,626 1,000 - 14 2,640
Mr. Chen Feng PR 5 A - 2310 500 - - 2810
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MR E - 1,481 650 - 18 2,149
Ms. Lam Fei Man 3EE/\E - 1,037 500 - 18 1,555
Independent non-executive ILIEHITES
directors
Mr.Wong Chi Keung FTEREE 220 - - - - 220
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, K&/ EUR
Simon 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie REELE 220 - - - - 220
Mr.Wu Tak Lung RERREE 220 - - - - 220
880 8,025 3,150 - 64 12,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) I EENENREER @
(a)  Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) @ EERESTHASME @

Notes:

0) Mr: Lam Chi Fan, an executive of the Company, is also the Chairman of the

Board.

(i) Mr Cheung Tung, an executive of the Company, is also the President of the

Company.

(b)  Directors’ retirement benefits ®)

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits ©

None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits during

the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Il BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’

services

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’ services (2020:
Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such

directors

During the year ended 3| December 2021, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of the directors, or controlled body

corporates and connected entities of such directors (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 32, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company's
subsidiary was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or at any

time during the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12 PR

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH7 THT
Current tax: BNERTR IS
Hong Kong profit tax (note i) HEAEM (H5T) 2,048 5512
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") (note ii) PRI EPRER (TP EREHR)
(By&ii) 23,986 18,390
PRC withholding tax on distributed profits from REFEMBEATEDTRENZ
PRC subsidiaries hEIENR 729 11,409
26,763 35311
(Over)/under provision in prior years: BEEE (B /FEifE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax SR - 335
PRC EIT PRI PRSI (98) 497
US income tax (note iii) EEIFF1SHR (P ETi) - (15,356)
(98) (14,524)
Deferred taxation (note 19) FIERRIE (EE19) (20,231) (12,839)
6,434 7,948

Notes:

(i) On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue ()

(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the "“Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits

tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted

on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2

million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above

HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%, while only one entity nominated by a group of

“connected entities” will be entitled to select the lower tax rate. The profits of group

entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be

taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

0

(ii)

(continued)

Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated

assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, PRC EIT is calculated
based on the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profit of those subsidiaries
established in the PRC for both years, except for certain PRC subsidiaries being
approved as High and New Technology Enterprise by the relevant government
authorities which are subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% for a 3-year
period which expired in 2021 and will expire in 2022 (2020: 2021 and 2022),

respectively.

The US corporate tax rate is 21% for the years ended 3| December 2021 and 2020
in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017.The US income tax includes (a)
federal income tax calculated at a fixed rate of 21% for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 on the estimated US federal taxable income and (b) state income tax
calculated at various state income tax rates for both periods on the estimated state
taxable income for the respective states. The income subject to tax in a specific state
(i.e. state taxable income) is calculated based on the federal taxable income with state
tax adjustments, which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective states (i.e.
percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned or specially allocated to the
respective states in which the Group operates) based on the apportionment factors

provided from the state tax returns in previous year

In 2020, the tax refund to certain US subsidiaries mainly represent the tax relief
measures implemented by the government in accordance with the Coronavirus Aid,

Relief, and Economic Security Act.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)  Under the law of Viethnam on Corporate Income Tax (the “Vietnam CIT"), Vietnam

CIT is calculated based on the statutory rate of 20% of the assessable profit of those

subsidiaries established in Vietnam and these companies had no assessable profit

during the years ended 31 December 202 and 2020.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

FrSHR (&)

Bzt (&)

(v REHECERER ((BEEERE
)5 vEeEMBRIBEPEE
iz ZEWE ARz BRRENZ
0% EEMEFE MREABIR
HE202FER2020F 12831 HIEEE
i e AR A o

FAMBRAXEGEGERaRE Tﬂ%
H W R B BRI A s A B BRI T

2021 2020

202145 20204F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TFHET

Profit before income tax BRFTIS KA E A 37,869 69,002

Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate BREBNBRNEAENRIE 6,248 1,385
Effect on different tax rates of subsidiaries operatingin  TEEMBZEREBZ NI B AR

other jurisdictions TRRENTZZ 3,385 4201

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7] 177 5 2 (VAR 7% 57 & 14,084 10,766

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes BRHRHNBANRBEZE (17,301) (21,783)

Over provision in prior years BREEEBEER (98) (14.524)

Tax effect of tax loss not recognised FAEDREEBRNRBEE 1,992 21,450

Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised BABERERRBEE (4,250) (6791)
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings of PRC FREI B AR R D IREF N EINR

subsidiaries 2,539 3,409

Income tax on concessionary rate REBRNEAENFRER (165) (165)

Income tax expense PREMES 6,434 7,948
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.4 cents
(2020: Nil) per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021, amounting
to approximately HK$7,000,000 has been proposed by the board of directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The

proposed final dividend is not recognized as a liability as at 3| December 2021.

During the vear, a subsidiary of the Company declared dividend amounting to
HK$5,835,000 and paid dividend amounting to HK$4,861,000 to non-controlling
interests (2020: declared and paid dividend amounting to HK$15,924,000 to non-

controlling interests).

R E MR RMTEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

14

Earnings for the purpose of basic and

diluted earnings per share:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of

the Company

SEEREAREFRN BT

ERBEHEENEBIEEFEEF

Number of shares for the purpose of basic and

diluted loss per share: ('000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings

per share

AESREARBEREREZRNHUE

TR

ARERESRBERN 2 EBR

98

Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

SREAREERN (B

BRER
KABEEANELERERRIEER
ABRBEUTEIEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
15,305 58,523
1,750,002 1,750,002
0.87 334

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 202 |

and 2020 does not assume the exercise of the share options as the exercise prices of

those share options are higher than the average market price of shares to the extent

that they are anti-dilutive during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
R E MR RMTEE

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 R -BERzE
Leasehold
improvements,
Freehold Plant furniture Construction
land and and and Motor in
buildings machinery fixtures vehicles progress Total
=LY
KAFHE BI85
ITHRET BERMS RRE HE EEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THT THT T THET
Cost s
At | January 2020 20201 B1H 136,278 480425 238512 13,181 16,443 884839
Additions RE - 22,200 4343 354 3649 30,546
Disposals HE (6) (5,285) (15422) (1202) - (21915)
Transfer from construction BREATEIR
in progress - 430 999 - (1,429) -
Exchange differences EREE 9,091 13,645 3445 718 150 27,049
At 31 December 2020 12020128315 145,363 511415 231877 13,051 18813 920519
Additions e - 9472 7758 407 31,000 48,637
Disposals HE - (13029) (5775) (1,653) - (20457)
Transfer from construction BRETEIR
in progress - 18,440 11878 211 (30,529) -
Transfer to investment properties BREERENE (304) - - - - (304)
Exchange differences EREE 4311 6,608 689 332 86 13026
At 31 December 2021 0214128318 149,370 532906 247427 12,348 19,370 961,421
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

15 ¥%E- -BERRE (@

Leasehold
improvements,
Freehold Plant furniture Construction
land and and and Motor in
buildings machinery fixtures vehicles progress Total
BEME
kAR RAE KA
IHREF HBERES REE AE HERIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Depreciation and impairment ERRE
At | January 2020 P00 1518 51475 163,029 91,741 8,758 - 315,003
Depreciation for the year FRHTE (5 a)

(note a) 6,620 37,126 22,884 1,306 - 67936
Disposals HE - (363) 4491 (1,17) - G971)
Exchange differences ERER 4320 6,459 3268 551 - 14598
At 31 December 2020 2020 125315 62415 206251 113,402 9,498 - 391,566
Depreciation for the year FRIE (15 a)

(note a) 7,007 39872 22,180 1,094 - 70,153
Disposals HE - (8,049) (5,583) (1,550) - (15,182)
Exchange differences ERER 2223 338 1,113 265 - 6982
At 31 December 2021 20214128318 71,645 241,455 131,112 9,307 - 453519
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2021 R20214 128318 71725 291,451 116315 3041 19,370 507902
At 31 December 2020 1?2020 128318 82948 305,164 118475 3553 18813 528953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

@

(b)

Depreciation of approximately HK$ 1,385,000 (2020: HK$3,053,000) is included
in selling and distribution expenses; and HK$12,623,000 (2020: HK$12,297,000)
in administrative expenses; HK$54,989,000 (2020: HK$51,519,000) in cost of
sales; and HK$1,156,000 (2020: HK$1,067,000) in research and development

expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment assessment of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-

use assets

As a result of the unfavourable performance of certain subsidiaries
incorporated/established in the US, Hong Kong and the PRC (the "Under-
Performing Subsidiaries”) during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
management conducted impairment assessments of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the Under-Performing Subsidiaries. The
Under-Performing Subsidiaries are separated into three cash generating units
("CGU") for the purpose of the impairment assessment which are US CGU, HK
CGU and PRC CGU. A CGU is considered to be impaired when its recoverable
amount declines below its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the

higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

15

AT IR R MIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b)

Impairment assessment of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-

use assets (continued)

The management conducted impairment assessments of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the US CGU as at 3| December 2021.The
recoverable amounts of the US CGU was determined based on value in use
calculations and certain key assumptions.Value in use calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the management covering
a five-year period. The model assumes an average growth rate of 1% (2020:
13%) for the five-year period, a pre-tax discount rates of 15.9% (2020: 16.4%).
Cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using growth rate of
2% (2020: same). Management estimates the pre-tax discount rate that reflects
market assessment of the time value of money and specific risk relating to the

industry.

Based on the value in use calculations, there are no impairment recognised as
the recoverable amount of the CGU was higher than its carrying value. If the
average growth rate used in the value-in-use calculation had been 1% lower
than management's estimates at 31 December 2021, the Group would have had

to recognise an impairment amounting to HK$6,026,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASES

@

Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

HE

4= A
Wi 3

FAFS IR R MY EE

@ REEEERRREINEEE

Leased land Leasehold
use right properties Machinery Total
HELH
EAE HEYE s aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR R FHET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
At | January 2020 12202041 B 1 H 18,932 225422 4756 249,110
Additions B - 51,835 309 52,144
Disposals HE - (27,357) (363) (27,720)
Transfer to investment in EEE A
sublease (note i) K& (fsti) - (4904) - (4,904)
Depreciation (note ii) e (ki) (369) (72,800) (1,999) (75,168)
Exchange differences BREE 1,429 3,187 - 4616
At 31 December 2020 12020 12831 H 19,992 175,383 2703 198,078
Additions RE - 198,472 3,506 201978
Disposals HE - (1,123) - (1,123)
Depreciation (note i) IE (ki) (385) (83,841) (1,858) (86,084)
Exchange differences ERER 578 1,570 - 2,148
At 31 December 2021 1202112831 20,185 290461 4351 314997
As at 3| December 2020 220205 12831H
Cost DN 21910 318,711 6,559 347,180
Accumulated depreciation RETERBIE
and impairment (1918) (143,328) (3,856) (149,102)
Net book amount REEE 19992 175,383 2703 198,078
As at 31 December 2021 2021128318
Cost [N 28,104 470,651 6996 505,75
Accumulated depreciation RETERBIE
and impairment (7919) (180,190) (2,645) (190,754)
Net book amount REEE 20,185 290,461 4351 314,997
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

16  LEASES (continued)

(@)  Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (continued) @ RESEELRREINEE @
() During the year, a subsidiary has entered into sub-lease agreements 0 FER —XWBLABHM
regarding two leased properties. The portions of right-of-use assets BHEEWMETIIDHER
that associated with the sublease agreements has been derecongised o B HIBEARN
accordingly. NEAEEECHEELL
(i) Depreciation expenses of HK$57,434,000 (2020: HK$44,442,000) has (i)  HEREZ57,434,000% 7T
been charged in cost of sales, HK$6,270,000 (2020: HK$6,305,000) (2020 F 1 44,442,0008
charged in administrative expenses and HK$22,380,000 (2020: ) EBHE M AR
HK$24,421,000) in selling and distribution expenses respectively. 6,270,00078 75 (20204 -
6,305,000 70) B 17T HH
2 #0F5 5%22,380,000% 7T
(20204F : 24,421,000 7T)
B E kDN
Leasehold
properties Machinery Total
HEME tas #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TATT
Lease liabilities HEaE
At | January 2020 720205 1 B 1 H 280,705 4878 285,583
Additions RE 47,830 309 48,139
Disposals HE (27,393) (388) (27.781)
Payments R (82,809) (2.214) (85,023)
Interest expenses FEREL 14248 257 14,505
Exchange differences ERER 2,801 - 2,801
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
R E MR RMTEE

16  LEASES (continued) 6 FHE®
(@)  Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (continued) @ RERAEESBEREINEE @
Leasehold
properties Machinery Total
HEWE 233 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TFET
At 31 December 2020 72020512831 H 235,382 2,842 238,224
Additions RE 196,744 3,506 200,250
Disposals HE (1,586) - (1,586)
Payments e (96,462) (2,053) (98,515)
Interest expenses FEREL 16,811 4] 16,952
Exchange differences ERER 1271 - 1,271
At 31 December 2021 72021128318 352,160 4436 356,596
As at 3| December 2020 20208128318
Current BPEA 73,595 1,873 75,468
Non-current JEBNHA 161,787 969 162,756
Total “Est 235,382 2,842 238224
As at 3| December 2021 20215128318
Current BPHEA 82,871 1268 84,139
Non-current JERNEA 269,289 3,168 272457
Total aEst 352,160 4436 356,596
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
Wi 3

16

AT IR R MIEE

LEASES (continued) 6 FHE®

(b)

(d)

(€

b REEEEREREDNEE:

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement:

2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEaENFH S (fEs) 16,952 14,505
Expense relating in short-term or SRBHENEEERERMNAS
low-valued leases (note 9) (FF5E9) 2,261 1314
Expenses related to variable lease ER RSN IB RN
payments (note 9) (FF5E9) 47,071 43575
66,284 59,394
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total cash outflow for leases © HBHE2021%F12831HIE%E
were HK$ 130,895,000 (2020: HK$129,912,000). E-HENRERHEES
130,895,000 7t (20204 :
129,912,000 7) °
See note 2.1 (iii) for the adoption of practical expedient related to HKFRS 16 d BTHRRENEASEMBERSE
Leases on COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions. Bl 6Sh MBIk B BB
MEERER I ARNERER
HENEZFE F2HEME
2.1(jii)°
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security © MHEBRLAEMEREBEAR
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor: Leased assets may not ENHEEETNERERLL
be used as security for borrowing purposes. Details of the lease maturity analysis SSERRN - HEEELRS
of lease liabilities are set out in notes 3.1 (if) (b) ). BEERER - HESENA
BB BRHNME
3.1 (i (b)(iii)
See note |5 for further details of impairment assessment on right-of-use assets. ] ERAGRAESENETLNE

B F2REMEEIS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMTEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES KREME
2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FH7T
As at | January ®IBIH 33,479 33,376
Depreciation for the year FRITE (2211) (1964)
Transfer from property, plant and equipments BEEVE BRERERE 304 -
Exchange differences FEREL 936 2,067
As at 31 December 128318 32,508 33479

As at 31 December 2021, the fair values of the Group's investment properties were
HK$182,230,000 (2020: HK$125,534,000). The fair values have been arrived at based
on a valuation carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer not

connected with the Group.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined based on the market
comparable approach which is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The inputs used in the fair value measurements mainly include the market unit sale rate
of comparable properties of similar size, nature and location. The calculation assumes
HK$3,214 (2020: HK$2,402) gross unit rate per square foot. There has been no change
from the valuation technique used in the prior year and there were no transfers into or

out of Level 3 during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. The above investment properties are depreciated on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

2021128318 AEENKEY
ENT{E7%182,230,0007875(20204 -
125,534,000/ 75) o AF{ETHRE AR
AEBMERENEIIGEMEET
BEERERASETHNHERT

REMENATFEDRETHBLER
= (DBEALNTERBRZE=R) B
T -RHEATFER BABTES
EERE - MERUEEENITLERY
EoMBBEAHEBK FERER
BYHREEA321487T (20204 ¢
2,402 7T) HERMEBTFEMN
BEUELSE BEERBEESAE=
B EEP&EY -

RS RENEZATFER PEZ
EERRERERAHERKAR L
REMERBENFHNREREEN

e
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=]
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R E MR RMEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 EREE

Customer
Brand name relationship Total
miELTE ZRR% Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FHT
At | January 2020 202051818
Cost PR 85,483 62,769 148,252
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R FH 3 KR E (74,117) (58761) (132,878)
Net book amount IREEE 11,366 4,008 15374
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020F 12831 HIEEE
Opening net book amount BYRmEE 11,366 4,008 15,374
Amortisation charges HiHER - (641) (641)
Closing net book amount HARERERE 11,366 3367 14,733
At 31 December 2020 and | January 2021  }420205 12831 B K&
202151 B1H
Cost PR 85,483 62,769 148,252
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R 5T 3 KR E (74,117) (59,402) (133,519)
Net book amount REDEE 11,366 3367 14,733
Year ended 3| December 2021 HE0FENAINHLEEE
Opening net book amount BYRmEE 11,366 3367 14,733
Amortisation charges HiHER (1,137) (641) (1,778)
Closing net book amount HRERERE 10,229 2726 12,955
At 31 December 2021 2021128318
Cost A 85,483 62,769 148,252
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R 5T 8 KR {E (75,254) (60,043) (135,297)
Net book amount REVEE 10,229 2726 12,955

Amortisation of intangible assets of HK$641,000 (2020: HK$641,000) is included
in selling and distribution expenses and HK$I,137,000 (2020: Nil) is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment assessment on intangible assets

Management monitors and reviews the business performance at the cash-generating
units ("CGU") level. In 2016, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Dormeo
North America, LLC (“Dormeo”). The Group recognised intangible assets of brand
name and customer relationship in relation to such acquisition and allocated to the

Dormeo CGU at the acquisition date.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculation.
These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. The model assumes an average
growth rate of 9% (2020: 14%) for the five-year period, a pre-tax discount rate of
19.3% (2020: 19.4%). Cash flows beyond the five years period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates of 2% (2020: 2%). Management estimates the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects market assessment of the time value of money and specific

risk relating to the industry.

As a result of the impairment assessment, there are no impairment of brand name and
customer relationship resufted (2020: nil). There were no reasonably possible changes
in any of the key assumptions that would have resulted in an impairment write-down in

this CGU.

e RRMEE

BYEE (@

B REZRERR

EEENReELEU (REEE
Bil) BEERRBREBRE R
20165 » REEIREE T Dormeo North
America’ LLC (TDormeo 1) BI51%f&
BoXEBRIDEZWBEERNRE
LRI FEGRELEE LEWE
BB 4DormeolR & EE B

BEEFEMNTUEIEEEREE
REENEET ZEABREE
BEFMENTESHMREEER
MERERERAEL -ZEABER
FFHNFIEREXAI% (20204 :
14%) e AT BRI 2 19.3% (2020%F
19.4%) - A FABHIRERERAE2%
(2020%F : 2%) NEETIE REER &
BEM:IIRMZOTEERREER
BERBRNMSTENRAAEIRE

RBAEN L RELERE %
iR E (20204F @ #%) o (R PJAEX
REZREEE B EMRBRERER

RHEEIEOREEH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

DEFERRED TAXATION 19 BIERRIA
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting NTARPBFRESEHNRIERIBLE
purposes: ki
2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE E 29,616 8,003
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (18,106) (17,048)
11,510 (9,045)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) assets recognised and UFAREFERBEFEERIN
movements thereon during the current and prior years: TERERBEEE, (BB BERH
28
(a) Deferred tax assets @ IEEREEE
Allowance for
Unrealised inventories
profit in Tax and credit
inventories losses losses Others Total
FERE FEREEE
Rigd  REBE BREE Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT TAT FTAT TAT
At | January 2020 12020F 1518 70 3912 3766 66| 8409
Credited/(charged) to BE@ms A (0
profit or loss 147 (2,304) 1,348 - (809)
Exchange differences BERER - 100 289 14 403
At 31 December 2020 12020412831 B 217 1,708 5403 675 8003
Credited to profit or loss BiEHET A 434 17317 10 - 21,668
Exchange differences ERER - (221) 166 - (55)
At 3| December 202 72021412831 B 4558 18,804 5579 675 29616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PA TS ER R M 5T

fe= A
777 g |

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 19 IEIERIE (@)
Deferred tax liabilities b IEERESE
Undistributed Fair value
profits of adjustment
Right-of- PRC on intangible
use assets subsidiaries assets Total
FEME BREE
REZE ZAT
EREEE RKER ERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T#7 TR
At | January 2020 R2020%1 818 (1,270) (25,375) (3229) (29.874)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ B#8% 5t A/ (05 1275 (3:409) 135 (1999)
Release upon payment of dividends to 7332 1 Bk E B #1183
profit or loss - [1,409 - 11,409
Release undistributed profits to BRNE R BB
profit or loss - 4238 - 4238
Exchange differences BERER (5 817) - (822)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12831 B - (13954 (3,094) (17,048)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss  B1483 (H163) /5t A - (2.539) 373 (2,166)
Release upon payment of dividends to 7332 {1 Bk E B #1183
profit or loss - 729 - 729
Exchange differences BERER - 379 - 379
At 31 December 2021 K021 E 128318 - (15,385) (2.721) (18,106)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

19

AT IR R MIEE

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of tax loss amounting to HK$269,749,000 (2020: HK$267,508,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$131,294,000 (2020: HK$117,621,000) and
HK$56,039,000 (2020: HK$56,039,000) that will be expired from 2022 to 2026
and from 2037 to 2038, respectively. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of deductible temporary differences arising from allowance inventories
and credit loss amounting to HK$56,189,000 (2020: HK$54,538,000) as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
at 10% in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to the
undistributed profit of certain PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021
amounting to HK$477,208,000 (2020: HK$497,129,000), as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.
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P01 F 128310 TEREE
REEGEEBEEENANR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMTEE

INVENTORIES 20 F&
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Raw materials B 328,201 255327
Work in progress T8 99,846 108,824
Finished goods K m 275,231 221,359
703,278 585510

The cost of inventories is recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales

amounted to HK$2,884,378,000 (2020: HK$2,098,601,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the inventories of the Group are stated after a provision for

impairment on inventories of approximately HK$62,746,000 (2020: HK$48,934,000).

BRARL Tt AHERNRTZEER
& EE7/2,884,378,00058 75 (20204
2,098,601,0003 7T) °

2021 ENB3IH REBNEFEER

SHEEEREEE% 627460008 7T
(20204F : 48,934,0005&7T) & 58

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2 BRRHEMERRE
2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH7T
Trade receivables EZERE 685,510 694915
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 3.1(ii)(b)) B EEBEBEE (IE3.1)0) (26,801) (32417)
Trade receivables, net BB EWEIE 35 658,709 662,498
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables B& BT RRIE R AR WGRIE
Cash consideration receivables (note a) FEWRERE (Hista) 67,256 123,654
Prepayments for purchasing raw materials and BERMENBIRIEREEH
operating expenses 65,330 49,049
Rental and other deposits e kHMEE 39,491 30,603
Other tax recoverable HAMFEWIRM 16,446 8,443
Net investment in sublease DRFRE 3,079 4,132
Advances to staff HKETBRR 2,169 2,249
Others Hth 10,951 15411
204,722 233,541
Total trade and other receivables B 5 REMEN IR 863,431 896,039
Non-current portion FERDERER 3 23,333 82,109
Current portion BNERER > 840,098 813930
863,431 896,039
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

@)

The balance represents the consideration receivables in relation to the disposal
of 51% equity interest in Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co. Ltd. completed in 2019.
According to the sale and purchase agreement, the total cash consideration
of RMBI57,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$176,891,000) will be
settled by four installments. During the year ended 3| December 2021, the
Group received the third instalment amounting to RMB50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$61,815,000). The remaining instalment amounting to
RMB57,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$70,680,000) would be due in
2022.

On |1 March 2022, B (D) REBEMMNERAE (Sinomax
(Zhejiang) Polyurethane Technology Limited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a supplemental agreement with the purchaser of
51% equity interest in Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co. Ltd. to revise the payment

arrangement of the fourth instalment as follows:

(i) RMB22,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,280,000) of the
fourth instalment shall be paid by 15 March 2022;

(i) RMBI0,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,400,000) of the
fourth instalment shall be paid by 15 March 2023; and

(i) the remaining balance of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000,000) of the fourth instalment shall be paid by |5 March 2024,

together with the payable interest which shall accrue from and including the
Second Payment Due Date (as defined in the sale and purchase agreement)
until and including the respective dates of actual payments as set out in (i), (ii)

and (iii) above respectively at the rate of 3% per annum.

For identification purpose only

e RRMEE

2 BRRHEMERRE @

(@)

* (2R

BEEBEERAA

ZAEEBRAT2019F TR E R
WHABBBEERRIBS %EE
WEKREB RIEEEHE &
RENERAREI57,0000007T
(FBERK176,891,0007T) »
R EHBAZ B E2021F12
B3BHLEFEERN AEBKE
2 = #3718 A K %50,000,0007T
(HHE 461,815,000/ 7T) ° H
BaIE AR 157,000,0007T (1
B #4970,680,000 7T) BT
202FF|ERFEfT o

R20202E38 1B AAREE
B ARES (L) Rl
MEB R BB R E B SR
BRRABSI%RERE H 5]
ZHE BENBERENTR
ZHERWNT

) FHEHHZIEARE
22,000,0007% (FHE KA
27,280,00038 75) 722022
FE3IBISHZATZAT ;

iy ZFHEHPHHEARE
10,000,000t (FHE R A
12,400,000 7t) ZE#£2023
FIFISHZAIEN ; &

(i) SEEAREFRBARE
25,000,0007% (8 & &
31,000,000% 75) ZE522024
F3BISHZAISZ AT

VEREESE _HRIBIHA

(EEREEWR (81F%B)
EEXi) (i R(iyD BT E
BB (B1EZE) E#E3%
MEESENEMTS

0V FERE
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group's retail sales are made both through its retail network comprising stand-
alone retail shops and concession counters in department stores and through
internet sales. The Group also sells health and household product directly to overseas
wholesalers and retailers and polyurethane foam to furniture manufacturers in the PRC.
Sales at self-operated retail shops and sales through retailers in the PRC and internet
sales are transacted either by cash or credit cards. For sales made at concession
counters, the department stores collect cash from the end customers and then repay
the balance after deducting the concessionaire commission to the Group. The credit
period granted to department stores ranges from 30 days to 120 days. For sales to
wholesalers, retailers and furniture manufacturers, the Group generally allows a credit

period ranging from 7 days to 90 days.

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses,

presented based on the dates of invoice.

21

B S REtEWRIE (&

FEBEZBHSERPE (BERIE
EERURBERINTESE &
EMBHEETTEHE AEET
e ER R ERERHERE
REXBER TAPENERMNEE
HERRERA REETEEET
NHERBZBTRZER KB KA
HEETHNHEENUREAEAE
BEIRG MR TEEEETHNHE
B HBEAARKREE P WEIR
T RNBRETRERER nEE
BEERBE -RTEERANEENR
NFEHEIB -FEMLEF TE
BREELEANHENS 58
BEATEERNTIHEI R

THBREERRRAENEZEWNEA
MBS (REZZEEHE5) W
bE

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 30 days 30 LA 348,544 397,758
31 to 60 days 31E60H 210,121 157,527
61 to 90 days 61E90H 63,710 86,883
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 31,444 20,007
181 to 365 days 1813651 4,890 323
658,709 662,498

(i)  Fair value of trade receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount

is considered to be the same as their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii)

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the

group’s exposure to credit risk and foreign currency risk can be found in note

3.1ii)(b).

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate net carrying amount of HK$124,940,000 (2020:
HK$174,293,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$8,037,000 (2020: HK$16,725,000) has been past due 90 days
or more and is not considered as in default by considering the background
of the trade receivables and historical payment arrangement of these trade

receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral over the balances.

R E MR RMTEE

2 BRRHEMERRE @

BEEBEERAA

B R m RO

FEBRAETEVBREE]
FIR B A EFERREE
B ZAENMEBZ R
MEFRALBEREEHER
H-BMESRIIERE &
SEEBENEERRRINER
B2 BRI 2R EE.1 (i) (b)

B2021 £ 1283 1 H REBZ
BESRNFIEGGBIEREF
BEE 41249400007 75 (2020
1 174,293,000 7T) Z FEUR
RE HRBRERBHEABR -
R4 ERE & 8,037,000 7T
(2020 : 16,725,000/ 70) B#
HROOR U b EREREFE
WRBZESRZEESEN
REZESOTRZH HIAR
BWRABN -AEEUEMZ
SHBRBETMERER

0V FERE

263



y

264

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

22

BILL RECEIVABLES

The amount represents bill receivables which are not yet due at the end of the
reporting period. The following is the aging analysis of bill receivables based on their

time to maturities as at the end of reporting periods:

FEH_E
IEHXTR

ZEEEANREMRBRBHNE
WERE - UT AR KRS ARZEEH
5 8 25 B R BR B D AR

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHBT

Within 30 days 30K LA 19,717 10,523
31 to 60 days 3IEOKR 18,633 62,961
61 to 90 days 61 E90K 12,825 1213
91 to 180 days 9IEI80K 42,807 1,609
181 to 365 days 181 365K 662 1,862
94,644 78,168

Included in the bill receivables above amounting to approximately HK$82,717,000 (31
December 2020: HK$73,124,000) had been endorsed for settling the trade payables
for which the maturity dates of the bill receivables have not yet fallen due as at the end
of the reporting period. All bill receivables of the Group are with a maturity period of

less than one year.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group performed impairment
assessment on bill receivables and concluded that the probability of defaults of the

counterparties is insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group, whose contractual cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, were factored to reputable financial
institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement. The Group's business model is
therefore achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling of these assets.

Such trade receivables was therefore classified as financial assets carried at FVOCI.

As at 3| December 2021, the effective interest rates of the factored trade receivables
at FVOCI ranged from 1.07% to 2.57% per annum (2020: 1.23% to 2.73% per
annum). Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs adopted for their fair value
measurements are disclosed in note 3.3. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair
value changes on trade receivables at FVOCI are insignificant and accordingly, no fair

value changes are recognised in equity as FVOCI reserve.

R E MR RMTEE

FBEMEEBERATETIRZE
FEWTRRIR

FEEETER HaNHEEREE
RENEERIE) WEZEEIA
EEEBREBRUZHTRETEER
FREMEE R AEBENER
BEABBURANEERERHEZ
FEEBR AL ZFEZRER

ENEABPBEMEERGEATE
SRz B E -

P01 ENB3H BREMEE
BEATFEIRNZEHREREN
BSRUFENERIENTEEF
|.07%ZE2.57% (2020 | §F1.23%%E
2.73%) cHATFEFEFRMHEM G
BREERFEFEGASBFBERWE
337K B8 0 122021 FE 5220204 12831
B BeEMmEmlimEAFEY R
ZEBSERRE ATESSHTAE
AR BEREEREIATEE
HAEBHMEAERERATETER
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA TS ER R M 5T
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24

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i)

Categories of financial instruments

24 SFHTHE

) ERMTAEMNSE

2021
20215
Financial
assets at fair
Financial  value through
assets at other

amortised comprehensive

2020
20204
Financial
assets at fair
Financial  value through
assets at other

amortised comprehensive

cost income cost income
EBHM FiBEAM
2HENE 2ENE
BEHm A BRATE REHERAR BATE
SRz SRz FER 2 il
EMEE EMEE TRIEE TREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET AR FHET
Financial assets EMEE
Trade receivables B 5 e EIE 658,709 - 662,498 -
Bill receivables eSS 94,644 - 78,168 -
Deposits and other receivables 155 K EL A FE UK =R 1B 122,946 = 173,800 -
Cash and cash equivalents RBERIREEEY 228,532 = 136915 -
Trade receivables at FVOCI FBHEHMEERE
BATFENRZ
B 7 FE WA - 39,833 24,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 24

()  Categories of financial instruments (continued)

EMIA®

() SRMIANSEG

2021 2020
20215 20204
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
R A REIH A
FERZ HiRZ
THaE TREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TATT
Financial liabilities ERIAE
Trade payables B ENIE 598,717 509,854
Bill payables FE {1 4% 35,729 44902
Financial liabilities included in other STARMENRERESEEZ
payables and accrued liabilities TRBaE 115,133 97,941
Bank borrowings RITEM 588,273 547224
Lease liabilities HEER 356,596 238,224
Note: The fair values of the financial assets at amortised cost approximate their st - REBEAAS B SREEL
ATERAKEERE

carrying amounts.

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

25

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

RERAEEBYURBIRIFRITER

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cash at bank and on hand IR RFHEIEE 228,532 136915
Cash and cash equivalents BERkREEEY 228,532 136915
Pledged bank deposits (note) BIRRIRITER (M) 1,174 10,260
229,706 147,175
Denominated in: LUR? | EHEEHE -

— HK$ —B7T 36,676 18,987
—RMB NG 112,965 64,174
—US$ —%7T 55,986 57,858
—VND —HmEE 23,000 5739
— Canadian Dollars -7 935 [15
— Others —HAth 144 302
229,706 147,175

Note: MisE

Pledged bank deposits with original maturities more than three months carried fixed interest
rates of 0.3% to 1.55% (2020: 0.3% to 1.55%) per annum as at 31 December 2021. Such bank
deposits had been pledged to secure the Group's general banking facilities and were classified
as current assets. The pledged bank deposits have been released upon the settlement of

relevant bills payables.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group performed impairment
assessment on pledged bank deposits and bank balances and concluded that the probability
of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit

losses is provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES % BRRHEMEMRE
2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TATT
Trade payables B REIIE 598,717 509,854
Accrued operating expenses PR ERE 66,433 66,656
Accrued salaries FEstirE 43927 41,173
Other taxes payable HMEARM 33,374 19,346
Accrued royalties fEstHEEREE 14,281 8,963
Refundable deposits received BWAIRERSE 9,527 8,268
Amount due to non-controlling shareholders (note) FE(T ISR AR SRV IE (P9ET) 7,517 6,543
Deferred government grant TEIEBUN FEBh 3,930 4,284
Others Hth 13,445 15176
192,434 170,409
Total trade and other payables B 5% Kk HMPE ISR 791,151 680,263
Less: D
Non-current portion of deferred government grant R Bh 2 FERIERER 7 (1,863) (2,229)
Current portion BNHRER 789,288 678,034
Note: The amount were unsecured, non-trade nature, interest-free and repayable on Mz ZRBEARER - FBEZHEE -RE
demand. BEEXERE-

BEEBEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

26

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Included in trade and other payables above amounting to HK$82,717,000 (2020:
HK$73,124,000) had been settled by endorsed bills for which the maturity dates of the

bills receivables are not yet fallen due as at the end of the reporting period (note 22).

The credit period of trade payables ranged from 30 to 60 days. The following is the

aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting

26

B S RHEtIE(ITRIE (&)

HALHMZEZREMENR
82,717,000 75 (20204F : 73,124,000
T HUBEEEEREM EEKRE
B2 AR R RS RS AR DE (i
£22) ©

BRBRMRENEERNFI0E60
H-REREMRBEZHHZETH

period. EZRMARENREITNT
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 30 days 30B LA 335,104 352,822
31 to 60 days 31E60H 150,515 93,842
61 to 90 days 61E90H 43,499 35,503
91 to 180 days 91Z 1808 51,281 19,041
Over 180 days B 180H 18,318 8,646
598,717 509,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

BILL PAYABLES

The following is the aging analysis of bill payables at the end of the reporting period

presented based on bills issue date:

27

IRES

UFAREHRRERHAEAHRES
i

MENRERED

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within 30 days 30H A 6,182 8,579
31 to 60 days 31E60H 6,18l 9,546
61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 8,530 3,202
91 to 180 days 91Z 1808 14,836 23,575
181 to 365 days 1812365H - -
35,729 44902

Bill payables were secured by pledged bank deposits of HK$I,174,000 (2020:
HK$10,260,000) as at 31 December 2021 and guaranteed by the Company and

certain of its subsidiaries.

PR2021 128310 BRHEHEUEEK
HERTT R, 174,000%8 75 (20204
10,260,000 70) fEIR BT HAEARE K&

HETWBRBERMER

BEEBEERAA
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

28 UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 8 IR TRERR
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH7 FBR
Trade financing BHME 401,557 257,607
Revolving borrowings BIRE™M 100,400 100,400
Term borrowings THIE™ 86,316 189,217
588,273 547,224
All bank borrowings carry a variable-rate interest with reference to Hong Kong FRE e KBITRRIEEBIRITA
Interbank Offered Rate, London Interbank Offered Rates and Hong Kong Prime Rate ERE - RIRTEEREREER
plus a specific margin of the relevant banks. BEFZINAARRTHREN B
/%\ ©
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) FEENERBERAE (HIFEER
on the Group's borrowings, are as follows: STARXR) EMT ¢
2021 2020
2021 4F 20206
Effective interest rates (per annum): BEAX (8F):
Variable-rate borrowings L IGIESERN 1.23%-4.90% [.57% — 4.90%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the functional

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

R E MR RMTEE

EIIRIRITE (8

AEBNUEREEERIESE I
MERIENEREIMT

2021 2020
20215 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

EUR S 764 -
US$ ETT 75,002 77484

The Group's banking facilities are secured by the corporate guarantees given by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Except for the guarantee was
provided by a non-controlling shareholder to secure the bank facilities granted to a

subsidiary of the Group to the extent of RMB1,320,000 (2020: RMB1,320,000).

REBZRTRMEURLAB RAAE
HETHWBABMEHRZ ARERABIE
HoMZERDA—RIFTRKERR
HEAREER—RHNBAREREE
A AE1,320,0007T (20205 : AR #E
1,320,0007T) $RITRE B HIIE IR 0

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

29

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

29 FATRRE

Number of
shares Amount
RiIZ#E &8
‘000 HK$'000
Thz FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.| each SREEI BTN ER
Authorised: EE
At | January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 2020F 1 A 1H 2020 12831 B &
31 December 202 20214128318 10,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
shares
R #E
‘000 HK$'000
T FHET
Issued and fully paid: BRITREE
At | January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 1202051 B 1B~ 20205 12831 B &
31 December 2021 20215128315 1,750,002 175,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, a share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme"). The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
becomes valid and effective on [0 July 2014 and will expire on the business day
preceding the tenth anniversary thereof. Subject to the rules of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, grantees may exercise the share options granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme at any time during the period commencing from the date of

grant and up to such expiry date as determined by the Board.

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to the eligible participants with an opportunity to acquire the equity interests in the
Company, for their contributions to, and continuing efforts to promote the interest of
the Group or for such other purposes as the board of directors of the Company may
approve from time to time, linking their interests with the interests of the Group and
thereby attracting and encouraging those parties to work better for the interests of the

Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, will contribute

or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

30

e RRMEE

fERetEstE

BRAREERBRES S

R2014F3848 AR B REFME
ferestE (BERAMEERBRES
) BR REERBERESER
014578 10HER RN EZES
+EBEHANEXEER ERE
RAFEERBERESZNHRL K
RAJZEREHAREEEEEET
Z & BB IER AR A BB R T (5 1R
BRNREERBRENZERTH
R

BERAREERBRESIEERR
BNAERN G A AN EFTERE
WENAEMBNMELEMAFTES
NNEERSEERE—EERAR
ARENHE FAHRENHBN
1R LR RSN m B AERNF
mBBE—E MRS RxEE S
BARAERNFDEMSHIfFe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

30

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any particular share
option granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price shall at least be the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's share.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share options may be granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue at the Listing Date (without taking into account any shares that may
be issued upon the full exercise of the options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme), being 165,000,000 shares of the company (“Option Limit"). Options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
(or any other share option schemes of the Company) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Option Limit. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company, the Company may refresh the Option Limit at any time provided that (i)
the Option Limit as refreshed does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of the approval by the shareholders of the Company; and (i) the
options previously granted (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance
with the provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Option Limit as refreshed. The
Company may also, with the approval of the shareholders of the Company, grant
share options in respect of shares of the Company in excess of the Option Limit
(as refreshed from time to time) to eligible participants specifically identified by the

Company before such approval is sought.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and vet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company from time to time. No share options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any |2-month period up to the date of offer to grant shall not exceed
19 of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this % limit shall be subject to shareholders

approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of share options to a director; chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates is required to be
approved by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is proposed to be an option holder) of the Company.
If the Company proposes to grant share options to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company or their respective associates
which will result in the number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of offer of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.19% of the shares of
the Company in issue; and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, based
on the closing price of the Company's shares at the date of offer of each grant, such
further grant of share options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of the
independent non-executive directors, the approval of shareholders of the Company in

general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 FERRAERTE (B

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) BRAREERBRESS (@

TREEHFAEEES SREEE

278

The below table discloses movements of the Company's share options held by the

Group's directors, senior management and employees:

REEFENAAGDBEREZE

Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed at Lapsed at
at during 31 December during 31 December
Options Vesting period Exercise period | January 2020 the year 2020 the year 2021
12020 120208 Il
IBIR 12A318 12A318
Rl REES e HATE REAKE  EHRTE RERKRY ERITE
(Note) (Note)
(3) (Ki3)
Directors
EZ
Tranche | 2601.2017-2601.2018  2601.2018 - 25.01.2023 3,750,000 (150,000) 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
FH# WI7FEIFBEE WIBFIFBAE
201851 B26H 2003515256
Tranche 2 2601.2017-2601.2019  2601.2019 - 2501.2024 3,750,000 (150,000) 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
i WITEIBWAE WIEIBWAE
2019%1 8268 202418258
7,500,000 (300,000) 7,200,000 - 7,200,000
Senior management
BREERE
Tranche | 2601.2017-2601.2018  2601.2018 - 2501.2023 950,000 - 950,000 - 950,000
s WI7FEIABEE WIBFIABHE
2018F 15268 2023F 15250
Tranche 2 2601.2017-2601.2019  2601.2019 - 2501.2024 950,000 - 950,000 - 950,000
BT WITEIBWAE WIYEIBWAE
20191 B26H 200451 B25H
1,900,000 - 1,900,000 - 1,900,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

R E MR RMTEE

0 fEkiESE (8

BRAREERBRIESS (8

Outstanding Outstanding
Outstanding Lapsed at Lapsed at
at during 3| December during 3| December
Options Vesting period Exercise period | January 2020 the year 2020 the year 2021
120208 120208 0%
IBIR 128318 128318
falig BEH e HATHE RERKM  EHRTE RERRE HXITE
(Note) (Note)
(Hiz) (Hiz)
Employee
&5
Tranche | 2601.2017-2601.2018  2601.2018 - 2501.2023 6,710,000 (1,010,000) 5,700,000 (150,000) 5,550,000
s WI7EIABEE WIBFIABAE
2018F 15268 2023F 15250
Tranche 2 26012017 -26012019 26012019 - 25012024 6,710,000 (1,010,000) 5,700,000 (150,000) 5,550,000
BTH# WI7FEIRBEE 0I9FIA26HE
019F1A26H 20241 A25H
13,420,000 (2020,000) 1,400,000 (300,000) 11,100,000
22,820,000 (2320000) 20,500,000 (300,000) 20,200,000
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 22,820,000 20,500,000 20,200,000
RREARAFIHE
Note: One (2020: three) eligible participants, who have been granted share options under MieE @ 1% (2020%F @ 34) REE R AFHHE

the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have ceased to become eligible participants upon

termination of employment and the said share options have automatically lapsed. The

lapsed share options amounting to HK$61,000 (2020: HK$936,000) are transferred

from share options reserve to retained profits.

BEEBEERAA

ERBRENERERENSE
BBHERKILERRAARABES
RENRSHEE MLIABREEED
KMo ZEAH61,0008 7T (20204 :
936,000 ) ZBAMERECHE
R EEREREET -

0V FERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

AT IR R MIEE

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are as

follows:

0 fEkiESE (8

BRAREERBIESE (8

REERAREERBRES RS

BB EEEMT

Number of Fair value

share options Exercise per share

Date of grant granted Exercise period price option

=30

®H B BB 176 TEE ZAFE

HK$ HK$

BT 7T

Tranche | — Directors 26.01.2017 3,750,000 26.01.2018 —25.01.2023 0.69 0.2022
F—H-E=F 201741 B26H WIBEIFWBHE
20231 B25H

Tranche | — 26012017 950,000 26.01.2018 —25.01.2023 0.69 02041

Senior management

FH-sREEE 201741 B26H WIBEIFWBHE
20231 B25H

Tranche | — Employee 2601.2017 10,700,000 26.01.2018 —25.01.2023 0.69 02041
F—i—-EE 201741 B26H WIBEIFWBHE
20231 B25H

Tranche 2 — Directors 26012017 3,750,000 26.01.2019 - 25.01.2024 0.69 0.2002
FH-E=F 201741 B26H WIEIRBHE
202441 B25H

Tranche 2 — 26012017 950,000 26.01.2019 —25.01.2024 0.69 02027

Senior management

EF_H-BREERE 201741 B26H WIEIRBHE
202441 B25H

Tranche 2 — Employee 26012017 10,700,000 26.01.2019 —25.01.2024 0.69 02027
EF_#H—-EE 201741 B26H 2019F1H26HE

20241 B25H

For share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, the weighted average

remaining contractual lives is 0.07 years (2020: .07 years).

The fair value of the share options at the grant date, calculated using the Binomial

Model was approximately HK$6,249,000. The Group did not recognise any expense
(2020: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2021 in relation to the share options

under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme granted by the Company.
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@

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 3 REEERE
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated from @ FRREEN LS E LIRS PR
operations: HER:
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TATT
Profit before income tax PRENISILAT @A 37,869 69,002
Adjustments for: RT5IRIERE
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 1,778 641
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 2211 1,964
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥)Z# B R REITE 70,153 67936
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 86,084 75,168
Finance costs BB LA 38,941 39,050
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ TBHAEEBEERNET 2 BERE
model, net of reversal on trade receivables B & 5 U R IE o] 4715 1932
Interest income FEWA (4,212) (4,482)
Loss on initial recognition of investment My BBNAREZEE
in sublease - 154
Gain on change in fair value of trade receivables HREMEE N HIE A FETRZ
at FVOCI B EWRIEZ AT EEERG (105) (128)
Gain on early termination of right-of-use assets IR R & ILFREEE 2 W& (463) (668)
Loss on early termination of sublease RERIENAZEHE 225 -
Gain on disposal of property plant and HEME BEREEZ W
equipment (166) (830)
Provision for inventories FEEE 12,971 10,634

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

BEEBEERAA

0V FERE

281

-



y

282

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 3 REELRE @
(2  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated from @ FRRAER S EETRSREN
operations: (continued) iR (@
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHTT
Operating profit before working capital changes =18 B & 28 F] 2 &= 5 250,001 260,373
Changes in working capital: SEETEE
Changes in inventories FEEE) (131,580) (95,246)
Changes in trade and other receivables B 5 REMENIEES) (18,863) (207,563)
Changes in trade receivables at FVOCI BBREMEERGERATEIIERZ
B 7 RIS E) (15,656) 20,752
Changes in bill receivables N RRE S (15,716) (19,733)
Changes in trade and other payables B 5 REMELTIEES) 120,827 168,036
Changes in contract liabilities BHNEBEES 2,411 12,093
Changes in bill payables P& 45 S B (8,116) (2,747)
Changes in net investment in sublease DHKREFRES 828 4,284
Changes in deferred government grant LN Bh 8 (354) 618
Net cash generated from operations KEELREFE 183,782 140,867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment comprise:

3l

R E MR RMTEE

REEERE (@

®)

HEYIER B Rk 2 FR1STRIR

REaRERERP HEY
X BERRBZFABRES
&

2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Net book amount: BREFRE -
Property, plant and equipment (note |5) W B Rttt (MPEE15) 5,275 15944
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BERREZ
equipment (note 7) Wz (f5EE7) 166 830
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BREREEZ
plant and equipment PRISIA 5,441 16,774
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

=
TS ER RIS
31  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 3 REEERE @
() Net debt reconciliation © IFEEHK
Unsecured
bank Lease Interest Dividend
borrowings liabilities payable payable Total
B
RiTER  HEREFE EEAE EBARE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET  TEm  TEn  TEn  TEm
Net debt as at | January 2020 F32020% 1 B 1HE
REE (622,863) (285,583) (124) (26,849) (935419)
Financing cash flows MEREM 83,344 85,023 24,669 44,051 237,087
Non-cash changes FREEE
Finance costs B - (14,505) (24,545) - (39,050)
Net movement of leases HEEHFER - (20,574) - - (20,574)
Dividends declared to BERTIFERER 2
non-controlling interests e - - - (15924) (15924)
Foreign exchange translation SMERE (7,705) (2,585) - (1,278) (11,568)
Net debt as at 12020F 12831 B8 F
31 December 2020 & (547,224) (238,224) - - (785,448)
Financing cash flows MERER (30,567) 81,563 - 4861 55,857
Non-cash changes FFREEH
Finance costs B H R A - (16,952) - - (16952)
Net movement of leases HEEEE - (181,712) - - (181,712)
Dividends declared to BERTIFEFREZZ
non-controlling interests Bz & - - - (5,835) (5,835)
Foreign exchange translation SMERE (10,482) (1271 - - (11,753)
Net debt as at 3| December 2021 532021812831 HEY
FEIE (588,273) (356,596) - (974) (945,843)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

Group has the following transactions and balances with related parties:

R E MR RMTEE

BRREFEREHMBRRAMBOPIKE
S AEBBERER 25 RERT
T

Relationship Nature of transactions/balances 2021 2020
S X5/ GERNE 20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TAT
Fellow subsidiary Interest expenses on lease liabilities incurred
during the year 359 921
EEGIEAL) FRFFETHEEREZAERAX
Fellow subsidiary Lease liabilities as at year end 18,050 8,701
EEGIEAL FRZHEEERE

In addition, certain trademarks owned by fellow subsidiaries of the Company were

used by the Group free of charge during both years.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other member of key management during the

reporting period was as follows:

Ih9h > A B A E A S R
ETAANRAMBATRENE
o

TEERASHME

EERHMTEEREREREREH
RyFRENEN T

2021 2020

2021 £ 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances e KoEah 13,307 13,752
Performance related incentive payments RIGIERAREIT 3,000 | 684
Retirement benefit schemes contributions BIEFIFHEHER 158 99
16,465 15535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

33  COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 33 REHEETZEE

FEERBHEA

RERBRZWERSTKRAS
16,144,000 75 (20204F : 11,669,0007
) RS BB ZME
MERKRHBE+NE (20205 :
HAEZ+F) HEEAEEAMEA-

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$16,144,000 (2020:
HK$11,669,000) and all of the properties held for rental purpose have committed

lessees for the next few months to nineteen years (2020: few months to twenty years).

A ERKNREEERENT

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFAET
Within one year —FR 15,314 16,387
In the second year B 12,652 8,840
In the third year B 2,283 2,463
In the fourth year FIE 209 203
In the fifth year ERF 210 203
After five years HELE 1,355 1,520
32,023 29,616

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS M BREE

REEHRBITNELRERSER

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not

recognised as liabilities is as follows: NEAEARFEZNT :
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TAT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of FUEY X BERREBITLN
property, plant and equipment contracted for BRRGEMBERRERE
but not provided in the consolidated financial FEENGRT
statements 7,887 8,878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
operations/

establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/
charter capital/

quota capital

e RRMEE

35 AAFFBMBABFR
/NS YNSIEE

Proportion of share capital/
registered capital/
charter capital/quota capital
and voting power held
by the Company

EETRMERE FABRFAERE HRES

Name of subsidiary 3T v HMELRFHESS R ELR BEESE  Principal activities
MEAERE g IR BREEA RAg RIERILL A TEEH
At 31 December
R#12R318
2021 2020
20215 20205

Directly owned
ERHE
Treasure Range Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$27 100% 100% Investment holding

G ERR7ET REER
Indirectly owned
BEEE
Ascension International Development The BVI Ordinary shares US$ | 100% 100% Investment holding

Lirited KBRUHE BERZER REER

BEERERERAT
Fullelite Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
HEERAT HEEREE EBBERIET KREER
Year Prosper Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding
BRERRAH HEEREE EBERI0ET REER
Wonderful Health Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding

REREREE EBRI0ET REZER
Trade Sincere Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$100 85% 85% Investment holding
BHARAR HEEUEE  EBERIW0ET REER

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

35  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 3B AATTEEMBATE &

(continued)

Issued and fully Proportion of share capital/
paid share capital/ registered capital/
Place of registered capital/ charter capital/quota capital
incorporation/ charter capital/ and voting power held
operations/ quota capital by the Company
establishment ERTRMERE FRARAFERE HEMELX
Name of subsidiary B3I HMELR /BB BHES /REER Principal activities
MEAERE g IR BEEA Rig RERILLH TEEH
At 31 December
R12R318
2021 2020
20214 20205
Sinomax International Investment Limited ~ The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100% Investment holding and
DEAARRAERAR AREABE  BERIOET provision of reasury
management services
REERREHIE
BERH
Sinomax Health & Household Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of
Products Limited S HK$ 1,000,000 health and household
PHRARRXERARARAT E B A% 1,000,000 7T products
TERMERERE
Em
Sinomax International Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of health and
ERARREZERAR 58 HK$10,000 household products
AR 100007 BERREERESR
Dongguan Sinohome Limited* (note 1)~ The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
REBHXERRARAR (W) & HK$32,000,000 health and household
HMER products
32,000,000 7 NERHERERRE
Em
Shandong Sinomax Household The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Processing, manufacturing
Products and Technology Limited* =] RMB30,000,000 and sales of
(note 1) AMERARE polyurethane foam
WEREHERERRARAR (M) 30,000,0007% MT-RERFERR

(=R
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35

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operations/

establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/
charter capital/

quota capital

EERTRERERE FABRFAERE HRES

35 FRARTEMBARFE @)

Proportion of share capital/

registered capital/

charter capital/quota capital

and voting power held

by the Company

Name of subsidiary B3I HMELR /BB BHES /REER Principal activities
MEAERE g IR BEEA Rig RERILLH TEEH
At 31 December
R12R318
2021 2020
20214 20205
Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of polyurethane foam
Co, Ltd* (note 1) H RMB20,000,000 HER QAR
EEBAERERAE () (2020: RMB35,000,000)
AMEXARE
20,000,0007T (20204 :
A #35,000,0007T)
Sinohome Household Products The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of
(Shenzhen) Limited* (note |) HE] HK$ 1,000,000 health and household
BEERERR (R BRAF HMER products
(My=E1) 1,000,0007 75 TERMERERE
Em
Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
Technology Limited * (note 1) HE US$52,000,000 health and household
i (0D RaBENVEBRAS (2020: US$30,000,000) products
G AfER RERHERERKE
52,000,000 7T (2020 Emn
£ 1 30,000000% 7)
Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. The PRC Registered capital 51% 51% Manufacture and sale of
Limited* (note 2) (“Sinomax Kuka") # US$2,100,000 polyurethane foam
IR EEKERERAE HREX HERBERREEA
(f5E2) (TE2EEARER.) 2,100000% 7T

BEEBEERAA

0V FERE
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R E MR RMEE

35

290

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
operations/

establishment

SEMARIL

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/
charter capital/

quota capital

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 FRARTEMBARFE @)

Proportion of share capital/

registered capital/

charter capital/quota capital

and voting power held

by the Company
EERTRERERE FABRFAERE HRES
AMES HFELS RFESREES

Principal activities

MEAERE g IR BEEA Rig RERILLH TEXRH
At 31 December
R12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
Sinomax Macao Commercial Macau Quota capital N/A 100% Wholesale of health and
Offshore Limited (note 3) ! MOP100,000 REA household products
PR FERREERAR FLRREARPIE HERERRXEER
(Ff¥5E3) 100,0007T
Sinomax USA, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
el stock of no par value household products
|00k B EEEER HERERXEER
Sinomax East, Inc. The US | share of common stock 100% 1009% Manufacture of health and
el with no par value household products
IR EEELER HERBERRXEER
Dormeo North America, LLC The US Issued and fully paid share 51.31% 51.31% Investment holding
("Dormeo”) ES capital US$50,481,560 BEER
(TDormeo J) BEREITREERE
50,481,560 7T

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report



35

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RRMEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 35 AATETENMBATEE @

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operations/

establishment

Issued and fully Proportion of share capital/
paid share capital/ registered capital/
registered capital/ charter capital/quota capital
charter capital/ and voting power held
quota capital by the Company

EERTRERERE FABRFAERE HRES

Name of subsidiary B3I HMELR /BB BHES /REER Principal activities
MEAERE g IR BEEA Rig RERILLH TEXRH
At 31 December
R12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
Dormeo Canada Limited Canada 1,000 shares of common 51.31% 51.31% Retail and wholesale of
(previously known as mEX stock of no par value health and household
TSTV Canada Limited) |, 0008 B E (B BB products
Dormeo Canada Limited ZERMERERE
(RIFBTSTV Canada Limited) Eo
Sinomax (Vietnam) Polyurethane Vietnam Charter capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
Technology Limited (note 1) ) US$3,300,000 polyurethane foam
Sinomax (Vietnam) Polyurethane RFFER RERHERRE AKX
Technology Limited (¥ 1) 3,300,000 7T
Sinomax (Vietnam) Household Vietnam Charter capital 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
Products Limited (note 1) fitde) US$3,000,000 health and household
Sinomax (Vietnam) Household FEFER products
Products Limited (FffzE1) 3,000000% 7T HEMHERBEREKE
E

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMEE

35

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Notes:

(1) The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned enterprise.

(2)  The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign equity joint venture.

(3)  The company ceased business on 30 November 2021.

Al the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their respective places of incorporation/

establishment. None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of or any

time during the reporting periods.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only.

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Place of establishment

and principal place

R E MR RMTEE

36 FHERED

Proportion of ownership

interests and voting rights held  Profit/(loss) allocated to ~ Accumulated non-controlling

Name of subsidiary of business by non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests interests
B3t G Re FREERIERFIR R DEEFEREDZ
MEARRE TEEEME e R ig RAEM LR i®H, (8518) RetFrEiRigs
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204F 20214 20204F 20214 20205
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FHERT THET
Sinomax Kuka The PRC 49% 49% 24,392 12,086 55,759 35,409
PHABRK ®
Dormeo usS 48.69% 48.69% (8,244) (9.538) (33,246) (25,002)
ES
Individually immaterial subsidiary with (18) (17) (8,714) (8,459)
non-controlling interests
FAFEREDZER)
EPN )P
16,130 2,531 13,799 1,948

BREEERBEMRAA 2001 FERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(@)  Sinomax Kuka

Summarised financial information in respect of each of Group's subsidiaries that

had material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before the elimination of intragroup

transactions.

36

JezietE (8)

@  EEEEARER

ERAEEBERERFERE
mMERBABRNMBERT
MEFIINT o LUT B %5 B kLR
RIERHEERNRZA 2 25

At 31 December

R12A31H8
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHTT
Current assets MENEE 215,499 165,177
Non-current assets ERBHEE 28,505 33,205
Current liabilities nREAE (130,209) (126,118)
Net assets EEFE 113,795 72,264
Total equity attributable to MUF AT G iRRE
— owners of the Company S VUNCIE 2= DN 58,036 36,855
— non-controlling interests —JEERER 55,759 35,409
113,795 72,264
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NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

@

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E MR RMTEE

Sinomax Kuka (continued)

36

JezietE (8)

@ EREEXG

Year ended 31 December

BENAIHLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TAT
Revenue LON 646,932 403942
Expenses 553 (597,152) (379,277)
Profit for the year FR@T] 49,780 24,665
Profit for the year attributable to TN L REEE R T
— owners of the Company e VNGIE =P 25,388 12,579
— non-controlling interests —JEERER 24,392 12,086
49,780 24,665
Other comprehensive expense for the year A TEEFREMEERS
attributable to
— owners of the Company e VNCIEZZS DN 1,866 4085
— non-controlling interests —JEE R R 1,793 3925
3,659 8010
Total comprehensive income for the year T A TREGFEANEEUEALEE
attributable to
— owners of the Company e VNCIEZ= DN 27,254 16,664
— non-controlling interests —JEER S 26,185 16011
53,439 32,675
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests {4 FIEERER RS 5,835 15,924
Net cash inflow from operating activities RSB 2R MATE 45,387 15,424
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEHZRERH 2 6,617) (3949)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEBRE ML $E (14,320) (27.827)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BemA/ ORt) #58 24,450 (16,352)

BEEBEERAA

2001 EERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(b) Dormeo

36

JezietE (8)

()  Domeo

At 31 December

®128318

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Current assets MEEE 87,000 47956
Non-current assets FERBEE 120,531 119,831
Current liabilities MENEE (231,750) (174,702)
Non-current liabilities JERBER (44,061) (44434)
Net assets BEETE (68,280) (51,349)

Total equity attributable to M AT RL

— owners of the Company I YNCIEZ 2PN (35,034) (26,347)

— non-controlling interests —JEERER (33,246) (25,002)
(68,280) (51,349)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
R E MR RMTEE

36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 36 JEHERIED (B
(b) Dormeo (continued) )  Dormeo (48)
Year ended 3| December
BENAJBLFE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Revenue WA 216,469 81,751
Expenses 553 (233,401) (101,340)
Loss for the year FREE (16,932) (19,589)
Loss for the year attributable to THALREGEREE
— owners of the Company I YNCIEZ 2PN (8,688) (10,051)
— non-controlling interests —JEERER (8,244) (9,538)
(16,932) (19.589)
Total comprehensive expense for the year T3 A TG ER 2 EmEI 4258
attributable to
— owners of the Company e VNCIEZZS DN (8,688) (10,051)
— non-controlling interests —FEPER R (8,244) (9,538)
(16,932) (19,589)
Net cash outflow from operating activities & & EB) 2 IRE R L FEE (36,687) (18591)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEHZRERLEE (2,388) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEBEEZIREMARE 37,820 17,064
Net cash outflow REMEFEE (1,255) (1,527)

BEEBEERAA

2001 EERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E MR RMEE

37

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND RESERVES OF

THE COMPANY

FATNMBER R fHERE

2021 2020
20215 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT TFAET

Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN SE: & 779,389 779,389

Current assets TMENEE
Other receivables HhpEWwEIE 565 344
Bank balances and cash IRITEGRNIRE 285 260
850 604
Current liabilities mEaE

Other payables HARE T RIE 95 288
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB ATIIE 67,234 63,050
67,329 63,338
Net current liabilities mEBERE (66,479) (62,734)
Total assets less current liabilities MEERRSAE 712,910 716,655

Capital and reserves BARRH#E
Share capital & 175,000 175,000
Reserves HE 537,910 541655
Total equity B 712,910 716,655

Sinomax Group Limited 2021 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
777 g |

FAFS IR R MY EE

37  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND RESERVES OF 37 FRAFNHHENRERRER (@
THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AT EE
Share
Share Capital options Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
fRRE
RIDEE RAEHE #fE  REBER #ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FHET FHETT AT
At | January 2020 120205 1 B 1 H 404,520 ) 4659 136,681 545,855
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREIEBREH
expense for the year Bz AR A - - - (4,200) (4,200)
Lapse of share options R RE R RN - - 61) 61 -
At 31 December 2020 5220205F 12831 H 404,520 (5) 4,598 132,542 541,655
Loss and total comprehensive FERNEE&RE2H
expense for the year FASZ 4B RE - - - (3,745) (3,745)
Lapse of share options FERR R RN - - (61 6l -
At 31 December 2021 120214128318 404,520 (5) 4,537 128,858 537910

BEEBEERAA

0V FERE

ZEE)



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEMBREE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial

FEERBELEAMREREZRZEURE

years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: ERGERE (BRaKBERESHHER
=) BHOT
RESULTS E
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20206 20194 20185 20175
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FTHET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 4,259,882 3,231,701 2997321 4263322 4,183,786
Profit (loss) before tax PRIgADEF (B518) 37,869 69,002 (146,002) 27,586 58,242
Income tax expenses HESH R (6,434) (7,948) (66,000) (22,744) (7,457)
Profit (loss) for the year Friad (518 31,435 61,054 (212,002) 4842 50,785
Attributable to: T AT
Owners of the Company RREHEBA 15,305 58,523 (216,509) (5,801) 39,674
Non-controlling interest R T 16,130 2,531 4,507 10,643 AREN
31,435 61,054 (212,002) 4842 50,785
ASSET AND LIABILITIES BERERE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
202145 202045 20195 20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TR TET FET
Total assets BEEE 2,828,870 2514210 2,406,763 2903219 2,883,172
Total liabilities BREE (1,822,252) (1,557,751) (1,541,755) (1,677,376) (1,573,706)
Total equity T 4R%E 1,006,618 956,459 865,008 1,225,843 1,309,466
Attributable to: TN
Owners of the Company RREHEBA 992,819 95451 | 854962 1,079,429 1,155,030
Non-controlling interest R 13,799 1,948 10,046 146,414 154,436
1,006,618 956,459 865,008 1,225,843 1,309,466

Sinomax Group Limited
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